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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited (“Toronto Hydro”) is the electricity distributor
licensed (ED-2002-0497) by the Ontario Energy Board (“OEB”) to serve the City of
Toronto. Toronto Hydro is the successor to the six former hydro-electric commissions of
the municipalities which amalgamated on January 1, 1998 to form the City of Toronto.
For information about Toronto Hydro’s Corporate Structure and Governance, please

refer to Exhibit 1C, Tab 2.

Toronto Hydro is one of the largest municipal electrical distribution utility in North
America and serves the largest city in Canada. In 2017, Toronto Hydro distributed 24.3
terawatt-hours of electricity representing approximately 18 percent of the electricity

consumed in the province of Ontario, and served a peak demand of 4,980 megawatts.

Toronto Hydro serves two distinct customer demographic areas: (i) an urban centre in
downtown Toronto; and (ii) a suburban area around downtown Toronto, which is often
referred to as the Horseshoe. Toronto Hydro has approximately 768,000 customers of

various classes, ranging from residential to general service and large use.!

The utility’s service area includes some of Canada’s largest banks, stock exchanges,
major manufacturers, and other large customers that are sensitive to service
interruptions. In addition, Toronto Hydro supplies electricity to numerous healthcare

and long-term care facilities, data centres, schools (including colleges and universities),

1Toronto has over 2,900 high-rise multi-residential condominium and apartment building accounts, many of which
are “bulk-metered”. Taking these bulk-metered multi-residential buildings into account, Toronto Hydro’s effective
customer count exceeds 1 million customers.
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Ontario’s Provincial Legislature and Ministries, as well as Toronto’s municipal

government.

Toronto Hydro’s distribution system consists of a mix of overhead, underground,
secondary network and stations infrastructure. These systems operate at voltages of
27.6 kV, 13.8 kV, or 4.16 kV, and distribute power through a complex network of
approximately 178,800 poles, 60,500 distribution transformers, 17,400 primary
switches, 9,100 conductor-kilometres of overhead primary conductors, and 12,700
circuit-kilometres of underground primary cables. This network is composed of assets
of varying vintages and types, reflective of the historical standards employed by the six

pre-amalgamated utilities.

1. SERVICE TERRITORY
The City of Toronto is bounded by Lake Ontario to the South, Steeles Ave to the North,
Mississauga (mainly Highway 427) to the West, and Scarborough/Pickering Townline to

the East. A service territory map is filed at Exhibit 1C, Tab 1, Schedule 2.

2. NEIGHBOURING UTILITIES
Toronto Hydro’s neighbouring electric distribution utilities are:
e To the north and west by Alectra Utilities Corp; and

e To the east, Veridian Connections Inc.

Toronto Hydro is not a host utility and there are no embedded utilities in Toronto

Hydro’s distribution service area.
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3. TRANSMISSION ASSETS DEEMED DISTRIBUTION ASSETS

Toronto Hydro owns two transmission system terminal stations (one operational, one
under construction) that have been deemed distribution assets, namely Cavanagh TS
and Copeland TS, respectively. Toronto Hydro is not proposing any additional assets to

be deemed as distribution assets as part of this application.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND GOVERNANCE

In accordance with s. 2.1.4 of the OEB’s Filing Requirements, this schedule provides
information about Toronto Hydro’s organizational structure and corporate governance

framework.!

1. CORPORATE STRUCTURE

1.1 Corporate Structure and Governance

Toronto Hydro Corporation (“THC”) is a holding company, the sole shareholder of which
is the City of Toronto, which wholly owns two subsidiaries (see Figure 1, below):
Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited, a local distribution company (“LDC”) which
distributes electricity and engages in conservation and demand management (“CDM”)
activities; and Toronto Hydro Energy Services Inc. (“TH Energy”), a company which
provides street lighting and expressway lighting services in the City of Toronto (together,

THC and its subsidiaries are hereby referred to as the “Company”).

Toronto Hydro
Corporation

(”THC”)
|
| ]
Toronto Hydro-Electric Toronto Hydro Energy
System Limited Services Inc.
(“LDC”) (“TH Energy”)

Figure 1: Toronto Hydro Corporate Organization Chart

1 Ontario Energy Board Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate Applications, Chapter 2 (July 12, 2018).
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Each of THC and its subsidiary entities have a Board of Directors, which is responsible for
providing strategic guidance to management and supervising the business and affairs of
their respective organizational segments. However, elements of the governance of the
Company as a whole are undertaken at the THC level with its Board, and its standing
committees each of which include representation from the LDC directors who are
independent of THC. The THC Board has specific responsibility for approving the overall
business strategy and related business plan of the Company which takes into account,
among other things, the opportunities and risks of the businesses of the subsidiary

entities, and approving the financing strategy.

As THC has no substantive business beyond the regulated activities of LDC, having
elements of the corporate governance of LDC provided at the parent company level
accomplishes the same objective as having corporate governance solely at the LDC level.
Additionally, the LDC Board retains adequate scope for the exercise of independent
judgment within the overall framework of good corporate governance of the Company.
The LDC Board oversees the operations of the utility and its regulatory and public policy
activities, asset planning, customer relations functions, retains decision-making
authority related to approval of any dividends by the LDC, and approves its financial
statements. The LDC Board also reviews and approves, in a manner consistent with the
overall business plan and budget approved by the THC Board, significant corporate plans
and initiatives, major acquisitions and dispositions and other significant matters of

corporate strategy or policy.

This multi-layered corporate structure allows for matters of material importance to be

dealt with at the most appropriate organizational level. A corporate entities
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relationship chart, showing the extent to which THC is represented on the LDC’s Board

of Directors, is shown in Figure 2 below.

Chair

Citizen Director
(a member of THC Board)

Vice-Chair
Independent

Citizen Director
(not a member of THC Board)

Member
Independent

Citizen Director
(not a member of THC Board)

Member
Independent

Citizen Director
(not a member of THC Board)

Figure 2: Toronto Hydro Corporate Entities Relationship Chart

1.2 Executive Team

THC’s executive team is comprised of the Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial

Officer (“CFO”) and Executive Vice-President Regulatory Affairs and General Counsel,

both of whom are accountable to the President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of

THC. The CEO of THC is also the President and CEO of the LDC and of TH Energy.

The LDC’s executive management team consists of the following positions that are

overseen directly by the CEO:

e Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer, who is also an executive

member of THC and of TH Energy;

e Executive Vice-President, Utility Innovation and Chief Conservation Officer;

e Executive Vice-President and Chief Engineering and Construction Officer;
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e Executive Vice-President and Chief Customer Care, Electric Operations and
Procurement Officer;

e Executive Vice-President and Chief Information Officer;

e Executive Vice-President and Chief Human Resources and Safety Officer; and

e Executive Vice-President, Regulatory Affairs and General Counsel, who is also an

executive officer of THC and of TH Energy.

2. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

2.1 Securities Law Requirements

THC is a reporting issuer in each province of Canada and issues debentures pursuant to
a short form base shelf prospectus (dated May 8, 2017). For purposes of Canadian
securities regulations, THC is a “venture issuer” (i.e. a reporting issuer that does not
have any of its securities listed or quoted on the TSX or other marketplace specified
under the Canadian Securities Administrators’ National Instrument 51-102 Continuous
Disclosure Obligations), and must comply with certain corporate governance and public
disclosure requirements under applicable securities legislation. These requirements
make the Company’s operations, finances and governance practices, on a consolidated
basis, subject to scrutiny from the Ontario Securities Commission (“OSC”), the investor
marketplace and the broader public in a way not applicable to other privately-owned

companies.

THC fulfills its securities law corporate governance and disclosure obligations, and in
some cases, where in its best interests, even higher standards of governance. As a
venture issuer, THC is exempt from the requirements of Part 3 of National Instrument
52-110 — Audit Committees, which mandates the composition of an issuer’s audit

committee. Nonetheless, THC's audit committee meets all of the mandated
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requirements: it is composed of a minimum of three directors, and every audit
committee voting member is a director of THC, is independent, and is financially literate.
In addition, the audit committee includes representation from at least one LDC director

who is independent of THC.

THC has filed an Annual Information Form (“AIF”) in respect of each of the financial
years ended December 31, 2004 through December 31, 2017, in accordance with
National Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations. THC’s AIF discloses
material information about THC and its business to the public, including information
about operations, prospects, risks, and other factors that impact the business of the

Company as a whole. A copy of THC’s 2017 AIF is filed at Exhibit 1C, Tab 3, Schedule 6.

In addition, to comply with National Instrument 58-101 - Disclosure of Corporate
Governance Practices, THC provides extensive corporate governance disclosure in its AlF
and annual Management Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A"). Such disclosure includes,
amongst others, details about the following:

1) How the Board of Directors facilitates its exercise of independent supervision
over management, including the identity and independence of its directors, and
whether its directors are directors of any other reporting issuers and their
identity;

2) Board of Directors written mandate or a description of how the board delineates
its roles and responsibilities;

3) Written descriptions for the chair of the Board of Directors, the chair of each
board committee and the CEOQ;

4) Board of Directors orientation and continuing education;


http://www.osc.gov.on.ca/en/6439.htm
http://www.osc.gov.on.ca/en/6439.htm
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5) The promotion of a culture of ethical business conduct, including adoption of a
written code for the directors, officers and employees;

6) The process for nominating new directors;

7) The process of determining CEO and director compensation;

8) Standing committees and their functions;

9) How the Board of Directors assesses whether it is performing effectively; and

10) Director term limits and other mechanisms of board renewal.

THC also provides disclosure in its AIF on the make-up of the Board of Directors
(including percentage of female directors) and attendance of directors at the Board of
Director and Committee meetings. The enhanced level of disclosure, in particular with
respect to governance practices, required under securities legislation increases the
transparency of the Company’s operations and affairs, and facilitates effective

monitoring of management by the Board and stakeholders.

As a financial oversight measure, and to comply with certification requirements in
National Instrument 52-109 - Certification of Disclosure in Issuers' Annual and Interim
Filings, all of THC's interim consolidated financial statements (i.e. including LDC's
financial results), interim Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), AlFs, annual
financial statements and annual MD&As are certified by the CEO and CFO. The CEO and
CFO certify that the filings do not contain any misrepresentations and fairly present the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of THC as of the date of and for
the periods presented in the filings. The certification process is one example of the
Company’s system of internal checks and balances that fosters a culture of

accountability amongst senior management. THC and LDC also maintain a significant
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system of internal financial controls which are subject to internal and external audit to

ensure that these certifications are accurate.

2.2 Shareholder Direction

As the sole shareholder of THC, the City of Toronto (the “Shareholder” or the “City”) has
adopted a Shareholder Direction which establishes, amongst other things, the following
objectives and fundamental principles that govern the operations of the Company:

1) To operate the Company on an efficient and commercially prudent basis;

2) To optimize the Shareholder’s return on equity and operate the Company with a
view to meeting the financial performance objectives of the Shareholder as set
out in the Shareholder Direction;

3) To provide a reliable, effective and efficient electricity distribution system that
supports the electricity demands of residents and businesses in the City;

4) To operate the Company in an environmentally responsible manner consistent
with the City’s energy, climate change and urban forestry objectives and, as
appropriate, utilizing emerging green technologies;

5) To ensure that the business is managed in material compliance with all law; and

6) To engage in recruitment and procurement practices designed to attract

employees and suppliers from the City’s diverse community.

The Shareholder Direction recognizes the central role of the Board of Directors under
law, and does not operate as a unanimous shareholder declaration under the Ontario
Business Corporations Act (“OBCA”). Though it reiterates the items for which
shareholder approval is required under the OBCA as well as restricting some financial
activities of THC, it emphasizes that the Board of Directors is responsible for

determining and implementing the appropriate balance among the objectives and
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fundamental principles specified in the Shareholder Direction. Ultimately, the City
requires THC to operate on a commercially prudent and profitable basis in compliance
with law, and expects the Board of Directors to provide stewardship and independently
oversee management and operations in accordance with best corporate governance

practices.

THC’s economic relationship with the City of Toronto is governed principally by a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), contained within the Shareholder Direction. The
Dividend Policy sets an expectation, but does not create a legal requirement for the
Board of Directors of THC to declare dividends. The LDC and THC Board of Directors
keep a detailed record of the processes surrounding decisions relating to dividends paid
by the respective corporation. In that regard, dividend checklists for each of the THC
Board of Directors and the LDC Board of Directors have been developed (the “Dividend
Checklists”). The Dividend Checklists specify that, before declaring a dividend, the
directors must ensure that the applicable corporation meets statutory solvency and

capital impairment tests.

At all times, Directors are required to exercise their discretion honestly and in good faith
with a view to the best interests of the relevant corporation (fiduciary duty) and
exercise the care, diligence and skill that a reasonably prudent person would exercise in
comparable circumstances (duty of care). When considering the best interests of the
relevant corporation, directors are required to take into account the interests of various
stakeholders, including shareholders, ratepayers, employees, and creditors. In the case
of dividends paid by the LDC, Directors are obligated to balance the interests of the

utility’s shareholders against those of its ratepayers.
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2.3 Board of Directors

THC’s Board of Directors members are appointed by THC’s sole shareholder, the City of
Toronto. No members of management sit on the THC Board. Of the eleven directors
currently on the THC Board of Directors, three are Councillors of the City (including one
director who is the Mayor of the City or a member of City Council whom the Mayor
recommends as his or her designate and who is appointed by City Council), and are not
considered independent because of their positions. Eight of the eleven directors are not
elected officials or employees of the City, and have no direct or indirect material
relationship with THC and are independent within the meaning of applicable Canadian
securities law. The Chair of the THC Board is an independent citizen director. As at
December 31, 2017, female directors constituted 36.4 percent (four of eleven) of the

members of the THC Board of Directors.

No members of management sit on the LDC Board of Directors. A majority of directors
are independent, i.e. they are not elected officials or employees of the City or members
of any affiliate of the LDC. Currently, one of the directors on the LDC Board of Directors

is a citizen director who is also a member of the Board of Directors of THC.

2.3.1 Nomination of Directors
Pursuant to the Shareholder Direction, the City appoints directors who collectively
represent a range of expertise including:
1) Experience on a public utility commission or board of a major corporation or
other commercial enterprise;
2) Experience or knowledge with respect to:
a) Corporate finance;

b) Corporate governance;
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c) Market development;
d) Large system operation and management;
e) Urban energy industries;
f) Public policy issues and the law relating to the Company and the
electricity industry;
g) Environmental matters;
h) Labour relations;
i) Occupational health and safety issues;
3) Commercial sensitivity and acumen;
4) Independence of judgment;
5) Personal integrity; and

6) At least three directors with financial management expertise.

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of the THC Board of Directors
reviews a skills matrix for evaluation of all potential THC and LDC Board of Directors
members. In the case of appointment of THC Directors, the matrix is provided to the
City by the THC Board. The matrix’s design reflects best practices for requirements for

directors as recommended by the Institute of Corporate Directors.

THC appoints the LDC’s Board of Directors from among the directors of THC and
independent residents of Toronto who are not elected officials or employees of the City
or any of its agencies or corporations. The Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee nominates independent candidates for appointment to the LDC Board of
Directors for approval by the THC Board of Directors as required by the Affiliate
Relationships Code, utilizing the board skills and competencies matrix developed by the

Committee as well as expert external recruitment services. This ensures that the
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directors have a mix of competencies and skills necessary to enable LDC’s Board of
Directors to properly discharge their responsibilities. Pursuant to the LDC’s Board of
Directors Mandate, the LDC Board of Directors is required to give due regard to the
qualifications of the candidates including:

1) Experience on a public utility commission or board of a major corporation or
other commercial enterprise and/or the completion of formal training in
directorship / governance;

2) Experience in regulated electricity utility sector at a senior management level;

3) Experience at an executive level in resource and performance management /
compensation, including ability to appoint and evaluate the performance of the
CEO and senior executives; oversee strategic human resource management,
including workforce planning, compensation models, and labour relations; and
oversee large scale organizational change;

4) Educational background, including university degrees and professional
designations;

5) Experience or knowledge with respect to:

a) Strategic planning, including ability to identify and critically assess
strategic opportunities and threats to the organization;

b) Risk management, including ability to assess key risks to the organization
on an enterprise basis and monitor the risk management framework
systems;

c) Corporate finance / accounting / audit / securities, including ability to
analyze financial statements, assess financial viability, contribute to
financial planning, oversee budgets, and oversee funding arrangements;

d) Corporate governance;
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Market development, innovation and development of new strategic
business lines;

Large system operation and management;

Urban energy industries;

Public policy issues and laws relating to the Corporation and its subsidiary
entities and the electricity industry;

Environmental matters, including experience in environmental
management;

Labour relations;

Occupational health and safety issues;

Information technology governance, including privacy, data management
and security;

Legal and regulatory compliance, including ability to monitor compliance
of legal and regulatory requirements;

Stakeholder engagement / advocacy / communications, including ability
to effectively engage and communicate to industry stakeholders and

advocate on behalf of the organization;

6) The following interpersonal skills and attributes:

a)

b)

Leadership, including ability to make, and take responsibility for,
decisions and take necessary actions in the best interest of the
organization, set appropriate Board and organizational culture and
represent the organization favourably;

Personal integrity / ethics, including understanding and fulfilling the
duties and responsibilities of a director, being transparent and declaring
any activities or conduct that might be a potential conflict, and

maintaining Board confidentiality;
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d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)
j)

Communications skills, including ability to listen constructively and
appropriately debate others’ viewpoints, develop and deliver cogent
arguments, and communicate effectively with a broad range of
stakeholders;

Constructive questioning, including preparedness to ask questions and
challenge management and peer directors in a constructive and
appropriate manner;

Critical and innovative thinking/decision making, including ability to
critically analyze complex and detailed information, readily distill key
issues, and develop innovative approaches and solutions to problems;
Influencing and negotiating, including ability to negotiate outcomes and
influence others to agree with those outcomes and gain stakeholder
support for the Board’s decisions;

Crisis management, including ability to constructively manage crises,
provide leadership around solutions and contribute to communications
strategy with stakeholders;

Individual and team contribution, including ability to work as part of a
team, and demonstrate the passion and time to make a genuine and
active contribution to the Board and the organization;

Commercial sensitivity and acumen; and

Independence of judgement

7) At least one director with financial management expertise.

2.3.2 Exercise of Independent Judgment
No members of management sit on the Boards of THC or LDC. The Board of Directors

for each of THC and LDC has a number of practices and policies in place to facilitate its
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ability to act independently of senior management and to ensure that its behaviour and

decision-making processes are objective, responsible, and effective.

In Camera Board Meetings: Each of the Boards of Directors meets regularly in
the absence of management to discuss the management of the Company. A
portion of each Board and Board committee meeting is reserved for Directors to
meet without management present.

Board of Directors Mandates: Each the THC and LDC Board of Directors has
adopted a written mandate providing clear direction on the appropriate
expectations and standards to be met by Directors, including with respect to
independence. For example, the mandates specifically require the Directors, in
undertaking their responsibilities and overseeing and authorizing the activities of
the Company, to consider the interests of its customers as well as considering
and balancing the interests of such other stakeholders as appropriate in the
circumstances.

Outside Advisors: Under their respective mandates, each of the Board of
Directors of THC and LDC is authorized to retain independent legal counsel and
other outside advisors if it considers this appropriate. Each of the LDC and THC
Boards also has unrestricted access to the officers of the Company and are
authorized to invite officers and employees of the Company and others to attend
or participate in its meetings and proceedings if it considers this appropriate.
Internal Audit Function: The internal audit department provides independent,
objective assurance and consulting services to evaluate and improve the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management, internal control procedures
and governance processes. The internal audit department’s work is overseen by
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of THC. To facilitate

independence, the Vice President, Audit and Corporate Compliance of LDC has
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unrestricted access to any member of the Board of Directors, as required. The
Vice President, Audit and Corporate Compliance meets independently with the
members of the Audit Committee on a regular basis and has a reporting
relationship to the Chair of the Audit Committee.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee: The Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee facilitates the periodic assessment of the
performance of the Board of Directors of THC, LDC and Board committees and
reports the results of that assessment to the Boards.

Position Descriptions: A written position description has been developed for the
Chair of each of the THC and LDC Boards which provides direction in the
undertaking of these roles. In each case, the Chair is responsible for reporting to
the Board, leading the directors and managing the day-to-day activities of the
Board. The Chair is also responsible for engaging in discussions with the
shareholder and its representatives as are necessary and desirable, maintaining
an active and cooperative relationship with the affiliate Boards, the CEO and
other senior management, acting as the principal interface between the Board
and the CEO, and providing advice and counsel to the CEO and other senior
management. The THC Board has also developed written position descriptions

for the chair of each of the standing committees and the CEO.

2.3.3 Board of Directors Mandate
THC and LDC Board of Directors have adopted a written mandate which is reviewed

periodically and revised as required.
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2.3.4 Orientation and Continuing Education

Upon joining the Board of Directors of THC and/or LDC, each new director is given an
orientation session with a comprehensive set of materials designed to provide him/her
with a summary of the key organizational, financial, regulatory, reporting, planning and
operational aspects of the Company. Orientation also engages Directors of THC and/or
LDC with organizational representatives in these key areas and a key executive is
appointed for ongoing responsibility with each Board and standing Committee.
Directors have access to a variety of internal and external resources on topics related to
THC’s and LDC's businesses, as well as relating to the responsibilities of directors such as
fiduciary obligations, issues of confidentiality and privilege, and public disclosure and
whistleblowing requirements. Directors also have the opportunity to attend continuing
education programs run by external or internal service providers such as the Institute of

Corporate Directors.

2.3.5 Ethical Business Conduct

All employees, officers and directors of THC and LDC are required to comply with the
principles set out in the written Code of Business Conduct and Whistleblower Procedure
(the “Code”). The Code was implemented in 2004, and is periodically reviewed and re-
approved by the Board of Directors of THC. The Code of Business Conduct is included in
new directors’ orientation materials and each director completes training connected

therewith and signs an acknowledgement that he or she will comply with the Code.

2.3.6 Board Committees
THC’s Board of Directors has established three standing committees to assist the THC
and LDC Boards in fulfilling their responsibilities: the Audit Committee, the Corporate

Governance and Nominating Committee, and the Human Resources and Environment
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Committee. The standing committees are each composed of at least three directors of

THC. In addition, each standing committee includes representation from at least one

director of the LDC who is not also a director of THC. This ensures independent exercise

of oversight by the LDC over all utility functions while allowing effective and efficient

governance to be maintained for the Toronto Hydro organization as a whole.

Each committee has a written charter that establishes the committee’s purpose,

composition and responsibilities.

Audit Committee: oversees the adequacy and effectiveness of financial
reporting, accounting systems, internal financial control structures and financial
risk management systems. Among other things, the Audit Committee reviews
THC’s and LDC’s quarterly and annual financial statements (as well as financial
statements prepared in connection with securities offerings or required by
applicable regulatory authorities), reviews the audit plans of the external
auditors, and oversees the internal audit of THC and LDC. All of the voting
members of the Audit Committee are independent and financially literate in
accordance with sections 1.4 and 3.1 of National Instrument 52-110 on Audit
Committees. Of note, the committee includes at least one representative from
the LDC who is not also a director of THC.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee: advises the THC and LDC
Boards of Directors with respect to matters relating to the corporate governance
of the Company, including Board and committee composition and mandates,
facilitates the periodic assessment of the performance and effectiveness of the
THC and LDC Boards and the standing Board committees, and advises the boards
on procedures to ensure that the THC and LDC Boards of Directors function
independently from management. The Corporate Governance and Nominating

Committee also nominates independent candidates for appointment to the LDC
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Board of Directors for approval by the THC’s Board of Directors. The Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee also reviews and approves all
orientation and education materials and programs for new and current directors
undertaken by management. The majority of members of the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee are independent citizen directors who
are not elected officials or employees of the City. Of note, the committee
includes at least one representative from the LDC who is not also a director of
THC.

Human Resources and Environment Committee: assists the THC Board of
Directors and the LDC Board of Directors with the recruitment, assessment and
compensation of the CEO, oversees succession planning, reviews and approves
the compensation of the executive officers, oversees executive compensation
disclosure under applicable securities laws, and advises the boards of directors
regarding the compensation structure, benefit plans and programs of the
Company. The Human Resources and Environment Committee is also
responsible for reviewing and approving the parameters of collective bargaining
negotiations, the oversight of health and safety related functions, oversight of
human resources related matters and the oversight of environmental related
matters and processes of the Company. The majority of members of the Human
Resources and Environment Committee are independent citizen directors who
are not elected officials or employees of the City. Of note, the committee
includes at least one representative from the LDC who is not also a director of

THC.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OVERVIEW

In accordance with section 2.1.9 of the OEB’s Filing Requirements,* Exhibit 1C, Tab 4

provides the following financial information:

Accounting Standards (Schedule 2);

Toronto Hydro’s Audited Financial Statements for 2015, 2016 and 2017
(Schedule 3);

Reconciliation of the financial results shown in the Audited Financial Statements
with regulatory financial results for 2015, 2016 and 2017 (Schedule 4);
Toronto Hydro Corporation’s Management’s Discussion & Analysis for 2017
(Schedule 5);

Toronto Hydro Corporation’s Annual Information Form for 2017 (Schedule 6);
Public Offering Information (Schedule 7);

Rating Agency Reports (Schedule 8);

Existing Accounting Orders and Departures from the Uniform System of
Accounts (“USoA”) (Schedule 9); and

Toronto Hydro’s Annual Report for 2017 (Schedule 10).

Toronto Hydro adopted and applied three new accounting standards, effective January

1, 2018 as required by the International Accounting Standards Board. These include

International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”),

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”), and IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS

16”).

1 Ontario Energy Board Filing Requirements for Electricity Distribution Rate Applications — Chapter 2 (July 12, 2018).
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1. IFRS9

IFRS 9 introduces some new classification and measurement categories for financial
assets, which impacts the measurement basis of the financial assets. The changes do not
have a significant impact on the measurement of Toronto Hydro’s financial instruments.
IFRS 9 also introduces impairment rules that dictate the allowance for doubtful accounts
should be measured at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses for
accounts receivable and unbilled revenue rather than the previous incurred loss model.
The new impairment model also includes qualitative information regarding its
assessment including forward-looking information. The adoption of IFRS 9 led to a $0.3
million decrease to opening retained earnings. There is no impact to revenue

requirement.

2. IFRS 15

IFRS 15 introduces a five-step model that applies to customer contracts and contains
new rules on the timing and measurement of revenue recognition. Revenue is
recognized at a point in time or over time depending on when control of goods or
services has been transferred to the customer. Upon adoption of IFRS 15, the only
difference was a reclassification between Energy Sales and Energy Purchases. There is

no impact to revenue requirement.

3. IFRS 16

IFRS 16 eliminates the previous concepts of operating and finance leases and requires all
contracts meeting the definition of a lease to be recognized on the balance sheet as a
right-of-use asset and lease liability, with the exception of short-term leases and low-

value leases.
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Previously the assets related to finance leases were recognized as part of rate base.
Given the adoption of IFRS 16, Toronto Hydro is proposes to continue to recognize the
right-of-use assets related to leases as part of rate base. Upon the adoption of IFRS 16
on January 1, 2018, Toronto Hydro recognized $1.6 million as right-of-use assets and

$1.6 million as lease liabilities for property leases.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Toronto Hydro adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) for financial
reporting purposes in the year beginning on January 1, 2015, and the utility continues
the apply these standards through the bridge and test years. The Audited Financial
Statements provided in Exhibit 1C, Tab 3, Schedule 3 have been prepared in accordance

with IFRS.

The OEB Accounting Procedures Handbook (“APH”) directs distributors to use Modified
IFRS (“MIFRS”) for regulatory purposes. Toronto Hydro adopted MIFRS for regulatory
purposes in the year beginning on January 1, 2015. This application represents Toronto

Hydro’s second rebasing application under MIFRS.

Toronto Hydro confirms that it has segregated the accounting of all its non-rate
regulated business activities from rate regulated activities. Also, there have been no
changes to Toronto Hydro’s capitalization policy (Exhibit 2A, Tab 5, Schedule 1) and
depreciation and amortization practices (Exhibit 4B, Tab 1, Schedule 1) since the last

rebasing application.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In accordance with s. 2.1.9 of the OEB’s Filing Requirements,* this schedule provides

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited’s Audited Financial Statements, as follows:

° Appendix A: 2015 Audited Financial Statements
° Appendix B: 2016 Audited Financial Statements
. Appendix C: 2017 Audited Financial Statements

1 Ontario Energy Board, Filing Requirements for Electricity Distributor Rate Applications, Chapter 2 (July 12, 2018).
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Financial Statements

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
DECEMBER 31, 2015 and 2014

See attached Glossary for abbreviations used in the audited financial statements.



KPMG LLP Telephone  (416) 777-8500
Bay Adelaide Centre Fax (416) 777-8818
333 Bay Street Suite 4600 Internet www.kpmg.ca

Toronto ON M5H 2S5

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholder of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited, which comprise the balance
sheets as at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, the statements of income, comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toronto Hydro-Electric
System Limited as at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Kins 42
T

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
March 2, 2016
Toronto, Canada

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG
Network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

BALANCE SHEETS
[in millions of Canadian dollars]
As at As at As at
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2015 2014 2014
$ $ $
[note 26] [note 26]
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents - 84.7 15.7
Accounts receivable [notes 5 and 15[b]] 190.0 205.7 198.9
Unbilled revenue [note 15[b]] 319.5 306.6 326.1
Income tax receivable 9.0 0.2 0.3
Materials and supplies 9.8 8.6 8.6
Other assets  [note 6] 9.9 9.9 8.8
Assets held for sale - 4.0 -
Total current assets 538.2 619.7 558.4
Property, plant and equipment  [note 7] 3,561.9 3,224.5 2,820.8
Intangible assets  [note 8] 199.3 198.7 1715
Deferred tax assets [note 21] 114.3 143.1 132.1
Other assets [note 6] 1.2 1.2 0.9
Total assets 4,414.9 4,187.2 3,683.7
Regulatory balances [note 9] 241.7 197.1 88.3
Total assets and regulatory balances 4,656.6 4,384.3 3,772.0
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtedness 188.9 - -
Advance from related party [note 23] - 308.0 150.0
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 10] 471.6 512.1 426.5
Customer deposits 375 38.5 37.3
Deferred revenue [note 11] 3.7 2.2 -
Deferred conservation credit [note 3[b]] 17.9 - 20.0
Other liabilities [note 24] 3.2 2.6 2.1
Notes payable to related party [notes 12 and 23] 60.0 60.0 60.0
Total current liabilities 782.8 923.4 695.9
Notes payable to related party [notes 12 and 23] 1,876.0 1,632.2 1,433.2
Customer deposits 9.9 4.7 7.4
Deferred revenue [note 11] 100.3 71.4 45.7
Post-employment benefits [note 13] 296.5 287.4 236.0
Other liabilities [note 24] 4.9 8.0 14.5
Total liabilities 3,070.4 2,927.1 2,432.7
Commitments, contingencies and subsequent events  [notes 2, 24 and 25]
Equity
Share capital [note 17] 556.3 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings 845.5 715.1 605.2
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,414.6 1,284.2 1,174.3
Total liabilities and equity 4,485.0 4,211.3 3,607.0
Regulatory balances [note 9] 171.6 173.0 165.0
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 4,656.6 4,384.3 3,772.0

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2015 2014

$ $

[note 26]

Revenues
Energy sales 2,925.6 2,655.0
Distribution revenue 555.4 555.1
Other [note 18] 48.3 51.7

3,529.3 3,261.8
Expenses
Energy purchases 2,898.5 2,700.4
Operating expenses  [note 19] 259.0 258.1
Depreciation and amortization [notes 7 and 8] 192.8 183.5

3,350.3 3,142.0
Finance costs [note 20] 73.2 64.4
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment 10.1 15
Income before income taxes 115.9 56.9
Income tax expense [note 21] 31.5 13.9
Net income 84.4 43.0
Net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax [note 9] 46.0 66.9
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.4 109.9

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2015 2014

$ $

[note 26]

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.4 109.9
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to income or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax (2015 - $nil, 2014 - $12.2) [note 13] - (33.9)
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (2015 - $nil, 2014 - $12.2) [note 9] - 33.9
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income 130.4 109.9

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2015 2014
$ $
[note 26]
Share capital [note 17] 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings, beginning of year 715.1 605.2
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.4 109.9
Retained earnings, end of year 845.5 715.1
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,414.6 1,284.2

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2015 2014
$ $
[note 26]

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.4 109.9
Adjustments

Depreciation and amortization [notes 7 and 8] 192.8 183.5

Amortization of deferred revenue [note 11] (2.2) (0.7

Finance costs 73.2 64.4

Income tax expense 315 13.9

Post-employment benefits 9.1 5.3

Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment (10.1) (1.5)

Other 0.7 (1.8)
Capital contributions received [note 11] 33.0 28.2
Net change in other non-current assets and liabilities (0.6) (6.9)
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 4.2 (1.5)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances [note 22] 20.5 36.3
Income tax paid (8.5) (10.1)
Net movements in regulatory balances [note 9] (46.0) (66.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities 428.0 352.1
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [note 22] (547.9) (523.3)
Purchase of intangible assets [note 22] (21.2) (46.8)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 14.4 1.8
Net cash used In Investing activities (554.6) (568.3)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in advance from related party [note 23] (308.0) 158.0
Increase in notes payable to related party [note 12] 243.1 198.4
Repayment of finance lease liability (2.9 (2.2)
Interest received 1.4 1.0
Interest paid (80.6) (70.0)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (147.0) 285.2
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (bank indebtedness) during the year (273.6) 69.0
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 84.7 15.7
Cash and cash equivalents (bank indebtedness), end of year (188.9) 84.7

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

On June 23, 1999, Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited [“LDC”] was incorporated under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario), and is wholly-owned by Toronto Hydro Corporation [the “Corporation”]. The
incorporation was required in accordance with the Electricity Act. LDC is domiciled in Canada and its registered
office is located at 14 Carlton Street, Toronto, Ontario, M5B 1K5.

LDC distributes electricity to customers located in the City of Toronto [the “City”] and is subject to rate regulation.
LDC is also engaged in the delivery of CDM activities.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

LDC’s audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS with respect to the preparation of
annual financial information. These are LDC’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS and
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS [“IFRS 1], and applying the accounting policies described in note 4. LDC’s
date of transition to IFRS and its opening IFRS balance sheet is as at January 1, 2014. An explanation of how the
transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of LDC is
provided in note 26.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, LDC’s functional currency, and have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for the valuation of post-employment benefits.

LDC has evaluated the events and transactions occurring after the balance sheet date through March 2, 2016 when
LDC’s financial statements were authorized for issue by LDC’s Board of Directors, and identified the events and
transactions which required recognition in the financial statements and/or disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements [notes 3, 4 and 9].

3. REGULATION

In April 1999, the Government of Ontario began restructuring the province’s electricity industry. Under regulations
passed pursuant to the restructuring, LDC and other electricity distributors purchase electricity from the wholesale
market administered by the IESO and recover the costs of electricity and certain other costs in accordance with
procedures mandated by the OEB.

The OEB has regulatory oversight of electricity matters in Ontario. The OEB Act sets out the OEB’s authority to
issue a distribution licence that must be obtained by owners or operators of an electricity distribution system in
Ontario. The OEB prescribes licence requirements and conditions including, among other things, specified
accounting records, regulatory accounting principles, separation of accounts for distribution and other activities, and
requirements for rate-setting and other legal filings.

The OEB’s authority and responsibilities include the power to approve and fix rates for the transmission and
distribution of electricity, the power to approve the amounts paid to non-contracted generators, the responsibility to
provide rate protection for rural or remote electricity customers, and the responsibility for ensuring that electricity
distribution companies fulfill their obligations to connect and service customers.

LDC is required to charge its customers for the following amounts (all of which, other than distribution rates,
represent a pass-through of amounts payable to third parties):

Commodity Charge — The commaodity charge represents the market price of electricity consumed by customers
and is passed through the IESO to operators of generating stations. It includes the global adjustment, which
represents the difference between the market price of electricity and the rates paid to regulated and contracted
generators.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Retail Transmission Rate — The retail transmission rate represents the costs incurred in respect of the
transmission of electricity from generating stations to local distribution networks. Retail transmission rates are
passed through to operators of transmission facilities.

WMS Charge — The WMS charge represents various wholesale market support costs, such as the cost of the
IESO to administer the wholesale electricity system, operate the electricity market, and maintain reliable
operation of the provincial grid. Wholesale charges are passed through to the IESO.

Distribution Rate — The distribution rate is designed to recover the costs incurred by LDC in delivering
electricity to customers, including the OEB-allowed cost of capital. Distribution rates are regulated by the
OEB and include fixed and variable (usage-based) components, based on a forecast of LDC’s customers and
load.

LDC is required to satisfy and maintain prudential requirements with the IESO, which include credit support with
respect to outstanding market obligations in the form of letters of credit, cash deposits or guarantees from third
parties with prescribed credit ratings.

The IESO and the OPA were merged under the name IESO starting on January 1, 2015. The IESO supports CDM
plans during their design and throughout their entire lifespan, including the sharing of best practices, offering of
program delivery services, and the building of awareness in the marketplace through marketing and communication.
The IESO provides centralized customer service and technical support, market research, program evaluation and
measurement, and training.

a) Electricity Distribution Rates

Regulatory developments in Ontario’s electricity industry, including current and possible future consultations
between the OEB and interested stakeholders, may affect LDC’s electricity distribution rates and other permitted
recoveries in the future.

The OEB’s regulatory framework for electricity distributors is designed to support the cost-effective planning and
operation of the electricity distribution network and to provide an appropriate alignment between a sustainable,
financially viable electricity sector and the expectations of customers for reliable service at a reasonable price.

The OEB typically regulates the electricity rates for distributors using a combination of detailed cost of service
reviews and IRM adjustments. A cost of service review uses a future test-year to establish rates, and provides for
revenues required to recover the forecasted costs of providing the regulated service, and a fair and reasonable return
on rate base (i.e. the aggregate of approved investment in PP&E and intangible assets excluding work in progress,
less accumulated depreciation and amortization and unamortized capital contributions from customers, plus an
allowance for working capital). IRM adjustments are typically used for one or more years following a cost of
service review and provide for adjustments to rates based on an inflationary factor net of a productivity factor and an
efficiency factor as determined relative to other electricity distributors.

Administratively, the OEB currently regulates the electricity rates for distributors through one of three specific rate-
setting methods: Price Cap Incentive Rate-setting (suitable for most distributors), CIR (suitable for distributors with
large or highly variable capital requirements), and Annual Incentive Rate-setting Index (suitable for distributors
requiring limited rate adjustments). Under each of these methods, the OEB also allows recovery of costs arising
from significant events satisfying certain criteria which are considered external to the regulatory regime and beyond
the control of management.

Under the Price Cap Incentive Rate-setting method, rates are set on a single forward test-year cost of service basis
for the first year and indexed for four subsequent years through an industry-standard IRM adjustment (using the 4
generation price cap index formula). Under this method, the ICM is available to address any incremental capital
investment needs that may arise during the term. In order to determine whether a distributor is eligible for the ICM,



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

the OEB conducts a review of the distributor’s ICM application by way of a detailed examination of evidence and
consideration of a number of criteria, such as materiality, need and prudence.

Under the CIR method, rates are set for a minimum period of five years, typically on a forward test-year cost of
service basis for the first year with subsequent annual adjustments based on a distributor-specific custom index. The
particular mechanics through which rates are set and adjusted are determined by the OEB on a case-by-case basis.

The Annual Incentive Rate-setting Index method sets a distributor’s rates through an industry-standard IRM
adjustment (using a limited form of the 4™ generation price cap index formula) for one or more years.

Under each method, actual operating conditions may vary from forecasts such that actual returns achieved can differ
from approved returns. Approved electricity rates are generally not adjusted as a result of actual costs or revenues
being different from forecasted amounts, other than for certain prescribed costs that are eligible for deferral for
future collection from, or refund to, customers.

On May 10, 2012, LDC filed an application for electricity distribution rates for 2012, 2013 and 2014 using the IRM
framework, including the filing of an ICM application. On April 2, 2013, the OEB approved new rates for LDC
effective June 1, 2013, which reflected approved capital expenditures amounting to $203.3 million for 2012 and
$484.2 million for 2013. In a separate decision rendered on December 19, 2013, the OEB approved capital
expenditures amounting to $398.8 million for 2014.

On January 16, 2014, the OEB approved LDC's request for disposition of the smart meter regulatory balances
related to smart meter installations in 2008, 2009 and 2010 through two separate rate riders effective May 1, 2014
[note 9[e]]. The first rate rider related to the recovery of $23.9 million, representing the cumulative revenue
requirement net of recoveries from an existing smart meter rate rider. This existing smart meter rate rider was
discontinued when the new rate riders became effective. The second rate rider related to the recovery of $9.6
million, representing the forecasted 2014 incremental revenue requirement.

On July 31, 2014, LDC filed a rate application with the OEB under the CIR method which sought approval of
LDC’s 2015 test-year revenue requirement on a cost of service basis and the corresponding electricity distribution
rates effective May 1, 2015, and the subsequent annual rate adjustments based on a custom index specific to LDC
for the period commencing on January 1, 2016 and ending on December 31, 2019. The rate application included
requests for approval of capital expenditures of approximately $2.5 billion over the 2015-2019 period. The rate
application also sought approval to include in LDC’s rate base capital amounts that were prudently incurred prior to
2015, subject to review by the OEB. In addition, LDC sought approval to recover the net book value of stranded
meters [note 9[e]].

On August 3, 2011, the OEB issued its final decision allowing the transfer of a portion of the street lighting assets
from Toronto Hydro Energy Services Inc. [“TH Energy”] to a new wholly-owned legal entity (1798594 Ontario
Inc.), and for LDC to amalgamate with the new legal entity. The OEB decided that the rate base, revenue
requirement and rate consequences of the transfer would be decided at LDC’s next cost of service or rebasing rate
application. On January 1, 2012, the Corporation completed the asset transfer and amalgamation. The purchase
price for such assets as of January 1, 2012, including a post-closing adjustment, was $42.5 million, subject to
transaction costs. LDC sought a final determination of the rate base, revenue requirement and rate consequences of
the street lighting transfer in the rate application filed on July 31, 2014.

On April 28, 2015, the OEB declared LDC’s existing rates as interim rates, effective May 1, 2015, pending a final
CIR decision and rate order. On December 29, 2015, the OEB issued its CIR decision and on March 1, 2016, the
OEB issued its CIR rate order, both in relation to the rate application filed on July 31, 2014. The CIR decision and
rate order approved a rate base of $3,232.0 million and revenue requirement of $633.1 million for 2015, and rates
calculated on that basis. The CIR decision and rate order also approved subsequent annual rate adjustments based
on a custom index for the period commencing on January 1, 2016 and ending on December 31, 2019. The OEB-
approved revenue requirement generates an increase in funded capital expenditures over the CIR period.
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The OEB approved new deferral and variance accounts including accounts to capture variances related to revenue
requirement for ICM capital work undertaken from 2012 to 2014 and revenue requirement associated with capital
work during the CIR term. The OEB approved recovery of the $15.8 million forecasted net book value relating to
the stranded meters. The OEB also approved foregone revenue rate riders for the May 1, 2015 to February 29, 2016
period as well as other requested rate riders [note 9]. In addition, the OEB approved the transfer of the street
lighting assets into rate base effective January 1, 2015 at a transfer price of $39.8 million, representing the opening
net book value of the assets in 2015. The financial impact of the OEB’s CIR decision and rate order has been
reflected in these financial statements.

The rates for 2015 and 2016 were implemented on March 1, 2016, with effective dates of May 1, 2015 and January
1, 2016, respectively [note 9[b]].

b) CDM Activities

On March 31, 2010, the Minister of Energy and Infrastructure of Ontario, under the guidance of sections 27.1 and
27.2 of the OEB Act, directed the OEB to establish CDM targets to be met by electricity distributors. Accordingly,
on November 12, 2010, the OEB amended LDC’s distribution licence to require LDC, as a condition of its licence,
to achieve 1,304 GWh of energy savings and 286 MW of summer peak demand savings over the period beginning
January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2014.

Effective January 1, 2011, LDC entered into an agreement with the OPA in the amount of approximately $50.0
million to deliver CDM programs extending from January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2014 to support achievement of
the mandatory CDM targets described above. LDC applied to the OPA in March 2014 to revise the program
administration budget to $45.8 million for the delivery of CDM programs from 2011 to 2014. All programs
delivered are fully funded and paid in advance by the OPA. Amounts received but not yet spent are presented on the
balance sheets under current liabilities as deferred conservation credit. Upon the expiration of the agreement, LDC
is required to repay to the OPA any excess funding received for program administration less any cost efficiency
incentives. As at December 31, 2014, LDC estimated that approximately $5.7 million qualified as cost efficiency
incentives, and approximately $4.9 million was repayable to the OPA for the remaining program administration
budget, included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 4[i]]. On May 8, 2015, the IESO confirmed
both the cost efficiency incentives of $5.7 million and the amount payable by LDC of $4.9 million plus applicable
taxes, which was paid in July 2015.

On December 21, 2012, the Minister of Energy of Ontario issued a direction to the OPA under subsection 25.32(4.1)
of the Electricity Act to extend the funding time period for OPA-contracted province-wide CDM initiatives under
the Green Energy Act framework to December 31, 2015. Funding and respective targets for CDM programs
approved pursuant to the 2011-2014 OPA agreement with in-service dates in 2015 would be allocated toward the
2011-2014 program. On March 18, 2015, LDC received approval from the IESO for separate funding of $11.2
million relating to these transitional CDM programs for 2015. Funding was fully received in the third quarter of
2015.

On March 26, 2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario, under the guidance of sections 27.1 and 27.2 of the OEB
Act, directed the OEB to amend the licence of each licensed electricity distributor to require the electricity
distributor, as a condition of its licence, to make CDM programs available to customers in its licensed service area
and to do so in relation to each customer segment in its service area, over the period beginning January 1, 2015
through December 31, 2020. On March 31, 2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario issued a direction to require the
OPA to coordinate, support and fund the delivery of CDM programs through electricity distributors. The objective
of the new CDM efforts is to reduce electricity consumption in the Province of Ontario by a total of 7 terawatt hours
between January 1, 2015 and December 31, 2020, of which LDC’s share is approximately 1,576 GWh of energy
savings.

On November 13, 2014, LDC entered into an energy conservation agreement with the OPA for the delivery of CDM
programs over the 2015-2020 period with funding of approximately $400.0 million, which included participant
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incentives and LDC’s program administration costs. LDC provided the IESO with its plan for achieving its CDM
target and received conditional approval as of March 26, 2015.

Under the energy conservation agreement, LDC has an option to submit a joint CDM plan with one or more
distribution companies. On April 30, 2015, LDC submitted a joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro Electricity
Distribution Inc. for the delivery of CDM programs over the 2015-2020 period, to replace the CDM plan that had
been conditionally approved as of March 26, 2015, and received approval from the IESO with combined funding of
approximately $425.0 million and an energy savings target of approximately 1,668 GWh. The programs under the
joint CDM plan for Oakville Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. started on January 1, 2016. LDC received $17.2
million as at December 31, 2015 and $1.5 million subsequent to December 31, 2015 from the IESO for the delivery
of CDM programs under the energy conservation agreement. Amounts received but not yet spent are presented on
the balance sheets under current liabilities as deferred conservation credit.

LDC can choose between full cost recovery funding, pay-for-performance funding, or a combination of both, on a
CDM program by program basis. Under the full cost recovery funding method, the IESO reimburses LDC for all
adequately documented incurred costs, with an option to receive a portion of its funding in advance. Cost efficiency
incentives may be awarded if LDC’s electricity savings meet or exceed certain CDM plan targets for programs
under the full cost recovery funding method, with a mid-term review to be performed by the IESO for the 2015-
2017 period. Under the pay-for-performance funding method, LDC receives payment in arrears based on verified
electricity savings achieved with various options for frequency of payment. The programs under the joint CDM
plan with Oakville Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. are only being offered under the full cost recovery funding
method.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Regulation

The following regulatory treatments have resulted in accounting treatments which differ from those prescribed by
IFRS for enterprises operating in an unregulated environment and regulated entities that did not adopt IFRS 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts [“IFRS 14™]:

Regulatory Balances

In January 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 14 as an interim standard giving entities conducting rate-regulated activities
the option of continuing to recognize regulatory balances according to their previous GAAP. Regulatory balances
provide useful information about LDC’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. IFRS 14 is
restricted to first-time adopters of IFRS and remains in force until either repealed or replaced by permanent guidance
on rate-regulated accounting from the IASB. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. LDC has elected to early adopt IFRS 14.

LDC has determined that certain debit and credit balances arising from rate-regulated activities qualify for the
application of regulatory accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS 14 and the accounting principles prescribed
by the OEB in the “Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity Distributors”. Under rate-regulated
accounting, the timing and recognition of certain expenses and revenues may differ from those otherwise expected
under other IFRS in order to appropriately reflect the economic impact of regulatory decisions regarding LDC’s
regulated revenues and expenditures. These amounts arising from timing differences are recorded as regulatory
debit and credit balances on LDC’s balance sheets, and represent existing rights and obligations regarding cash
flows expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers, based on decisions and approvals by the OEB.
Regulatory balances can be recognized for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if the OEB directs the
relevant regulatory treatment or if future OEB direction is determined by management to be probable. In the event
that the disposition of these balances are assessed to no longer be probable based on management’s judgment, the
balances are recorded in LDC’s statements of income in the period when the assessment is made. Regulatory
balances that do not meet the definition of an asset or liability under any other IFRS are segregated on the balance
sheets, on the statements of income as net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax, and on the statements of
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comprehensive income as net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax. The netting of regulatory
debit and credit balances is not permitted. The measurement of regulatory balances is subject to certain estimates
and assumptions, including assumptions made in the interpretation of the OEB’s regulations and decisions.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank accounts and short-term investments with terms to maturity of 90
days or less from their date of acquisition. On the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents (bank
indebtedness) include bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of LDC’s cash
management.

¢) Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoiced amount and overdue amounts bear interest at OEB-approved rates.
Unbilled revenue is recorded based on an estimated amount for electricity delivered and for other services provided
and not yet billed. The estimate is primarily based on the customers’ previous billings with adjustments mainly for
assumptions related to seasonality and weighted average price. The carrying amount of accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue is reduced through an allowance for doubtful accounts, if applicable, and the amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the statements of income. The impairment loss is the difference between an asset’s
carrying amount and the estimated future cash flows. When LDC considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the financial assets, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases due to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through net income.

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, which includes default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, and adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers. Accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue that are not individually assessed for impairment are collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together receivables with similar risk characteristics, and LDC considers historical trends on the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, as well as current economic and credit conditions.

d) Materials and supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of small consumable materials mainly related to the maintenance of the
electricity distribution infrastructure. LDC classifies all major construction related components of its electricity
distribution infrastructure to PP&E. Materials and supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
with cost determined on a weighted average cost basis net of a provision for obsolescence.

e) Property, plant and equipment

PP&E are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if applicable.
For PP&E used in rate-regulated activities, LDC elected to use the exemption available for assets subject to rate
regulation such that the previous US GAAP carrying amount became the deemed cost under IFRS at the date of
transition [note 26]. The cost of PP&E represents the original cost, consisting of direct materials and labour,
contracted services, borrowing costs, and directly attributable overhead. Subsequent costs are capitalized only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to LDC and the costs can be
measured reliably. If significant parts of an item of PP&E have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate major components of PP&E. The carrying amount of an item of PP&E is derecognized on disposal of the
asset or when no future economic benefits are expected to accrue to LDC from its continued use. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recorded in the statements of income in the period in which the asset is derecognized.
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of PP&E is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds less the
carrying amount of the asset and costs of removal and is recognized in the statements of income.
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Depreciation begins when an asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Distribution assets:

Distribution lines 1.7%t0 5.0%

Transformers 3.3% t0 5.0%

Meters 2.5% 10 6.7%

Stations 2.5% to 10.0%
Buildings 1.3%1t05.0%
Equipment and other:

Assets under finance lease 1.0% to 14.3%

Other capital assets 4.0% to 25.0%

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that LDC will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Assets under finance lease included a 99-year land
lease. Construction in progress relates to assets not currently available for use and therefore is not depreciated. The
depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. There are no
residual values for items of PP&E.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if
applicable. For intangible assets used in rate-regulated activities, LDC elected to use the exemption available for
assets subject to rate regulation such that the previous US GAAP carrying amount became the deemed cost under
IFRS at the date of transition [note 26].

Amortization begins when an asset becomes available for use. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Computer software 10.0% to 25.0%
Contributions 4.0%

Software in development and contributions for work in progress relate to assets not currently available for use and
therefore are not amortized. Contributions represent payments made to HONI for dedicated infrastructure in order
to receive connections to transmission facilities. The amortization method and useful lives are reviewed each
financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

LDC reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other than materials and supplies and deferred tax
assets at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, in which case the assets’
recoverable amounts are estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent on the cash inflows of other
assets or CGUs. LDC has determined that its assets are a single CGU due to interdependencies of its assets to
generate cash flows. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of income, and are allocated to reduce the
carrying amounts of assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss recognized in prior periods is
reversed when an asset’s recoverable amount has increased, but not exceeding the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
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h) Capitalized borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of qualifying assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The interest rate for capitalization is LDC’s weighted average
cost of borrowing, and is applied to the carrying amount of the construction-in-progress assets or assets under
development including borrowing costs previously capitalized, net of capital contributions received. Borrowing
costs are included in PP&E and intangible assets for financial reporting purposes, and charged to operations through
depreciation and amortization expense over the useful lives of the related assets.

i) Revenue recognition

Revenues from energy sales and distribution are recorded on the basis of cyclical billings and include an estimated
amount for electricity delivered and not yet billed. These revenues are impacted by energy demand primarily driven
by outside temperature, and customer class usage patterns and composition.

Energy sales arise from charges to customers for electricity consumed, based on regulated rates. LDC applies
judgment to determine whether revenues are recorded on a gross or net basis. These charges are passed through to
customers over time and are considered revenue by LDC due to the collection risk of the related balances. LDC has
primary responsibility for the delivery of electricity to the customer. The difference between the amounts charged
by LDC to customers, based on regulated rates, and the corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive
electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to LDC, is recorded as a settlement variance. In accordance
with IFRS 14, this settlement variance is presented within regulatory balances on the balance sheets and within net
movements in regulatory balances, net of tax on the statements of income.

Distribution revenue is recorded based on OEB-approved distribution rates to recover the costs incurred by LDC in
delivering electricity to customers. Distribution revenue also includes revenue related to the collection of OEB-
approved rate riders.

Other revenue, which includes revenue from services ancillary to the distribution of electricity and revenue from
demand billable activities, is recognized as the services are rendered. When services are made up of different
components which are not separately identifiable, the related other revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the contract. Capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire
PP&E for the purpose of connecting a customer to a network are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized into
other revenue at an equivalent rate to that used for the depreciation of the related PP&E. Revenue not yet
recognized from demand billable activities is also included within deferred revenue.

Revenues and costs associated with CDM programs are presented using the net basis of accounting. Cost efficiency
incentives related to the CDM programs, included as part of other revenue, are recognized when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be reasonably measured.

j) Financial instruments

All financial assets are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and all financial liabilities are classified as “Other
Financial Liabilities”. These financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value adjusted for any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment for the financial assets. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration
that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between willing parties.

LDC uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which carrying amounts are included in the balance sheets:
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Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured
at fair value. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Bank indebtedness is classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and is initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Advance from related party is classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and is initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of this instrument.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially
measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method. The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Customer deposits are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at cost plus accrued interest. The carrying amounts approximate fair
value taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance.

Obligations under finance leases are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value, or the present value of the minimum lease payments if lower. Subsequent measurements are based on a
discounted cash flow analysis and approximate the carrying amount as management believes that the fixed
interest rates are representative of current market rates.

Notes payable to related party are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amounts are carried at amortized cost, based on the fair value of the notes payable at
issuance, which was the fair value of the consideration received adjusted for transaction costs. The fair values
of the notes payable are based on the present value of contractual cash flows, discounted at LDC’s current
borrowing rate for similar debt instruments [note 15[a]]. Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with
LDC’s debt offerings are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the notes payable and amortized over the
term of the related notes payable, using the effective interest method, and the amortization is included in finance
costs.

k) Fair value measurements

LDC utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A fair value hierarchy exists that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs
used to measure fair value. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect LDC’s assumptions with respect to how market participants would price an asset or
liability. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for
the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis;

Level 2: Other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly or indirectly; and
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Level 3: Unobservable inputs, supported by little or no market activity, used to measure the fair value of the
assets or liabilities to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations that are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if
LDC has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Multi-employer pension plan

LDC’s full-time employees participate in a pension plan through OMERS. The OMERS plan is a jointly sponsored,
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan established in 1962 by the Province of Ontario for employees of
municipalities, local boards and school boards. Both participating employers and employees are required to make
plan contributions equally based on participating employees’ contributory earnings, and share equally in funding
gains or losses. The plan assets and pension obligations are not segregated in separate accounts for each member
entity. The OMERS plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan and the contribution payable is recognized
as an employee benefit expense in the statements of income in the period when the service is rendered by the
employee, since it is not practicable to determine LDC’s portion of pension obligations or of the fair value of plan
assets.

(iii) Post-employment benefits other than pension

LDC has a number of unfunded benefit plans providing post-employment benefits (other than pension) to its
employees. LDC pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits under unfunded defined benefit plans on
behalf of its retired employees. LDC also pays accumulated sick leave credits, up to certain established limits based
on service, in the event of retirement, termination or death of certain employees.

The cost of providing benefits under the benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit
method, which incorporates management’s best estimate of future salary levels, retirement ages of employees,
health care costs, and other actuarial factors. Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments give rise
to actuarial gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses on medical, dental and life insurance benefits are
recognized in OCI as they arise. Actuarial gains and losses related to rate-regulated activities are subsequently
reclassified from OCI to a regulatory balance on the balance sheets. Actuarial gains and losses on accumulated sick
leave credits are recognized in the statements of income in the period in which they arise.

The measurement date used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation is December 31 of the applicable
year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1, 2014.

m) Customer deposits

Security deposits from electricity customers are cash collections to guarantee the payment of electricity bills. The
electricity customer security deposits liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers with a
corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits that are refundable upon demand are classified as a
current liability.

Security deposits on offers to connect are cash collections from specific customers to guarantee the payment of
additional costs relating to expansion projects. This liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers
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with a corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits are classified as a current liability when LDC no
longer has an unconditional right to defer payment of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

n) Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, LDC is required to make PILs to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. These
payments are calculated in accordance with the ITA and the TA as modified by regulations made under the
Electricity Act and related regulations. This effectively results in LDC paying income taxes equivalent to what
would be imposed under the Federal and Ontario Tax Acts.

LDC uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, current income taxes
payable are recorded based on taxable income. LDC recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the carrying value of assets and liabilities on
the balance sheets and their respective tax basis, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date that are in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Tax benefits associated
with income tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return are recorded only when it is probable that
they will be realized, and are measured at the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid to or recovered
from the taxation authorities. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The calculation of current and deferred taxes
requires management to make certain judgments with respect to changes in tax interpretations, regulations and
legislation, and to estimate probable outcomes on the timing and reversal of temporary differences and tax authority
audits of income tax.

Rate-regulated accounting requires the recognition of regulatory balances and related deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the amount of deferred taxes expected to be refunded to or recovered from customers through future
electricity distribution rates. A gross up to reflect the income tax benefits associated with reduced revenues
resulting from the realization of deferred tax assets is recorded within regulatory credit balances. Deferred taxes that
are not included in the rate-setting process are charged or credited to the statements of income.

The benefits of the refundable and non-refundable apprenticeship and other ITCs are credited against the related
expense in the statements of income.

0) Use of estimates

The preparation of LDC’s financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the year. The estimates are based on historical experience, current conditions and various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as for identifying and assessing the
accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results could differ from those
estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the IESO, the Ontario Ministry of
Energy or the Ontario Ministry of Finance.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively. Assumptions and estimates with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the
next financial year are used in the following:

Note 4[a] — Recognition and measurement of regulatory balances;

Note 4[i] — Revenue recognition — measurement of unbilled revenue, determination of the CDM incentive;
Notes 4[e] and 4[f] — Determination of useful lives of depreciable assets;

Notes 4[I] and 13 — Measurement of post-employment benefits — key actuarial assumptions;
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Notes 4[n] and 21 — Recognition of deferred tax assets — availability of future taxable income against which
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be used; and
Note 25 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies.

p) Future accounting pronouncements

A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,
2015, and have not yet been applied in preparing these financial statements. LDC continues to analyze these
standards and has determined that the following could have an impact on its financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative

In December 2014, the IASB issued Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements). These amendments improve the existing presentation and disclosure requirements and encourage
entities to apply professional judgment regarding disclosure and presentation in their financial statements. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. LDC expects these amendments
to have no material impact on its financial statements.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers [“IFRS 15”], which replaces
existing revenue recognition guidance, including 1AS 18 Revenue and IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
[“IFRIC 18”]. IFRS 15 contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers with two approaches for
recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether revenue should be recognized and the respective timing and amount. New
estimates and judgmental thresholds have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/or timing of revenue
recognized. The new standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which
fall in the scope of other IFRS. On July 22, 2015, the IASB confirmed a one-year deferral of the effective date of
IFRS 15 to annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. LDC is currently evaluating the impact of the new
standard.

Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments [“IFRS 9”], which replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement [“IAS 397]. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for measuring
impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and will be applied retrospectively with some exceptions.
LDC is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard.

Leases

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases [“IFRS 16”], which replaces IAS 17 Leases [“IAS 17”]. IFRS 16
provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and liabilities for all leases, unless the
lease term is twelve months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessor accounting remains largely
unchanged from IAS 17 and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. In addition, lessees
will recognize a front-loaded pattern of expense for most leases, even when they pay constant annual rentals. The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, and will be applied retrospectively
with some exceptions. Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15 has been adopted. LDC is currently evaluating the
impact of the new standard.
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5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

December 31  December 31 January 1
2015 2014 2014
$ $ $
Trade receivables 183.9 195.0 195.7
Due from related parties [note 23] 42 8.2 2.1
Other 1.9 25 1.1
190.0 205.7 198.9

6. OTHER ASSETS

Other assets consist of the following:

December 31  December 31 January 1
2015 2014 2014
$ $ $

Prepaid expenses 95 9.6 85

Deferred financing costs 16 15 1.2

Total other assets 11.1 111 9.7
Less: Current portion of other assets relating to:

Prepaid expenses 95 96 85

Deferred financing costs 04 0.3 0.3

Non-current portion of other assets 12 12 0.9
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
PP&E consist of the following:

Distribution Land and Equipment Construction

assets buildings and other in progress
$ $ $

Cost or deemed cost

Balance as at January 1, 2014 2,284.6 111.7 87.7 336.8 2,820.8
Additions 428.4 343 19.6 94.4 576.7
Disposals and retirements (27.3) (3.6) 0.1) — (31.0)
Transfers to assets held for sale — (4.8) — — (4.8)
Balance as at December 31, 2014 2,685.7 137.6 107.2 431.2 3,361.7
Additions 368.0 67.6 125 65.1 513.2
Disposals and retirements (26.5) (2.1) — — (28.6)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 3,027.2 203.1 119.7 496.3 3,846.3

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2014 — —_ —
Depreciation 107.2 79 242 — 139.3

Disposals and retirements (1.1) 0.1) 0.1) — (1.3)
Transfers to assets held for sale — (0.8) — — (0.8)
Balance as at December 31, 2014 106.1 70 241 — 137.2
Depreciation 1189 9.1 220 — 150.0
Disposals and retirements (2.4) 04) — — (2.8)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 222.6 15.7 46.1 — 284.4
Carrying amount

Balance as at January 1, 2014 2,284.6 111.7 87.7 336.8 2,820.8
Balance as at December 31, 2014 2,579.6 130.6 83.1 431.2 3,224.5
Balance as at December 31, 2015 2,804.6 187.4 73.6 496.3 3,561.9

As at December 31, 2015, Equipment and other included assets under finance lease with cost of $18.2 million
[December 31, 2014 - $18.2 million; January 1, 2014 - $16.1 million] and accumulated depreciation of $6.0 million
[December 31, 2014 - $3.8 million; January 1, 2014 - $nil]. For the year ended December 31, 2015, LDC recorded
depreciation expense of $2.2 million [2014 - $3.8 million] related to assets under finance lease.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, borrowing costs in the amount of $7.0 million [2014 - $4.9 million] were
capitalized to PP&E and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.74% [2014 - 3.84%)].

Construction in progress additions are net of transfers to the other PP&E categories.
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Computer Contributions Software in Contributions Total
software development for work in

progress
$ $ $

Cost or deemed cost

Balance as at January 1, 2014 69.6 19.0 11.7 71.2 1715
Additions 17.1 0.9 15 27.3 46.8
Balance as at December 31, 2014 86.7 19.9 13.2 98.5 218.3
Additions 14.9 1.8 (1.4) 5.8 21.1
Balance as at December 31, 2015 101.6 21.7 11.8 104.3 2394

Accumulated amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2014 — — — — —
Amortization 18.7 0.9 — — 19.6

Balance as at December 31, 2014 18.7 0.9 — — 19.6
Amortization 19.4 1.1 — — 20.5
Balance as at December 31, 2015 38.1 2.0 — — 40.1
Carrying amount

Balance as at January 1, 2014 69.6 19.0 11.7 71.2 1715
Balance as at December 31, 2014 68.0 19.0 13.2 98.5 198.7
Balance as at December 31, 2015 63.5 19.7 11.8 104.3 199.3

For the year ended December 31, 2015, borrowing costs in the amount of $3.8 million [2014 - $3.2 million] were
capitalized to intangible assets and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.74% [2014 -
3.84%].

Software in development and contributions for work in progress additions are net of transfers to the other intangible
asset categories.

Computer software is externally acquired. The remaining amortization periods for computer software and
contributions range from less than one year to 7 years, and from 13 to 24 years, respectively.
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9. REGULATORY BALANCES

Debit balances consist of the following:

January 1, Balances Recovery/ Other December Remaining
2015 arising in reversal movements 31, 2015 recovery/
the period reversal
period
Post-employment benefits 81.2 — — — 81.2 ®
Foregone revenue — 61.1 — — 61.1 46@
IFRS transitional adjustments 24.2 47 — — 28.9 46@
Settlement variances 51.7 (26.4) — — 253 ©)
Stranded meters 144 — — — 14.4 46@
Smart meters 209 — (20.9) — 10.0 16
LRAM — 9.1 — — 9.1 @
Named properties — 5.8 — — 538 46@
Capital contributions — 19 — — 19 46@
OPEB cash versus accrual — 1.8 — — 1.8 ®)
Other 47 2.0 0.1) 4.9 22 100
197.1 60.0 (11.0) (4.4) 241.7
Balances Recovery/ Other December Remaining
arising in reversal movements 31,2014 recovery/
the period reversal
$
Post-employment benefits 36.9 45.3 (1.0) — 812 ®
Settlement variances 5.8 459 — — 517 ©)
IFRS transitional adjustments 0.9 23.3 — — 242 48©
Smart meters 25.2 95 (13.8) — 209 28
Stranded meters 16.9 — (25) — 14.4 60
Other 2.6 25 0.2) (0.2) 47 12-60©
88.3 126.5 (17.5) (0.2) 197.1

@ LDC did not seek recovery from the OEB as changes in underlying assumptions may reduce the balance in the
account. LDC expects to recover this regulatory balance as per OEB direction when recovery is sought.

@ Disposition period is based on the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]].

® Disposition period of the low voltage variances of $1.3 million over 10 months is based on the CIR decision and
rate order [note 3[a]]. LDC intends to apply for disposition of remaining settlement variances in its next rate
applications.

@ Disposition period of the 2011-2013 LRAM of $3.6 million over 10 months is based on the CIR decision and
rate order [note 3[a]]. LDC intends to apply for disposition of the LRAM balances for 2014 and 2015 at a later
date, for which timing is currently unknown.

® LDC intends to apply for disposition of the balance following the OEB consultation process on pension and
OPEB, for which timing is currently unknown.

© Disposition period was based on the CIR application pending as at December 31, 2014 [note 3[a]].
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Credit balances consist of the following:

January 1, Balances Recovery/ Other December Remaining
2015 arising in reversal movements 31,2015 recovery/
the period reversal
period
months
Deferred taxes 143.4 (28.6) — — 114.8 )]
Tax-related variances 25.3 1.2 — — 26.5 10-34®@
Derecognition — 9.9 — — 9.9 ®
ICM 2.3 — 74 — 9.7 (©)]
Gain on disposal — 5.9 — — 5.9 4
Capital-related revenue
requirement — 2.8 — — 2.8 ©)]
Other 2.0 — — — 2.0 100
173.0 (8.8) 7.4 — 171.6
January 1, Balances Recovery/ Other December Remaining
2014 arising in reversal movements 31,2014 recovery/
the period reversal
3
Deferred taxes 132.0 114 — — 1434 0]
Tax-related variances 252 29 (2.8) — 253 12-36®
ICM 6.0 (25.1) 214 — 2.3 (©)
Other 18 0.2 0.2 (0.2) 2.0 12
165.0 (10.6) 18.8 (0.2) 173.0

@ LDC did not apply for disposition of the balance since it is being reversed through timing differences in the
recognition of deferred tax assets.

@ Disposition period of the revision of prior year tax position account over 34 months and the income tax variance
account over 10 months is based on the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]].

@ LDC intends to apply for disposition of the balance at a later date, for which timing is currently unknown.

@ Disposition period for forecasted net gains of 34 months is based on the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]].
LDC intends to apply for disposition of the variance account at a later date, for which timing is currently
unknown.

® Disposition period is based on the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]].

® Disposition period was based on the CIR application pending as at December 31, 2014 [note 3[a]].

The “Balances arising in the period” column consists of new additions to regulatory balances (for both debits and
credits). The “Recovery/reversal” column consists of amounts collected through rate riders or transactions reversing
an existing regulatory balance. The “Other movements” column consists of impairment and reclassification between
the regulatory debit and credit balances. For the year ended December 31, 2015, LDC recorded an impairment of
$4.4 million on regulatory debit balances within ‘Other’ as a result of the CIR decision and rate order. There was no
impairment recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014.

Refer to Regulatory Developments and Electricity Consumption paragraphs in the Risk Management and Risk

Factors section of the December 31, 2015 MD&A for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties that affect the future
recovery of the regulatory balances.
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The regulatory balances of LDC consist of the following:

a) Post-Employment Benefits

This regulatory balance accumulates the actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments. The balance arising during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
primarily related to the actuarial gain and loss recorded for the year, respectively. As at December 31, 2015, the
regulatory balance did not include carrying charges.

b) Foregone Revenue

This regulatory balance relates to the revenue that LDC would have recovered in 2015 if new rates were
implemented as of May 1, 2015. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved foregone revenue rate riders
for May 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 based on approved 2015 rates and for January 1, 2016 to February 29, 2016
based on approved 2016 rates [note 3[a]]. Based on that approval, a new regulatory balance of $61.1 million was
recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the amount associated with the 2015 year to be recovered through rates
over a 46-month period commencing on March 1, 2016. As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balance did not
include carrying charges.

¢) IFRS Transitional Adjustments

This regulatory balance relates to the differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible
assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014, primarily related to derecognition of certain assets and
additional capitalized borrowing costs. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the
forecasted balance of $25.8 million plus an additional $4.7 million for the associated rate of return of 6.19% [note
3[all. Based on that approval, an additional $4.7 million was recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the
amount to be recovered through rates over a 46-month period commencing on March 1, 2016. As at December 31,
2015, the regulatory balance did not include carrying charges.

d) Settlement Variances

This account includes the variances between amounts charged by LDC to customers, based on regulated rates, and
the corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs incurred by LDC. The settlement
variances relate primarily to non-competitive electricity charges and the global adjustment. Accordingly, LDC has
deferred the variances between the costs incurred and the related recoveries in accordance with the criteria set out in
the accounting principles prescribed by the OEB. Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance in
accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.47% for the period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and
1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 [January 1, 2014 — December 31, 2014 - 1.47%]. In
the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of variances related to low voltage in 2013 of $1.3
million inclusive of carrying charges over a 10-month period commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].

e) Stranded Meters and Smart Meters

These regulatory balances relate to the provincial government’s decision to install smart meters throughout Ontario.
As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balances did not include carrying charges.

The net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of smart meters was reclassified from PP&E to a
new regulatory balance as at December 31, 2013. Depreciation expense on the stranded meters of $2.5 million was
recorded within net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax until the end of 2014. Included in the 2015-2019
rate application was recovery of the forecasted net book value of the stranded meters as at December 31, 2014. In
the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC’s request for recovery of the forecasted net book value of
$15.8 million over a 46-month period commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].
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On January 16, 2014, the OEB approved LDC's request for incremental revenue and disposition of the smart meter
regulatory balances [note 3[a]]. The OEB ruling on smart meters also permitted the recovery in principle of LDC's
allowed cost of capital on smart meters since 2008, with a rate order issued to this effect. This allows LDC to
recover the incremental revenue requirement associated with these assets for the period during which they remained
outside of rate base. Accordingly, a new regulatory balance of $25.2 million was recorded as at December 31, 2013
to reflect the future amount to be recovered through rates over a 36-month period commencing on May 1, 2014 and
ending on April 30, 2017. LDC recognized $9.5 million of smart meter incremental revenue within net movements
in regulatory balances, net of tax during 2014. LDC recognized distribution revenue of $10.9 million from the
collection of OEB-approved rate riders for the year ended December 31, 2015 [2014 - $13.8 million].

f) Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the level of CDM program activities included in LDC’s
load forecast used to set rates and the actual impact of authorized CDM activities achieved. Carrying charges were
added to the regulatory balance in accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.47% for the period from
January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015. In the CIR
decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC's request for disposition of $3.6 million inclusive of carrying
charges related to this variance for the 2011-2013 period [note 3[a]]. Based on that approval, a new regulatory
balance was recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the amount to be recovered through rates over a 10-month
period commencing on March 1, 2016. As at December 31, 2015, LDC also recorded an amount of $4.9 million and
$0.6 million inclusive of carrying charges related to the variance for 2014 and 2015, respectively.

g) Named Properties

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the forecasted net gains on certain properties that LDC
planned to sell and included as part of 2010 rates and the actual net gains realized upon the sale of the named
properties between 2007 to 2011. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC's request for
disposition of $5.8 million related to this variance [note 3[a]]. Based on that approval, a new regulatory balance
was recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the amount to be recovered through rates over a 46-month period
commencing on March 1, 2016. As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balance did not include carrying charges.

h) Capital Contributions

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between amounts included in rates for HONI capital contributions
and actual contributions in 2010 and 2011. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC's request for
disposition of $1.9 million related to this variance [note 3[a]]. Based on that approval, a new regulatory balance
was recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the amount to be recovered through rates over a 46-month period
commencing on March 1, 2016. As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balance did not include carrying charges.

i) OPEB Cash versus Accrual

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between LDC’s forecasted OPEB costs on an accrual basis and the
cash payments made to the OPEB plans. In the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]], the OEB directed LDC to
account for OPEB costs on a cash basis rather than accrual basis for rate-making purposes and approved a new
variance account to record the difference. This is a temporary arrangement, pending the OEB’s conclusion of the
sector-wide policy consultation it initiated on rate-regulated utility OPEB costs. LDC does not consider the OEB’s
direction to constitute a change in the basis of its recovery of OPEB costs at this time considering the OEB’s
approval of the variance account, which LDC is expected to apply for disposition in the future. LDC recorded $1.8
million to reflect the OPEB variance related to 2015. As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balance did not
include carrying charges.
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J) Deferred Taxes

This regulatory credit balance relates to both deferred tax amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 [note 4[a]] and to the
expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the
recognition of deferred tax assets. As at December 31, 2015, the regulatory balance did not include carrying
charges.

The amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 include the deferred tax liability related to regulatory balances of $42.1
million as at December 31, 2015 [December 31, 2014 - $32.7 million; January 1, 2014 - $16.4 million] offset by the
recognition of a regulatory balance in respect of additional temporary differences for which a deferred tax amount
was recognized of $26.2 million as at December 31, 2015 [December 31, 2014 - $39.9 million; January 1, 2014 -
$41.7 million].

The deferred tax amount related to the expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers was $98.9
million as at December 31, 2015 [December 31, 2014 - $150.6 million; January 1, 2014 - $157.3 million].

k) Tax-related Variance Accounts

This regulatory balance includes the revision of prior year tax positions based on reassessments received and in
process and income tax variances resulting from legislative or regulatory changes.

The revision of prior year tax position regulatory balance related to changes to certain prior year tax positions based
on reassessments received and in process, not reflected in electricity distribution rates charged to customers, in the
amount of $23.5 million as at December 31, 2015 [December 31, 2014 - $22.3 million; January 1, 2014 - $19.4
million]. An amount of $1.2 million was recorded to reflect new additions to the regulatory balance for the year
ended December 31, 2015 [2014 - $2.9 million]. Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance in
accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.47% for the period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and
1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 [January 1, 2014 — December 31, 2014 - 1.47%]. In
the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of $23.3 million inclusive of carrying charges over a
34-month period commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].

The income tax variance regulatory balance related to differences resulting from a legislative or regulatory change to
the tax rates or rules assumed in applications for electricity distribution rates in the amount of $3.0 million as at
December 31, 2015 [December 31, 2014 - $3.0 million; January 1, 2014 - $5.8 million]. These differences have
been deferred by LDC in accordance with the criteria set out in the accounting principles prescribed by the OEB.
Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance in accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.47% for
the period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31,
2015 [January 1, 2014 — December 31, 2014 - 1.47%]. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved
disposition of $3.0 million inclusive of carrying charges over a 10-month period commencing on March 1, 2016
[note 3[a]]-

On April 2, 2013, the OEB approved the disposition of $7.1 million of PILs regulatory variance accounts, over an
11-month period commencing on June 1, 2013 and ending on April 30, 2014. For the year ended December 31,
2014, electricity distribution rates charged to customers were reduced by $2.8 million.

I) Derecognition

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the revenue requirement on derecognition amounts for
PP&E and intangible assets included in the OEB-approved rates and the actual amounts of derecognition. This
account was approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]]. A new regulatory balance was
recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the derecognition variance related to 2015 of $9.9 million. Carrying
charges were added to the regulatory balance at a rate of 1.47% for the period from January 1, 2015 to March 31,
2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

26



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

m) Incremental Capital Module

This regulatory balance relates to the ICM application approved by the OEB and the associated rate riders, which
became effective June 1, 2013 [note 3[a]]. This account included the amount collected through the ICM rate riders
of $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 [2014 - $21.4 million], offset by the revenue recorded within
net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax as it related to the eligible in-service capital expenditures of $nil
million for the year ended December 31, 2015 [2014 - $25.1 million]. Carrying charges were added to the
regulatory balance in accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.47% for the period from January 1, 2015 to
March 31, 2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 [January 1, 2014 — December
31,2014 - 1.47%].

n) Gain on Disposal

This regulatory balance relates to the realized gain in connection with the disposal of certain properties by LDC
under the facilities consolidation program. This balance is expected to reduce future electricity distribution rates for
customers. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the forecasted net gains on the sale
of certain properties, including the future tax savings, over a 34-month period commencing on March 1, 2016 [note
3[a]]. The OEB also approved a variance account for LDC to record the difference between the total forecasted net
gains and future tax savings and the actual net gains and tax savings. The new regulatory balance recorded as at
December 31, 2015 reflected the forecasted net gains and future tax savings fully offset by the variance account.
The net amount of $5.9 million related to the realized gain in connection with the disposal of a surplus property by
LDC in the first quarter of 2015. Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance at a rate of 1.47% for the
period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

0) Capital-related Revenue Requirement

This regulatory balance relates to the asymmetrical variance between the cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related
revenue requirement included in rates and the actual capital in-service additions related revenue requirement over
the same period. This account was approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]]. A new
regulatory balance was recorded as at December 31, 2015 to reflect the capital-related revenue requirement variance
related to 2015 of $2.8 million. Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance at a rate of 1.47% for the
period from January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 and 1.10% for the period from April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

December 31 December 31 January 1

2015 2014 2014
3$ $ 3$
Trade payables 316.2 325.7 2745
Accrued liabilities 100.7 128.2 102.1
Due to related parties [note 23] 52.8 56.0 49.9
Other 1.9 22 —
471.6 512.1 426.5

27



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

11. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire PP&E
which have not yet been recognized into other revenue, and revenue not yet recognized from demand billable
activities.

December 31 December 31 January 1

2015 2014 2014
3$ $ 3

Capital contributions 103.0 726 45.7
Other 1.0 1.0 —
Total deferred revenue 104.0 73.6 457
Less: Current portion of deferred revenue relating to:

Capital contributions 2.7 12 —

Other 1.0 1.0 —
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 100.3 714 45.7

Reconciliation between the opening and closing capital contribution balances is as follows:

2015 2014
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 72.6 457
Receipt of capital contributions 33.0 282
Amortization (2.2 0.7)
Other (0.4) (0.6)
Balance, end of year 103.0 72.6
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12. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY

Notes payable to related party consist of the following:

December 31  December 31 January 1

2015 2014 2014
$ $ $
Notes payable to related party:
5.20% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 14, 2017 245.1 245.1 2451
4.54% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 12, 2019 245.1 245.1 245.1
5.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due May 21, 2040 200.0 200.0 200.0
3.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 18, 2021 300.0 300.0 300.0
2.96% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 10,2023 250.0 250.0 250.0
4.01% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 200.0 200.0 200.0
4.13% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due September 16,
2044 200.0 200.0 —
3.60% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due July 28, 2045 200.0 — —
3.988% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 450 — —
6.16% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on demand 45.0 45.0 45.0
3.32% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on the earlier of
demand and January 1, 2022 15.0 15.0 15.0
Total notes payable to related party 19452 1,700.2 1,500.2
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs 92 8.0 7.0

Current portion of notes payable to related party [note 23] 60.0 60.0 60.0
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party [note 23] 1,876.0 1,632.2 1,433.2

All notes payable to related party of LDC rank equally.

On September 16, 2014, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory
note is $200.0 million payable on September 16, 2044, which bears interest at a rate of 4.13% per annum. Interest is
calculated and payable semi-annually in arrears on March 16 and September 16 of each year. The net proceeds of
the promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

On March 16, 2015, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory note
is $200.0 million payable on July 28, 2045, which bears interest at a rate of 3.60% per annum. Interest is calculated
and payable semi-annually in arrears on January 28 and July 28 of each year. The net proceeds of the promissory
note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

On September 2, 2015, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory
note is $45.0 million payable on April 9, 2063, which bears interest at a rate of 3.988% per annum. Interest is
calculated and payable semi-annually in arrears on April 9 and October 9 of each year. The net proceeds of the
promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

13. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pension

LDC’s eligible employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan through OMERS. As at December 31, 2015,
the OMERS plan was 91.5% funded [December 31, 2014 — 90.8%]. OMERS has a strategy to return the plan to a
fully funded position. LDC is not able to assess the implications, if any, of this strategy or of the withdrawal of

other participating entities from the OMERS plan on its future contributions. For the year ended December 31,
2015, the total contributions of all participating employers and employees were approximately $3.8 billion [2014 -
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$3.7 hillion], of which LDC’s contributions were $17.2 million [2014 - $17.7 million], representing less than five
percent of total contributions to the OMERS plan. LDC expects to contribute approximately $17.9 million to the
OMERS plan in 2016.

Post-employment benefits other than pension

a) Benefit obligation

2015 2014
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 2874 236.0
Current service cost 56 5.0
Interest cost 114 11.0
Benefits paid (9.3) (11.2)
Experience loss @ 09 49
Actuarial loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions @ — 85
Actuarial loss arising from changes in financial assumptions @ — 326
Transfer from related parties 05 0.6
Balance, end of year 296.5 2874

@ Total experience loss and actuarial loss is $0.9 million [2014 - $46.0 million]. Actuarial loss on accumulated sick
leave credits of $0.8 million [2014 - $0.2 million actuarial gain] is recognized in benefit cost [note 13[c]] and $0.1
million in transfer from related parties [2014 - $0.1 million], and $nil [2014 - $46.1 million] of actuarial loss on
medical, dental and insurance benefits is recognized in OCI [note 13[d]].

The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at December 31, 2015 is 17.1 years [2014 — 17.7 years].
b) Amounts recognized in regulatory balances

As at December 31, 2015, the amount recognized in regulatory balances related to net actuarial loss and IFRS
transitional adjustments was $81.2 million [December 31, 2014 - $81.2 million; January 1, 2014 - $36.9 million]
[note 9[a]].

c) Benefit cost recognized

2015 2014
$ $
Current service cost 5.6 5.0
Interest cost 114 110
Actuarial loss (gain) on other employee benefits [note 13[a]] 0.8 (0.2)
Benefit cost 17.8 15.8
Capitalized to PP&E and intangible assets 77 6.3
Charged to operating expenses 10.1 9.5
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d) Amounts recognized in OCI (before income taxes)

2015 2014
$ $
Actuarial loss [note 13[a]] = 46.1
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI = (46.1)

e) Significant assumptions

2015 2014

Discount rate (%) used in the calculation of:
Benefit obligation as at December 31 4.00 4,00
Assumed medical and dental cost trend rates (%) as at December 31:
Rate of increase in dental costs assumed for next year 4.00 4.00
Rate of increase in medical costs assumed for next year
For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00
For other retirements 6.00 6.50
Rate that medical cost trend rate gradually declines to
For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00
For other retirements 5.00 5.00
Year that the medical cost trend rate reaches the ultimate trend rate
For pre July 2000 retirements 2015 2015
For other retirements 2018 2018

f) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for benefit obligation measurement purposes are discount rate and assumed
medical and dental cost trend rates. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably
possible changes of the assumptions, in isolation of one another, occurring at the end of the reporting period. This
analysis may not be representative of the actual change since it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Changes in key assumptions would have had the following effect on the benefit obligation:

Change in assumption

As reported 296.5 2874
Discount rate 1% - (45.5) (44.1)
1% — 54.1 524
Medical and dental cost trend rate 1% - 38.6 374
1% — (34.7) (33.6)
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14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
LDC’s main objectives when managing capital are to:

ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain, refurbish and expand the electricity distribution system;
ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents, investments or
borrowings through TH Energy or the Corporation) to meet the needs of the business; and

minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic
risks and conditions.

LDC monitors forecasted cash flows, capital expenditures, debt repayment and key credit ratios similar to those used
by key rating agencies. LDC manages capital by preparing short-term and long-term cash flow forecasts. In
addition, LDC borrows from TH Energy or the Corporation as required to help fund some of the periodic net cash
outflows and to maintain available liquidity. There have been no changes in LDC’s approach to capital management
during the year. As at December 31, 2015, LDC’s definition of capital included bank indebtedness, borrowings
through the Corporation and obligations under finance leases, including the current portion thereof, and equity, and
had remained unchanged from the definition as at December 31, 2014 and as at January 1, 2014. As at December
31, 2015, equity amounted to $1,414.6 million [December 31, 2014 - $1,284.2 million; January 1, 2014 - $1,174.3
million], and bank indebtedness, borrowings through the Corporation and obligations under finance leases, including
the current portion thereof, amounted to $2,132.9 million [December 31, 2014 - $2,009.6 million; January 1, 2014 -
$1,653.5 million].

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Recognition and measurement

As at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, bank indebtedness, advance from related party, and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximated their carrying amounts due to the short maturity of these instruments [note 4[j]].
The fair values of customer deposits approximate their carrying amounts taking into account interest accrued on the
outstanding balance. Obligations under finance leases are measured based on a discounted cash flow analysis and
approximate the carrying amounts as management believes that the fixed interest rates are representative of current
market rates.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of LDC’s notes payable consist of the following:

December 31 December 31

2015 2014

$ $

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
amount value @ amount value @ amount value @
Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
5.20% due November 14, 2017 244.7 262.1 244.6 268.1 2445 269.6
4.54% due November 12, 2019 244 4 2715 244.2 270.9 244.1 265.2
5.59% due May 21, 2040 198.8 248.2 198.8 2554 198.7 226.7
3.59% due November 18, 2021 298.9 326.2 298.7 321.1 298.5 302.8
2.96% due April 10, 2023 249.0 259.7 248.8 254.1 248.7 2329
4.01% due April 9, 2063 198.7 194.2 198.7 201.8 198.7 1729
4.13% due September 16, 2044 198.4 2034 198.4 209.2 — —
3.60% due July 28, 2045 198.6 185.2 — — — —
3.988% due April 9, 2063 445 435 — — — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on demand 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1, 2022 15.0 16.1 15.0 15.0 150 15.0
1,936.0 2,055.1 1,692.2 1,840.6 1,493.2 1,530.1

@ The fair value measurement of financial instruments for which the fair value has been disclosed is included in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy [note 4[j]].

b) Financial risks

The following is a discussion of financial risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified by LDC for
financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks, nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks
listed.

Credit risk

LDC is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. LDC’s
exposure to credit risk primarily relates to accounts receivable and unbilled revenue. LDC monitors and limits its
exposure to credit risk on a continuous basis.

LDC’s credit risk associated with accounts receivable is primarily related to electricity bill payments from
customers. As at December 31, 2015, LDC had approximately 756,000 customers. LDC obtains security
instruments from certain customers in accordance with direction provided by the OEB. As at December 31, 2015,
LDC held security deposits in the amount of $47.4 million [December 31, 2014 - $43.2 million; January 1, 2014 -
$44.7 million], of which $25.1 million [December 31, 2014 - $19.8 million; January 1, 2014 - $22.2 million] was
related to security deposits on offers to connect to guarantee the payment of additional costs related to expansion
projects. As at December 31, 2015, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any
customer. The credit risk and mitigation strategies with respect to unbilled revenue are the same as for accounts
receivable. The credit risk related to cash, cash equivalents and investments is mitigated by LDC’s treasury policies
on assessing and monitoring the credit exposures of counterparties.

LDC did not have any single customer that generated more than 10% of total revenue for the years ended December
31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and unbilled revenue is as follows:

December 31 December 31  January 1

2015 2014
$ $

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts)

Outstanding for not more than 30 days 1705 179.9 174.8

Outstanding for more than 30 days and not more than 120 days 16.4 214 20.9

Outstanding for more than 120 days 3.1 4.4 3.2
Total accounts receivable 190.0 205.7 198.9
Unbilled revenue 319.5 306.6 326.1
Total accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 509.5 512.3 525.0

LDC has a broad base of customers. As at December 31, 2015, LDC’s accounts receivable and unbilled revenue
which were not past due or impaired were assessed by management to have no significant collection risk and no
additional allowance for doubtful accounts was required for these balances.

Reconciliation between the opening and closing allowance for doubtful accounts balances is as follows:

2015 2014
$ $
Balance, beginning of year (11.8) (10.8)
Provision for doubtful accounts (7.1) (7.4)
Write-offs 76 71
Recoveries 0.2) (0.7)
Balance, end of year (11.5) (11.8)

Unbilled revenue represents amounts for which LDC has a contractual right to receive cash through future billings
and are unbilled at period-end. Unbilled revenue is considered current and no allowance for doubtful accounts was
provided as at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014.

Interest rate risk

LDC is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates for the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations [note
13[f]]. LDC is also exposed to short-term interest rate risk on the net of cash and cash equivalents, advances from
related party, and customer deposits. LDC manages interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating rate
instruments, and taking action as necessary to maintain an appropriate balance. Advances from related party bear
interest based on the prevailing market conditions at the time of issuance.

As at December 31, 2015, aside from the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations, LDC was exposed to
interest rate risk predominately from advances from the Corporation and customer deposits, while most of its
remaining obligations were either non-interest bearing or bear fixed interest rates, and its financial assets were
predominately short-term in nature and mostly non-interest bearing. LDC estimates that a 100 basis point increase
(decrease) in short-term interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) of
approximately $2.4 million to annual finance costs.

Liquidity risk
LDC is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. LDC monitors and

manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial requirements. LDC
has access to credit facilities and borrowings through the Corporation and monitors cash balances daily. LDC’s
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objective is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is on hand to meet obligations as they fall due while minimizing
finance costs.

Liquidity risks associated with financial commitments are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Due Due Due Due Due Due after 5
within 1 within2  within3  within4 within 5 years
year years years years years
$ $ $ $ $
Bank indebtedness 188.9 — — — — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ) 454.9 — — — — —
Obligations under finance lease 35 33 17 — — —
Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
5.20% due November 14, 2017 — 245.1 — — — —
4.54% due November 12, 2019 — — — 245.1 — —
5.59% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0
3.59% due November 18, 2021 — — — — — 300.0
2.96% due April 10, 2023 — — — — — 250.0
4.01% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 200.0
4.13% due September 16, 2044 — — — — — 200.0
3.60% due July 28, 2045 — — — — — 200.0
3.988% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 45.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on demand 45.0 — — — — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1,
2022 15.0 — — — — —
Interest payments on long-term notes
payable and demand notes payable 82.3 82.3 69.3 69.3 57.9 1,046.4
789.6 330.7 710 3144 57.9 2,441.4

@ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $16.7 million of accrued interest on long-term notes payable
and demand notes payable included within “Interest payments on long-term notes payable and demand notes
payable”.
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December 31, 2014

Due Due Due Due Due Due after 5
within 1 within2  within3  within4 within5 years
year years years years years
$ $ $ $ $

Advance from related party 308.0 — — — — —

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ) 498.9 — — — — —

Obligations under finance lease 3.0 3.0 28 14 — —

Long-term notes payable to the Corporation

5.20% due November 14, 2017 — — 245.1 — — —

4.54% due November 12, 2019 — — — — 245.1 —

5.59% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0

3.59% due November 18, 2021 — — — — — 300.0

2.96% due April 10, 2023 — — — — — 250.0

4.01% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 200.0

4.13% due September 16, 2044 — — — — — 200.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due

on demand 45.0 — — — — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1,

2022 15.0 — — — — —
Interest payments on long-term notes

payable and demand notes payable 72.8 72.8 72.8 60.0 60.0 838.5

942.7 75.8 320.7 61.4 305.1 1,988.5

@ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $13.2 million of accrued interest on long-term notes payable
and demand notes payable included within “Interest payments on long-term notes payable and demand notes
payable”.
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January 1, 2014

Due Due Due Due Due Due after 5
within 1 within2  within3  within4 within5 years
year years years years years
$ $ $ $ $

Advance from related party 150.0 — — — — —

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ) 4157 — — — — —

Obligations under finance lease 25 25 25 25 14 —

Long-term notes payable to the Corporation

5.20% due November 14, 2017 — — — 245.1 — —

4.54% due November 12, 2019 — — — — — 245.1

5.59% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0

3.59% due November 18, 2021 — — — — — 300.0

2.96% due April 10, 2023 — — — — — 250.0

4.01% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 200.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due

on demand 45.0 — — — — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1,

2022 15.0 — — — — —
Interest payments on long-term notes

payable and demand notes payable 50.5 61.2 61.2 61.2 48.5 674.0

678.7 63.7 63.7 308.8 49.9 1,869.1

@ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $10.8 million of accrued interest on long-term notes payable
and demand notes payable included within “Interest payments on long-term notes payable and demand notes
payable”.

Foreign exchange risk
As at December 31, 2015, LDC had limited exposure to the changing values of foreign currencies. While LDC

purchases goods and services which are payable in US dollars, and purchases US currency to meet the related
commitments when required, the impact of these transactions is not material to the financial statements.

16. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
As at December 31, 2015, $32.4 million [December 31, 2014 - $29.7 million; January 1, 2014 - $50.1 million] was

utilized under the Corporation’s demand credit facility in the form of letters of credit mainly to satisfy the prescribed
prudential requirements of LDC with the IESO for the purchase of electricity.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital consists of the following:

December 31 December 31 January 1

2015 2014 2014
$ $ $

Authorized
The authorized share capital of LDC consists of an
unlimited number of common shares without par value.

Issued and outstanding
1,000 common shares, of which all were fully paid. 556.3 556.3 556.3

18. OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue consists of the following:

2015 2014
$ $
Other regulatory service charges 135 13.2
Pole and duct rentals 105 8.7
Ancillary services revenue 9.9 9.7
Street lighting service fee 4.7 5.1
Amortization of deferred revenue 2.2 0.7
Miscellaneous 7.5 14.3
48.3 51.7
19. OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses consist of the following:
2015 2014
$ $
Salaries and benefits 224.9 224.7
External services 93.1 88.1
Materials and supplies 14.8 15.2
Other support costs 37.7 36.1
Less: Capitalized costs (111.5) (106.0)
259.0 258.1

® Includes taxes other than income taxes, utilities, rental, communication, insurance, and other general and
administrative expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, LDC recognized operating expenses of $6.6 million related to materials and
supplies used to service electrical distribution assets [2014 - $5.8 million].
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20. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs consist of the following:

2015 2014
$ $
Interest income (14) (1.0
Interest expense
Interest on long-term debt @ 79.8 675
Interest on short-term debt 45 46
Other interest 11 14
Capitalized borrowing costs (10.8) (8.1)
73.2 64.4

@ Includes amortization of debt issuance costs, discounts and premiums.

21. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined statutory Canadian
federal and provincial income tax rate. Reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax
rate to the income tax provision is set out below:

2015 2014
$ $

Rate reconciliation before net movements in regulatory balances
Income before income taxes 1159 56.9
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 30.7 151
Change in unrecognized tax benefits — 0.1
Other 0.8 (1.3)
Income tax expense 315 13.9
Effective tax rate 27.2% 24.5%
Rate reconciliation after net movements in regulatory balances
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances, before income tax ® 133.3 1230
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 353 32.6
Temporary differences recoverable in future rates (31.7) (18.0)
Change in unrecognized tax benefits — 0.1
Other (0.7) (1.6)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in 29 13.1
regulatory balances
Effective tax rate 22% 10.7%

@ Income tax includes income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances.
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Income tax expense as presented in the statements of income and comprehensive income are as follows:

2015 2014
$ $

Income tax expense 315 13.9
Income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances (28.6) (0.8)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in

regulatory balances 29 13.1
Income tax recovery in OCI — (12.2)
Income tax expense in OCI recorded in net movements in regulatory balances — 12.2

Income tax expense in OCI — —

Components of income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances are as
follows:

2015 2014
$ $

Current tax expense
Current year 3.1 13.7
Adjustment for tax positions taken in prior periods (0.3) (12.0)

28 12.7
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.1 0.4
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in
regulatory balances 29 13.1

Deferred tax assets consist of the following:

Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 in net in OClI December 31
2015 income 2015
$ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 55.0 (20.5) — 34.5
Post-employment benefits 76.2 24 — 78.6
Other taxable temporary differences 11.9 (10.7) — 1.2
143.1 (28.8) — 1143
Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 in net in OClI December 31
2014 income 2014
$ $ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 70.4 (15.4) — 55.0
Post-employment benefits 62.6 14 12.2 76.2
Other taxable temporary differences (0.9) 12.8 — 11.9
132.1 (12.2) 12.2 1431

LDC had recorded a net deferred tax asset as it expects to earn sufficient taxable income to realize the future
reversal of deductible temporary differences.
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22. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in non-cash working capital provided/(used) cash as follows:

2015 2014
$ $

Accounts receivable 14.3 (7.8)
Unbilled revenue (12.9) 195
Income tax receivable (8.8) 0.1
Materials and supplies (1.2) —
Other current assets — (1.1)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9.1 432
Deferred revenue 15 22
Deferred conservation credit 17.9 (20.0)
Other current liabilities 0.6 0.2

205 36.3

Reconciliation between the amount presented on the statements of cash flows after factoring in the non-cash

additions and total additions to PP&E and intangible assets is as follows:

2015 2014
$ $

Purchase of PP&E, cash basis 5479 523.3
Net change in accruals related to PP&E (36.4) 483
Other 17 51
Total additions to PP&E 5132 576.7
Purchase of intangible assets, cash basis 21.1 46.8
Total additions to PP&E and intangible assets 534.3 623.5
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For LDC, transactions with related parties include transactions with the City, which wholly owns the Corporation,

the Corporation and TH Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation.

City Corporation | THEnergy
$ $ | $
For period ended December 31, 2015
Revenues 222.6 — 7.6
Operating expenses and capital expenditures 19.7 3.6 0.5
Finance costs — 80.4 —
As at December 31, 2015
Accounts receivable 3.2 — 1.0
Unbilled revenue 20.8 — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 36.6 16.2 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 60.0 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,876.0 —
Customer deposits 11.7 — —
Deferred revenue 1.0 — —
City Corporation TH Energy
$ $ $
For period ended December 31, 2014
Revenues 2225 — 6.1
Operating expenses (recoveries) and capital expenditures 20.7 24 (0.6)
Finance costs — 68.8 —
As at December 31, 2014
Accounts receivable 7.2 — 1.0
Unbilled revenue 22.3 — —
Advance from related party — 308.0 —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41.7 14.3 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 60.0 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,632.2 —
Customer deposits 8.2 — —
Deferred revenue 15 — —
City Corporation TH Energy
$ $ $
As at January 1, 2014
Accounts receivable 2.1 — —
Unbilled revenue 19.4 — —
Advance from related party — 150.0 —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 38.3 11.6 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 60.0 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,433.2 —
Customer deposits 8.8 — —
Deferred revenue 6.8 — —

Revenues represent amounts charged to the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and to TH Energy
for street lighting and demand billable services. Operating expenses and capital expenditures represent amounts
charged by the City for purchased road cut repairs, property taxes and other services, and the Corporation for
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purchased corporate and management services. Operating expense recoveries represent amounts charged to TH
Energy for the provision of goods and services. Finance costs represent interest charged by the Corporation on the
advances and notes payable [note 12].

Accounts receivable represents receivables from the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and TH
Energy for the provision of goods and services. Unbilled revenue represents receivables from the City mainly
related to electricity provided and not yet billed. Advance from related party represents amounts payable to the
Corporation for short-term borrowings obtained under the Corporation’s revolving credit facility and commercial
paper program. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts payable to the City related to road cut
repairs and other services. Included in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities are amounts payable to the
Corporation for purchased corporate and management services and interest accruing on the notes payable to the
Corporation. Notes payable to related party represent amounts borrowed from the Corporation [note 12]. Customer
deposits represent amounts received from the City for future expansion projects. Deferred revenue represents
amounts received from the City primarily for the construction of electricity distribution assets.

Key management personnel are comprised of LDC’s senior executive officers and members of the Board of
Directors. The compensation costs associated with the key management personnel are as follows:

2015 2014

$ $
Short-term employee benefits 4.2 4.2
Post-employment benefits 1.0 0.8
Termination benefits 0.9 1.0
6.1 6.0

24. COMMITMENTS

Operating leases and capital projects

As at December 31, 2015, the future minimum payments under property operating leases, capital projects and other
commitments were as follows:

Operating Capital
leases projects @and

other

$ $
Less than one year 6.2 37.3
Between one and five years 51 205
More than five years — —
Total amount of future minimum payments @ 11.3 57.8

@ Refer to note 15 for future cash outflows excluded from the table above.
@ Reflects capital project commitments for construction services and estimated capital contributions.

LDC has the option to renew its two major property operating leases at the end of the current lease term for an
additional five years at the then fair rental value.

Operating lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $6.3 million [2014 - $6.2 million].
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Finance leases

As at December 31, 2015, December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014, reconciliation between the future minimum
lease payments and their present value was as follows:

December 31 December 31 NELIIETY
2015 2014 2014
$ $ $
Present Present Present
Future value of Future value of Future value of
minimum minimum | minimum minimum | minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments | payments Interest payments | payments Interest payments

Less than one year 35 03 32 30 04 26 25 04 21

Between one and five years 5.0 0.2 48 7.2 04 6.8 89 0.7 8.2

More than five years — — — — — — — — —
85 05 8.0 10.2 08 94 114 1.1 10.3

Current portion included

in Other liabilities 3.2 2.6 2.1

Non-current portion

included in Other liabilities 4.8 6.8 8.2

25. CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, LDC is subject to various legal actions and claims from customers, suppliers,
former employees and other parties. On an ongoing basis, LDC assesses the likelihood of any adverse judgments or
outcomes as well as potential ranges of probable costs and losses. A determination of the provision required, if any,
for these contingencies is made after an analysis of each individual issue. The provision may change in the future
due to new developments in each matter or changes in approach, such as a change in settlement strategy. If damages
were awarded under these actions, LDC would make a claim under any applicable liability insurance policies which
LDC believes would cover any damages which may become payable by LDC in connection with these actions,
subject to such claim not being disputed by the insurer.

2 Secord Avenue

An action was commenced against LDC in September 2008 in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice under the Class
Proceedings Act which sought damages in the amount of $30.0 million as compensation for damages allegedly
suffered as a result of a fire and explosion in an underground vault at 2 Secord Avenue on July 20, 2008. On June
16, 2014, a settlement reached by the parties was approved by Order of the Ontario Superior Court of Justice
pursuant to which LDC paid the amount of $6.5 million, including all taxes and legal fees in settlement of the action
of the class plaintiffs. LDC’s liability insurance covered the settlement payment.

On March 10, 2009, a third party claim was served by LDC related to the above action and on June 15, 2009, a third
party defence and counterclaim against LDC seeking damages in the amount of $51.0 million were served by the
owner and manager of 2 Secord Avenue. Given the preliminary status of the unsettled actions, it is not possible to
reasonably quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial performance of LDC.

On December 20, 2010, LDC was served with a statement of claim by the City seeking damages in the amount of
$2.0 million as a result of the fire at 2 Secord Avenue. A statement of defence and a third party claim have been
served. Given the preliminary status of this action, it is not possible to reasonably quantify the effect, if any, of this
action on the financial performance of LDC.
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By order of the court dated January 24, 2012, the above actions involving the same incident will be tried at the same
time or consecutively.

2369 Lakeshore Boulevard West

A third party action was commenced against LDC in October 2009 in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice under
the Class Proceedings Act seeking damages in the amount of $30.0 million as compensation for damages allegedly
suffered as a result of a fire in the electrical room at 2369 Lakeshore Boulevard West on March 19, 2009.
Subsequently, in March 2010, the plaintiff in the main action amended its statement of claim to add LDC as a
defendant. The plaintiff in the main action seeks general damages in the amount of $10.0 million and special
damages in the amount of $20.0 million from LDC. The plaintiff’s motion for certification of the class action was
granted on September 11, 2014. Statements of defence to the main action and to the third party claim have not been
filed. Given the preliminary status of these actions, it is not possible at this time to reasonably quantify the effect, if
any, of these actions on the financial performance of LDC.

On August 29, 2011, LDC was served with a statement of claim by the owner of the building and the property
management company for the building seeking damages in the amount of $2.0 million as a result of the fire at 2369
Lakeshore Boulevard West. LDC has filed a statement of defence and counterclaim. Given the preliminary status
of this action, it is not possible to reasonably quantify the effect, if any, of this action on the financial performance
of LDC.

26. IFRS TRANSITION

On July 21, 2011, the OSC granted an exemption to allow the Corporation to prepare its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with US GAAP for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2012 but before January 1,
2015. In the absence of the exemption, the Corporation would have been required to adopt IFRS on January 1,
2012. Accordingly, LDC decided to adopt US GAAP at the time to mirror the decision of the Corporation. On
March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved the adoption of IFRS for the year beginning on
January 1, 2015 due to the pending expiration of the exemption. Since the Corporation was converting to IFRS, on
March 19, 2014 the Board of Directors of LDC also approved the adoption of IFRS for the year beginning on
January 1, 2015. As described in note 2, these are LDC’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRS. IFRS 1 sets out the transitional requirements that LDC must apply in preparing its first IFRS financial
statements.

The accounting policies set out in notes 2 and 4 have been applied in preparing the financial statements as at and for
the year ended December 31, 2015, the comparative information as at and for the year ended December 31, 2014
and the opening IFRS balance sheet as at January 1, 2014 (LDC’s date of transition to IFRS). All comparative
figures for 2014 that were previously reported in accordance with US GAAP are now reported in accordance with
IFRS. An explanation of the significant transitional adjustments as a result of the transition from US GAAP to IFRS
on LDC’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and
accompanying notes.

IFRS 1 requires retrospective application of IFRS in place as at the reporting date. However, IFRS 1 contains
certain mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions from the general requirement for retrospective application.
LDC applied the following mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions in the preparation of the opening IFRS
balance sheet:

Mandatory exceptions
IFRS 1 states that estimates made in accordance with IFRS at the date of transition should be consistent with

estimates made under previous GAAP. Accordingly, estimates previously made under US GAAP were not revised
at the date of transition except where necessary to reflect changes in accounting policies.
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Optional exemptions
a) Rate-regulated deemed cost

Entities with operations subject to rate regulation may hold items of PP&E or intangible assets where the carrying
amount of such items might include amounts that were determined under previous GAAP but do not qualify for
capitalization under IFRS. In such cases, a first-time adopter may deem the previous GAAP carrying amount of
such items at the date of transition as the new IFRS cost basis. Under US GAAP, the carrying amount of LDC’s
PP&E and intangible assets used in rate-regulated activities was based on historical cost but included certain
amounts that would not qualify for capitalization under IFRS.

LDC qualifies for the IFRS 1 exemption as it is subject to rate regulation. Accordingly, LDC elected to use the
deemed cost exemption for its PP&E and intangible assets, except for construction in progress items for which
capital contributions were received. The accumulated depreciation recognized under US GAAP prior to the
transition date was included as part of the deemed cost such that the carrying amounts were not affected. The
impact of this change was a decrease to both the cost and accumulated depreciation of PP&E by $2,424.0 million
and to both the cost and accumulated amortization of intangible assets by $201.9 million, as at January 1, 2014.

LDC tested for asset impairment under this exemption and no impairment was recorded.
b) Borrowing costs

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs [“IAS 23"] specifies detailed methodology for capitalizing borrowing costs. Under US
GAAP, an allowance for funds used during construction was applied and capitalized as part of the cost of PP&E and
intangible assets, where applicable. Under an optional exemption in IFRS 1, an entity would be exempted from
determining the applicable borrowing costs under IFRS for items reconstructed under IFRS. LDC elected this
exemption and used the borrowing costs determined under US GAAP at the date of transition and applied IAS 23
prospectively to borrowing costs for qualifying assets capitalized after the transition date.

c) Decommissioning costs included in PP&E

IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities requires specified changes in a
decommissioning, restoration or similar liability to be adjusted retrospectively from the cost of the asset to which it
relates, with the adjusted depreciable amount of the asset being depreciated prospectively over its remaining useful
life. LDC elected the exemption available in IFRS 1 which allows a first-time adopter to use a simplified method to
recalculate its decommissioning provisions in accordance with IFRS at the transition date. The effect of electing the
exemption was an increase to regulatory balances and a decrease to PP&E of $0.9 million as at January 1, 2014,

d) Leases

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease [“IFRIC 4] requires the assessment of whether an
arrangement contains a lease to be based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date of the inception of the
arrangement. Under an optional exemption in IFRS 1, an entity that made the same determination of whether an
arrangement contains a lease under its previous GAAP as that required by IFRIC 4, but at a date other than that
required by IFRIC 4, does not have to reassess that determination when it adopts IFRS. As LDC made the same
determination of whether an arrangement contained a lease under US GAAP as that required by IFRIC 4, LDC
elected this exemption and did not reassess its arrangements at the date of transition.

€) Business combinations
IFRS 1 provides an optional exemption for a first-time adopter to elect not to apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations

[“IFRS 3”] retrospectively to past business combinations that occurred before the date of transition to IFRS, or to
elect to restate all business combinations to comply with IFRS 3 prospectively from any date before the date of
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transition. LDC elected not to apply IFRS 3 to past business combinations that occurred prior to the date of
transition.

f) Transfer of Assets from Customers (Capital Contributions)

IFRS 1 provides an optional exemption for a first-time adopter to apply IFRIC 18 prospectively to transfers of assets
from customers received on or after the date of transition. LDC did not elect this exemption and instead applied
IFRIC 18 retrospectively to all customer contributions received prior to the date of transition. However, the use of
the rate-regulated deemed cost exemption noted above resulted in no adjustment to the capital contributions included
in the PP&E deemed cost.

The reconciliation of the January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014 balance sheets from US GAAP to IFRS is as
follows:
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BALANCE SHEET

Transitional

Asat January 1, 2014 Notes US GAAP  Adjustments IFRS

$ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 15.7 — 15.7
Accounts receivable 198.9 — 198.9
Unbilled revenue 326.1 — 326.1
Income tax receivable 0.3 — 0.3
Materials and supplies 8.6 — 8.6
Other assets B 8.9 0.1) 8.8
Regulatory assets A 7.1 (7.1) —
Total current assets 565.6 (7.2) 558.4
Property, plant and equipment A B,C 2,640.0 180.8 2,820.8
Intangible assets 1715 — 171.5
Deferred tax assets A 155.9 (23.8) 132.1
Other assets B 8.0 (7.1) 0.9
Regulatory assets A 234.4 (234.4) —
Total assets 3,775.4 91.7) 3,683.7
Regulatory balances A D — 88.3 88.3
Total assets and regulatory balances 3,775.4 (3.4) 3,772.0
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Advance from related party 150.0 — 150.0
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities c 455.7 (29.2) 426.5
Customer deposits 37.3 — 37.3
Deferred conservation credit 20.0 — 20.0
Post-employment benefits D 8.0 8.0 —
Other liabilities 2.1 — 2.1
Notes payable to related party 60.0 — 60.0
Regulatory liabilities A 25 (2.5) —
Total current liabilities 735.6 (39.7) 695.9
Notes payable to related party 1,433.2 — 1,433.2
Customer deposits 7.4 — 74
Deferred revenue C — 457 45.7
Post-employment benefits D 230.8 52 236.0
Other liabilities 14.4 0.1 145
Regulatory liabilities A 180.6 (180.6) —
Total liabilities 2,602.0 (169.3) 2,432.7
Equity
Share capital 556.3 — 556.3
Retained earnings D 604.3 0.9 605.2
Contributed surplus 12.8 — 12.8
Total equity 1173.4 0.9 1,174.3
Total liabilities and equity 3,775.4 (168.4) 3,607.0
Regulatory balances A — 165.0 165.0
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 3,775.4 (3.4) 3,772.0
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BALANCE SHEET

Transitional

As at December 31, 2014 Notes US GAAP  Adjustments IFRS

$ $ $
ASSETS
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 84.7 — 84.7
Accounts receivable 205.7 — 205.7
Unbilled revenue 306.6 — 306.6
Income tax receivable 0.2 — 0.2
Materials and supplies 8.6 — 8.6
Other assets B 10.0 0.1) 9.9
Regulatory assets A 118 (11.8) —
Assets held for sale 4.0 — 4.0
Total current assets 631.6 (11.9) 619.7
Property, plant and equipment A/ B CD,EF 2,792.5 4320 3,2245
Intangible assets E 197.9 08 198.7
Deferred tax assets A 129.8 133 143.1
Other assets B 8.1 6.9) 12
Regulatory assets A 564.4 (564.4) —
Total assets 4,324.3 (137.1) 4,187.2
Regulatory balances A D E F — 197.1 197.1
Total assets and regulatory balances 4,324.3 60.0 4,384.3
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Advance from related party 308.0 — 308.0
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities C 535.0 (22.9) 512.1
Customer deposits 385 — 385
Deferred revenue Cc 1.0 12 22
Post-employment benefits D 8.0 8.0) —
Other liabilities 26 — 26
Notes payable to related party 60.0 — 60.0
Regulatory liabilities A 16 (1.6) —
Total current liabilities 954.7 (31.3) 9234
Notes payable to related party 1,632.2 — 1,632.2
Customer deposits 4.7 — 4.7
Deferred revenue Cc — 714 714
Post-employment benefits D 285.6 18 287.4
Other liabilities 6.8 12 8.0
Regulatory liabilities A 156.2 (156.2) —
Total liabilities 3,040.2 (113.1) 2,927.1
Equity
Share capital 556.3 — 556.3
Retained earnings A, D 715.0 01 715.1
Contributed surplus 12.8 — 12.8
Total equity 1,284.1 01 1,284.2
Total liabilities and equity 43243 (113.0) 42113
Regulatory balances A — 1730 173.0
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 43243 60.0 4,384.3
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The reconciliations of the statement of income and the statement of comprehensive income from US GAAP to IFRS

for the year ended December 31, 2014 are as follows:

STATEMENT OF INCOME

Transitional

Year ended December 31, 2014 Notes US GAAP  Adjustments IFRS

$ $ $
Revenues
Energy sales A 2,700.4 (45.4) 2,655.0
Distribution revenue A 554.2 09 555.1
Other C 50.6 11 51.7

3,305.2 (43.4) 3,261.8
Expenses
Energy purchases 2,700.4 — 2,700.4
Operating expenses A D 257.8 03 258.1
Depreciation and amortization AC,F 159.4 241 183.5

3,117.6 244 3,142.0
Finance costs AE 66.9 2.5) 64.4
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment 15 — 15
Income before income taxes 122.2 (65.3) 56.9
Income tax expense A 115 24 13.9
Net income 110.7 (67.7) 43.0
Net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax ADEF — 66.9 66.9
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 110.7 0.8) 109.9

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Transitional

Year ended December 31, 2014 Notes US GAAP Adjustments IFRS

$ $ $
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 110.7 0.8) 109.9
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to income or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax of $12.2 A D — (33.9) (33.9)
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax of $12.2 A D — 339 33.9
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — —
Total comprehensive income 110.7 (0.8) 109.9
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The reconciliation of the statement of changes in equity from US GAAP to IFRS for the year ended December 31,
2014 is as follows:

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Transitional
Year ended December 31, 2014 Notes US GAAP  Adjustments IFRS
$ $ $
Share capital 556.3 — 556.3
Retained earnings, beginning of year D 604.3 09 605.2
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 110.7 (0.8) 109.9
Retained earnings, end of year 715.0 0.1 715.1
Contributed surplus 12.8 — 12.8
Total equity 1,284.1 0.1 1,284.2

Notes to the transitional adjustments

A. Regulatory balances

IFRS 14 permits a rate-regulated entity to continue to apply its previous GAAP accounting policies for the
recognition, measurement, impairment and derecognition of regulatory balances. However, all regulatory balances
and related deferred tax amounts are reclassified to a new and separate section of the balance sheet. As well, the net
income effect of all changes in regulatory balances must be segregated in a new separate section of the statement of
income. Amounts that are permitted or required to be recognized under another IFRS are excluded from the
regulatory balances. The effect of the reclassifications would enhance comparability of IFRS 14 compliant financial
statements with those entities not applying IFRS 14. IFRS 14 also requires disclosure regarding the movements in
the period, risks, and expected period of recovery/amortization of individual regulatory balances.

For LDC, the impact of IFRS 14 at January 1, 2014 was to transfer the ICM eligible in-service capital expenditures
[note 9[m]] to PP&E, to transfer the deferred tax asset gross-up and deferred tax liabilities on regulatory balances to
regulatory balances, and to transfer all other regulatory debit and credit balances to separate lines below what was
formerly known as “Total assets” and “Total liabilities and equity”, respectively. The impact of this change as at
January 1, 2014 was to reduce current regulatory assets by $7.1 million, non-current regulatory assets by $234.4
million, deferred tax assets by $23.8 million, current regulatory liabilities by $2.5 million and non-current regulatory
liabilities by $180.6 million, and increase PP&E by $157.0 million, regulatory debit balances by $90.2 million and
regulatory credit balances by $165.0 million.

As at December 31, 2014, the impact was to reduce current regulatory assets by $11.8 million, non-current
regulatory assets by $564.4 million, current regulatory liabilities by $1.6 million and non-current regulatory
liabilities by $156.2 million, and increase PP&E by $399.0 million, deferred tax assets by $13.3 million, regulatory
debit balances by $179.0 million and regulatory credit balances by $173.0 million. For the year ended December
31, 2014, the impact was to increase distribution revenue by $0.9 million, operating expenses by $2.6 million,
income tax expense by $0.8 million, finance costs by $0.1 million, net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax
by $45.4 million and net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax by $33.9 million, and to
decrease energy sales by $45.4 million, depreciation and amortization expense by $2.5 million, and remeasurements
of post-employment benefits, net of tax within OCI by $33.9 million.
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B. Prepaid lease

Under US GAAP, prepaid land lease was included in other assets. Under IFRS, prepaid land lease is included in
PP&E as a finance lease as substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the land are
transferred to LDC. The impact as at January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014 was a decrease to current other assets
of $0.1 million, a decrease to non-current other assets of $7.1 million and $7.0 million, respectively, and an increase
to PP&E of $7.2 million and $7.1 million, respectively.

C. Capital contributions

Under US GAAP, capital contributions received and used to finance additions to PP&E were offset against the cost
of the constructed asset and depreciated at an equivalent rate as the related PP&E as a reduction in depreciation
expense. Under IFRIC 18, contributions received in order to construct an item of PP&E are treated as deferred
revenue and recognized as revenues over the useful lives of the related PP&E. LDC applied IFRIC 18 to capital
contributions received for projects not yet in service, excluding PP&E items for which the deemed cost exemption
was applied. As at January 1, 2014, the impact was to increase PP&E by $16.5 million, decrease accounts payable
and accrued liabilities by $29.2 million and increase deferred revenue by $45.7 million. As at December 31, 2014,
the impact was to increase PP&E by $50.5 million, current deferred revenue by $1.2 million and non-current
deferred revenue by $71.4 million, and reduce accounts payable and accrued liabilities by $22.1 million. For the
year ended December 31, 2014, $0.7 million was reclassified from depreciation and amortization expense to other
revenue.

D. Employee benefits

The attribution methods and attribution periods are different between IFRS and US GAAP and result in a
measurement difference of the post-employment benefit liability. In addition, under IFRS, a liability is recognized
for both non-vested accumulating and vested sick leave benefits, unlike US GAAP, which only requires a liability
for the vested sick leave component. Under IFRS, actuarial gains and losses resulting from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in OCI as they arise, and amounts related to rate regulation are
subsequently reclassified to a regulatory balance on the balance sheets. The impact of these recognition and
measurement differences as at January 1, 2014 was an overall decrease to the post-employment benefits liability by
$2.8 million and regulatory debit balances of $1.9 million, and an increase to retained earnings of $0.9 million.

As at December 31, 2014, the impact of these recognition and measurement differences was a decrease to PP&E of
$0.4 million, regulatory debit balances of $5.7 million (of which $6.1 million related to post-employment benefits,
offset by $0.4 million related to IFRS transitional adjustments), post-employment benefit liability of $6.2 million,
and an increase to opening retained earnings of $0.9 million. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the impact of
these recognition and measurement differences was a decrease to operating expenses of $0.6 million, net movements
in regulatory balances, net of tax of $1.4 million, and remeasurements of post-employment benefits within pre-tax
OCI of $46.1 million, and an increase to net movements in regulatory balances related to pre-tax OCI of $46.1
million.

Under US GAAP, the amount of the actuarial present value of benefits expected to be paid in the next twelve
months was presented as a current liability. Under IFRS, it is a policy choice whether or not to separately present a
component as current as it relates to post-employment benefits. However, IFRS does specify that short-term
employee benefits, such as sick leave benefits, are classified as current if they are expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the reporting period. LDC elected to present post-employment benefit
obligation as non-current since it is not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months. As LDC does not
expect to settle all of its sick leave benefits within twelve months, sick leave benefits have been included in the non-
current liability as well. This presentation difference resulted in a decrease to current post-employment benefits and
an increase to non-current post-employment benefits as at January 1, 2014 and December 31, 2014 in the amount of
$8.0 million.
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E. Borrowing costs

Under US GAAP, an allowance for funds used during construction was applied based on OEB-prescribed rates on a
simple interest basis and capitalized as part of the cost of PP&E and intangible assets where applicable. Under
IFRS, the applicable borrowing costs are determined by applying the methodology in IAS 23 to qualifying assets.
The capitalization rate under IFRS is based on the weighted average interest rate of LDC’s external general
borrowings using the effective interest rate method which is applied to the carrying amount of the asset including
borrowing costs previously capitalized. In addition, under IFRS, capitalization commences immediately as the
expenditure on a qualifying asset is incurred. The differences arising as a result of this accounting policy change
due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS for the year of transition were recorded within IFRS transitional
adjustments in regulatory debit balances and net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, the impact was to increase PP&E by $2.1 million and intangible assets by $0.5 million, and
decrease regulatory debit balances, finance costs and net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax by $2.6
million.

F. PP&E derecognition

Under the group depreciation policy adopted under US GAAP, assets in a group were not removed from the
accounts on disposition and depreciation continued to be recorded until the asset group was fully depreciated.
Under IFRS, the carrying amount of an item of PP&E is derecognized on disposal of the asset or when no future
economic benefits are expected to accrue to LDC from its continued use and the related loss is recorded within
depreciation and amortization expense. The differences arising as a result of this accounting policy change due to
the transition from US GAAP to IFRS for the year of transition were recorded within IFRS transitional adjustments
in regulatory debit balances and net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax. For the year ended December 31,
2014, the impact was to decrease PP&E and increase depreciation and amortization expense, regulatory debit
balances and net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax by $26.5 million.

Impact on the statements of cash flows

The changes in classifications of cash flows from US GAAP to IFRS were mainly due to:

- Reclassification of capital contributions received to finance additions to PP&E from investing activities to
operating activities, and inclusion of amortization of deferred revenue related to capital contributions in
operating activities. Under US GAAP, capital contributions were treated as a reduction of PP&E and associated
cash flows were classified as investing activities. Under IFRS, LDC treats capital contributions as deferred
revenue and classifies the associated cash flows as operating activities;

- Presentation of income taxes paid and interest paid within the body of the statements of cash flows as part of
operating and financing activities, respectively, whereas they were previously disclosed as supplementary
information; and

- Reclassification of adjustments relating to regulatory balances within operating activities to “Net movements in
regulatory balances” in the application of IFRS 14.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholder of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited, which comprise the balance
sheets as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the) financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toronto Hydro-Electric
System Limited as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Kims X
7

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
March 2, 2017
Toronto, Canada

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

BALANCE SHEETS

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

As at December 31 2016 2015

$ $
ASSETS
Current
Accounts receivable [notes 4 and 14[b]] 226.2 190.0
Unbilled revenue [note 14[b]] 319.7 319.5
Income tax receivable - 9.0
Materials and supplies 9.7 9.8
Other assets [note 5] 135 9.9
Total current assets 569.1 538.2
Property, plant and equipment [note 6] 3,876.3 3,561.9
Intangible assets  [note 7] 217.8 199.3
Deferred tax assets  [note 20] 63.8 114.3
Other assets [note 5] 1.3 1.2
Total assets 4,728.3 4,414.9
Regulatory balances [note 8] 190.8 241.7
Total assets and regulatory balances 4919.1 4,656.6
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Joint bank indebtedness 50.5 188.9
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 9] 500.4 471.6
Income tax payable 9.0 -
Customer deposits 39.1 375
Deferred revenue [note 10] 4.3 3.7
Deferred conservation credit  [note 3[b]] 5.5 17.9
Notes payable to related party [notes 11 and 22] 304.9 60.0
Other liabilities [note 23] 3.1 3.2
Total current liabilities 916.8 782.8
Notes payable to related party [notes 11 and 22] 1,830.6 1,876.0
Customer deposits 15.0 9.9
Deferred revenue [note 10] 139.9 100.3
Post-employment benefits [note 12] 280.5 296.5
Other liabilities [note 23] 1.9 49
Total liabilities 3,184.7 3,070.4

Commitments and contingencies [notes 23 and 24]

Equity

Share capital [note 16] 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings 995.9 845.5
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,565.0 1,414.6
Total liabilities and equity 4,749.7 4,485.0
Regulatory balances [note 8] 169.4 171.6
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 4,919.1 4,656.6

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2016 2015

$ $
Revenues
Energy sales 3,306.2 2,925.6
Distribution revenue 647.9 555.4
Other [note 17] 66.3 48.3

4,020.4 3,529.3
Expenses
Energy purchases 3,216.9 2,898.5
Operating expenses [note 18] 267.6 259.0
Depreciation and amortization [notes 6 and 7] 210.6 192.8

3,695.1 3,350.3
Finance costs [note 19] 76.6 73.2
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment 2.1 10.1
Income before income taxes 250.8 115.9
Income tax expense [note 20] 67.2 31.5
Net income 183.6 84.4
Net movements in regulatory balances (77.2) 17.4
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets 44.0 28.6
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 150.4 130.4

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2016 2015

$ $
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 150.4 130.4
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to income or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax (2016 - $5.5, 2015 - $nil) [note 12] 155 -
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (2016 - $5.5, 2015 - $nil) [note 12] (15.5) -
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income 150.4 130.4

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2016 2015
$ $

Share capital [note 16] 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings, beginning of year 845.5 715.1
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 150.4 130.4
Retained earnings, end of year 995.9 845.5
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,565.0 1,414.6

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2016 2015
$ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 150.4 130.4
Net movements in regulatory balances 77.2 (17.4)
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets (44.0) (28.6)
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization [notes 6 and 7] 210.6 192.8
Amortization of deferred revenue [note 10] (3.8) (2.2)
Finance costs 76.6 73.2
Income tax expense 67.2 315
Post-employment benefits 5.0 9.1
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment (2.1) (10.2)
Other 0.7 0.7
Capital contributions received [note 10] 44.3 33.0
Net change in other non-current assets and liabilities (0.4) (0.6)
Increase in customer deposits 6.7 4.2
Changes in non-cash working capital balances [note 21] (14.2) 20.5
Income tax paid (0.9) (8.5)
Net cash provided by operating activities 588 428.0
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [note 21] (506.6) (547.9)
Purchase of intangible assets [note 21] (39.9) (21.1)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 2.2 14.4
Net cash used in investing activities (544.3) (554.6)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Decrease in advance from related party - (308.0)
Increase in notes payable to related party [note 11] 198.7 243.1
Repayment of finance lease liability (3.2) (2.9)
Interest received 0.3 14
Interest paid (86.5) (80.6)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 109.4 (147.0)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(joint bank indebtedness) during the year 138.4 (273.6)
Cash and cash equivalents (joint bank indebtedness), beginning of year (188.9) 84.7
Joint bank indebtedness, end of year (50.5) (188.9)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited [“LDC”] was incorporated on June 23, 1999 under the Business Corporations
Act (Ontario) in accordance with the Electricity Act. LDC is wholly-owned by Toronto Hydro Corporation [the
“Corporation”] and is domiciled in Canada, with its registered office is located at 14 Carlton Street, Toronto, Ontario,
M5B 1KS5.

LDC distributes electricity to customers located in the City of Toronto [the “City”] and is subject to rate regulation.
LDC is also engaged in the delivery of CDM activities.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

LDC’s audited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS with respect to the preparation of
annual financial information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, LDC’s functional currency, and have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for the valuation of post-employment benefits.

LDC has evaluated the events and transactions occurring after the balance sheet date through March 2, 2017 when
LDC’s financial statements were authorized for issue by LDC’s Board of Directors, and identified no events and
transactions which required recognition in the financial statements and/or disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements.

The summary of significant accounting policies has been disclosed in note 25.

3. REGULATION

The OEB has regulatory oversight of electricity matters in Ontario. The OEB’s authority and responsibilities include
the power to approve and fix rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity, the power to approve the amounts
paid to non-contracted generators, the responsibility to provide rate protection for rural or remote electricity customers,
and the responsibility for ensuring that electricity distribution companies fulfill their obligations to connect and service
customers.

LDC is required to charge its customers for the following amounts (all of which, other than distribution rates, represent
a pass-through of amounts payable to third parties):

e  Commodity Charge — The commodity charge represents the market price of electricity consumed by customers
and is passed through the IESO to operators of generating stations. It includes the global adjustment, which
represents the difference between the market price of electricity and the rates paid to regulated and contracted
generators.

e  Retail Transmission Rate — The retail transmission rate represents the costs incurred in respect of the transmission
of electricity from generating stations to local distribution networks. Retail transmission rates are passed through
to operators of transmission facilities.

e WMS Charge — The WMS charge represents various wholesale market support costs, such as the cost of the
IESO to administer the wholesale electricity system, operate the electricity market, and maintain reliable
operation of the provincial grid. Wholesale charges are passed through to the IESO.

o Distribution Rate — The distribution rate is designed to recover the costs incurred by LDC in delivering electricity
to customers, including the OEB-allowed cost of capital. Distribution rates are regulated by the OEB and include
fixed and variable (usage-based) components, based on a forecast of LDC’s customers and load.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

a) Electricity Distribution Rates

The OEB’s regulatory framework for electricity distributors is designed to support the cost-effective planning and
operation of the electricity distribution network and to provide an appropriate alignment between a sustainable,
financially viable electricity sector and the expectations of customers for reliable service at a reasonable price.

The OEB typically regulates the electricity rates for distributors using a combination of detailed cost of service reviews
and IRM adjustments. Under the OEB’s rate-setting methods, actual operating conditions may vary from forecasts
such that actual returns achieved can differ from approved returns. Approved electricity rates are generally not
adjusted as a result of actual costs or revenues being different from forecasted amounts, other than for certain
prescribed costs that are eligible for deferral for future collection from, or refund to, customers.

On December 29, 2015, the OEB issued its CIR decision and on March 1, 2016, the OEB issued its CIR rate order,
both in relation to the 2015-2019 rate application filed on July 31, 2014 [the “CIR decision and rate order”]. The CIR
decision and rate order approved a rate base of $3,232.0 million and revenue requirement of $633.1 million for 2015,
and rates calculated on that basis. The CIR decision and rate order also approved, on an interim basis, subsequent
annual rate adjustments based on a custom index for the period commencing on January 1, 2016 and ending on
December 31, 2019. The rates for 2015 and 2016 were implemented on March 1, 2016, with effective dates of May
1, 2015 and January 1, 2016, respectively [note 8[a]]. On August 22, 2016, LDC filed its 2017 rate application
seeking OEB’s approval to finalize distribution rates and other charges for the period commencing on January 1, 2017
and ending on December 31, 2017. On December 21, 2016, the OEB issued a decision finalizing LDC’s 2017 rates
and providing for other deferral and variance account dispositions.

On July 28, 2016, the OEB approved a settlement proposal submitted by LDC and intervenors to the ICM rate
application, which provided that there would be no change to the 2015-2019 rate base previously approved in the CIR
decision and the 2012-2014 ICM process would be closed with no future disposition to or from ratepayers. Further
to this approval, $9.8 million previously recorded as an ICM regulatory credit balance [note 8] was recorded as an
increase in equity through net movements in regulatory balances in 2016.

b) CDM Activities

On December 21, 2012, the Minister of Energy of Ontario issued a direction to the OPA under subsection 25.32(4.1)
of the Electricity Act to extend the funding time period for OPA-contracted province-wide CDM initiatives under the
Green Energy Act framework to December 31, 2015. Funding for CDM programs approved pursuant to the 2011-
2014 OPA agreement with in-service dates in 2015 would be allocated toward the 2011-2014 program budget. On
March 18, 2015, LDC received approval from the IESO for separate funding of $11.2 million relating to these
transitional CDM programs for 2015. Funding was fully received in the third quarter of 2015.

On March 26, 2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario, under the guidance of sections 27.1 and 27.2 of the OEB Act,
directed the OEB to amend the licence of each licensed electricity distributor to require the electricity distributor, as
a condition of its licence, to make CDM programs available to its customers and to do so in relation to each customer
segment in its service area, over the period beginning January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. On March 31,
2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario issued a direction to require the OPA to coordinate, support and fund the
delivery of CDM programs through electricity distributors. The objective of the new CDM efforts is to reduce
electricity consumption in the Province of Ontario by a total of 7 terawatt hours between January 1, 2015 and
December 31, 2020, of which LDC’s share is approximately 1,576 GWh of energy savings.

On November 13, 2014, LDC entered into an energy conservation agreement with the OPA for the delivery of CDM
programs over the 2015-2020 period. The IESO and the OPA were merged under the name IESO starting on January
1, 2015. Under the energy conservation agreement with the IESO, LDC has a joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro
Electricity Distribution Inc. for the delivery of CDM programs over the 2015-2020 period. The joint CDM plan
provides combined funding of approximately $425.0 million, including participant incentives and program
administration costs to achieve an aggregate energy savings target of approximately 1,668 GWh. The programs for
Oakville Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. under the joint CDM plan started on January 1, 2016. LDC received



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

$17.2 million as at December 31, 2015 and $27.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 from the IESO for the
delivery of CDM programs. Amounts received but not yet spent are presented on the balance sheets under current
liabilities as deferred conservation credit.

LDC can choose between full cost recovery funding, pay-for-performance funding, or a combination of both, on a
CDM program by program basis. Under the full cost recovery funding method, the IESO reimburses LDC for all
adequately documented incurred costs, with an option to receive a portion of its funding in advance. Cost efficiency
incentives may be awarded if LDC’s electricity savings meet or exceed certain CDM plan targets for programs under
the full cost recovery funding method, with a mid-term review to be performed by the IESO for the 2015-2017 period.
Under the pay-for-performance funding method, LDC receives payment in arrears based on verified electricity savings
achieved with various options for frequency of payment. The programs under the joint CDM plan with Oakville
Hydro Electricity Distribution Inc. are only being offered under the full cost recovery funding method.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

2016 2015
$ $
Trade receivables 214.7 183.9
Due from related parties [note 22] 10.1 4.2
Other 1.4 1.9
226.2 190.0
5. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets consist of the following:
2016 2015
$ 3$
Prepaid expenses 12.3 9.5
Deferred financing costs 1.6 1.6
Other 0.9 —
Total other assets 14.8 111
Less: Current portion of other assets relating to:
Prepaid expenses 12.3 9.5
Deferred financing costs 0.4 0.4
Other 0.8 —
Current portion of other assets 13.5 9.9
Non-current portion of other assets 1.3 1.2




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PP&E consist of the following:

Distribution Land and Equipment Construction
assets buildings and other in progress
$ $ $ $

Cost

Balance as at January 1, 2015 2,685.7 137.6 107.2 431.2 3,361.7
Additions/(Transfers) 368.0 67.6 125 65.1 513.2
Disposals and retirements (26.5) (2.1) — — (28.6)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 3,027.2 203.1 119.7 496.3 3,846.3
Additions/(Transfers) 381.2 111.3 61.7 (48.1) 506.1
Disposals and retirements (32.1) (0.1) (0.3) — (32.5)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,376.3 314.3 181.1 448.2 4,319.9

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at January 1, 2015 106.1 7.0 24.1 — 137.2
Depreciation 118.9 9.1 22.0 — 150.0
Disposals and retirements (2.4) (0.4) — — (2.8)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 222.6 15.7 46.1 — 284.4
Depreciation 129.3 10.3 24.3 — 163.9
Disposals and retirements (4.6) — (0.1) — (4.7)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 347.3 26.0 70.3 — 443.6

Carrying amount
Balance as at December 31, 2015 2,804.6 187.4 73.6 496.3 3,561.9

Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,029.0 288.3 110.8 448.2 3,876.3

As at December 31, 2016, Equipment and other included assets under finance lease with cost of $18.2 million
[December 31, 2015 - $18.2 million] and accumulated depreciation of $8.3 million [December 31, 2015 - $6.0
million]. For the year ended December 31, 2016, LDC recorded depreciation expense of $2.3 million [2015 - $2.2
million] related to assets under finance lease.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, borrowing costs in the amount of $9.5 million [2015 - $7.0 million] were
capitalized to PP&E and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.61% [2015 - 3.74%].

Construction in progress additions are net of transfers to the other PP&E categories.

10



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Computer Contributions Software in Contributions
software development for work in
progress
$ $ $

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2015 86.7 19.9 13.2 98.5 218.3
Additions/(Transfers) 14.9 1.8 (1.4) 5.8 21.1
Balance as at December 31, 2015 101.6 21.7 11.8 104.3 239.4
Additions/(Transfers) 11.9 53.8 8.4 (34.2) 39.9
Balance as at December 31, 2016 113.5 75.5 20.2 70.1 279.3
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2015 18.7 0.9 — — 19.6
Amortization 19.4 1.1 — — 20.5
Balance as at December 31, 2015 38.1 2.0 — — 40.1
Amortization 19.3 2.1 — — 21.4
Balance as at December 31, 2016 57.4 4.1 — — 61.5
Carrying amount
Balance as at December 31, 2015 63.5 19.7 11.8 104.3 199.3
Balance as at December 31, 2016 56.1 71.4 20.2 70.1 217.8

For the year ended December 31, 2016, borrowing costs in the amount of $3.0 million [2015 - $3.8 million] were
capitalized to intangible assets and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.61% [2015 -

3.74%)].

Software in development and contributions for work in progress additions are net of transfers to the other intangible

asset categories.

Computer software is externally acquired.

contributions range from less than one year to 6 years, and from 12 to 25 years, respectively.

11
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

8. REGULATORY BALANCES

Debit balances consist of the following:

January Balances Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
1, 2016 arising in reversal movements 31, 2016 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
Foregone revenue 61.1 19.2 (16.0) — 64.3 36 —
OPEB actuarial net loss 81.2 (21.0) — — 60.2 note 8[b] —
IFRS transitional adjustments 28.9 — (6.1) — 22.8 36 —
Stranded meters 14.4 — (3.0 — 114 36 *
LRAM 9.1 4.7 (3.3) — 10.5 note 8[e] *
Gain on disposal — — 14,5 (5.9 8.6 note 8[f] *
Named properties 5.8 — (1.2) — 4.6 36 —
OPEB cash versus accrual 1.8 1.1 — — 2.9 note 8[h] —
Smart meters 10.0 — (7.9) — 2.1 4 —
Capital contributions 1.9 — (0.4) — 1.5 36 —
Settlement variances 25.3 — — (25.3) — — *
Other 2.2 1.6 — (1.9) 1.9 — *
241.7 5.6 (23.4) (33.1) 190.8
January Balances Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
1, 2015 arising in reversal movements 31, 2015 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
OPEB actuarial net loss 81.2 — — — 81.2 note 8[b] —
Foregone revenue — 61.1 — — 61.1 46 —
IFRS transitional adjustments 24.2 4.7 — — 28.9 46 —
Settlement variances 51.7 (26.4) — — 253 note 8[k] *
Stranded meters 14.4 — — — 14.4 46 —
Smart meters 20.9 — (10.9) — 10.0 16 —
LRAM — 9.1 — — 9.1 note 8[e] *
Named properties — 5.8 — — 5.8 46 —
Capital contributions — 1.9 — — 1.9 46 —
OPEB cash versus accrual — 1.8 — — 1.8 note 8[h] —
Other 4.7 2.0 (0.2) (4.9 2.2 10 *
197.1 60.0 (11.0) (4.4) 241.7

* Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance in accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.10% for 2016
[January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 - 1.47%; April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 - 1.10%].

12



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Credit balances consist of the following:

NELIETRY Balances Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
1, 2016 arising in reversal movements 31, 2016 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
Deferred taxes 114.8 (49.5) — — 65.3 note 8[j] —
Settlement variances — 89.3 1.2 (27.7) 62.8 note 8[K] *
Tax-related variances 26.5 — (8.5) (0.5) 17.5 24 *
Derecognition 9.9 2.9 — — 12.8 note 8[m] *
Capital-related revenue
requirement 2.8 6.0 — — 8.8 note 8[n] *
ICM 9.7 0.1 (9.8) — — — *
Gain on disposal 5.9 — — (5.9) — — *
Other 2.0 1.2 (2.0) 1.0 2.2 — *
171.6 50.0 (19.1) (33.1) 169.4
January Balances Recovery/ Other December Remaining Carrying
1, 2015 arising in reversal movements 31, 2015 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
period
(months)
Deferred taxes 143.4 (28.6) — — 114.8 note 8[j] —
Tax-related variances 25.3 1.2 — — 26.5 10-34 *
Derecognition — 9.9 — — 9.9 note 8[m] *
ICM 2.3 — 7.4 — 9.7 note 8[o] *
Gain on disposal — 5.9 — — 5.9 note 8[f] *
Capital-related revenue
requirement — 2.8 — — 2.8 note 8[n] *
Other 2.0 — — — 2.0 10 *
173.0 (8.8) 7.4 — 171.6

* Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balance in accordance with the OEB’s direction at a rate of 1.10% for 2016
[January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2015 - 1.47%; April 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 - 1.10%].

The “Balances arising in the period” column consists of new additions to regulatory balances (for both debits and
credits). The “Recovery/reversal” column consists of amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders or
transactions reversing an existing regulatory balance. The “Other movements” column consists of impairment and
reclassification between the regulatory debit and credit balances. In addition, the “Other movements” column includes
reclassification of regulatory deferral accounts considered to be insignificant into the “Other” categories. During
2016, residual regulatory balances approved by the OEB for disposition over a 10-month period commencing on
March 1, 2016 were reclassified from “Other” regulatory debit balance, settlement variances and tax-related variances
into “Other” regulatory credit balance. For the year ended December 31, 2015, LDC recorded an impairment of $4.4
million on regulatory debit balances within ‘Other’ as a result of the CIR decision and rate order. There was no
impairment recorded for the year ended December 31, 2016.

13




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Reconciliation between the net movements in regulatory balances shown above and the net movements presented on
the statements of income and the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Total movements per regulatory debit balances table (50.9) 44.6
Total movements per regulatory credit balances table 2.2 1.4
Total net movements (48.7) 46.0
Net movements per financial statements:

Net movements in regulatory balances (77.2) 17.4

Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets 44.0 28.6

Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (15.5) —
Total net movements per financial statements (48.7) 46.0

Ontario's electricity industry regulatory developments and other governmental policy changes may affect the
electricity distribution rates charged by LDC and the costs LDC is permitted to recover. There is a risk that the OEB
may disallow the recovery of a portion of certain costs incurred in the current period through future rates or disagree
with the proposed recovery period. In the event that the disposition of these balances is assessed to no longer be
probable based on management’s judgment, any impairment will be recorded in the period when the assessment is
made.

The regulatory balances of LDC consist of the following:

a) Foregone Revenue

This regulatory balance relates to the revenue that LDC would have recovered in 2015 and 2016 if new OEB-approved
rates were implemented as of May 1, 2015 and January 1, 2016, respectively. In the CIR decision and rate order, the
OEB approved foregone revenue rate riders commencing on March 1, 2016 for May 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015
based on approved 2015 rates and for January 1, 2016 to February 29, 2016 based on approved 2016 rates [note 3[a]].

b) OPEB Actuarial Net Loss

This regulatory balance accumulates the actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments recognized in OCI. The balance arising during the year ended December 31, 2016 of $21.0
million is related to the actuarial gain recorded for the year [2015 - $nil] [note 12[a]]; however, the net position is an
actuarial loss that is recoverable in future rates. LDC has not sought recovery to date from the OEB as changes in
underlying assumptions may reduce the balance in the account. LDC expects to recover this regulatory balance as per
OEB direction when recovery is sought.

c) IFRS Transitional Adjustments

This regulatory balance relates to the differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible
assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014, primarily related to derecognition of certain assets and
additional capitalized borrowing costs. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the
balance commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].
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d) Stranded Meters and Smart Meters
These regulatory balances relate to the provincial government’s decision to install smart meters throughout Ontario.

The net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of smart meters was reclassified from PP&E to a new
regulatory balance as at December 31, 2013. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC’s request
for recovery of the forecasted net book value of the stranded meters as at December 31, 2014 commencing on March
1, 2016 [note 3[a]l.

On January 16, 2014, the OEB approved LDC's request for incremental revenue and disposition of the smart meter
regulatory balances to be recovered through rates commencing on May 1, 2014. The OEB ruling on smart meters also
permitted the recovery in principle of LDC's allowed cost of capital on smart meters since 2008, with a rate order
issued to this effect. This allows LDC to recover the incremental revenue requirement associated with these assets for
the period during which they remained outside of rate base.

e) Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism [“LRAM”|

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the level of CDM program activities included in LDC’s load
forecast used to set approved rates and the actual impact of CDM activities achieved. New variances are accrued
based on current CDM activities while approved variances up to 2014 are disposed through OEB-approved rate riders
over twelve months commencing on January 1, 2017. Variances pertaining to years subsequent to 2014 have yet to
be applied for disposition.

f) Gain on Disposal

This regulatory balance consists of the net of amounts disposed through the OEB-approved rate riders offset by the
related tax savings (debits), and the after-tax gain realized on two significant LDC properties (credits). As part of the
CIR decision and rate order, LDC agreed to a rate rider that would pass the total forecasted net gains along with future
tax savings on both properties back to ratepayers, effective from March 1, 2016 to December 31, 2018. During 2015,
the gain on one of the properties was realized by LDC resulting in a net credit balance at December 31, 2015. As at
December 31, 2016, the amount disposed through the rate riders exceeded the gain realized on the first property as the
second property was still not sold, resulting in a net debit balance. Upon the sale of the second property, the account
would revert to a credit balance if actual net gains and tax savings exceed the total amount of the approved rate riders.
LDC expects to seek disposition for any residual balance in a future rate application.

g) Named Properties

As part of 2010 rates, LDC had forecasted net gains on certain properties which were planned for sale in between
2007 and 2011. This regulatory balance relates to the excess of those forecasted net gains over the actual net gains
realized upon the sale of the named properties. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of
this variance commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].

h) OPEB Cash versus Accrual

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between LDC’s forecasted OPEB costs determined on an accrual
basis and the cash payments made under the OPEB plans. The OEB directed LDC to track the difference as a
temporary arrangement, pending the OEB’s conclusion on the sector-wide policy consultation it initiated on the
regulatory treatment of pension and OPEB costs. LDC does not consider the OEB’s direction to constitute a change
in the basis of its recovery of OPEB costs at this time, considering the OEB’s approval of the variance account. The
timing of disposition of the balance is currently unknown.
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i) Capital Contributions

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between amounts included in rates for HONI capital contributions
and actual contributions made in 2010 and 2011. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition
of this variance commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].

j) Deferred Taxes

This regulatory credit balance relates to both deferred tax amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 [note 25[a]] and to the
expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the recognition
of deferred tax assets. LDC did not apply for disposition of the balance since it is being reversed through timing
differences in the recognition of deferred tax assets.

The amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 include the deferred tax liability related to regulatory balances of $36.4
million as at December 31, 2016 [December 31, 2015 - $42.1 million] offset by the recognition of a regulatory balance
in respect of additional temporary differences for which a deferred tax amount was recognized of $10.4 million as at
December 31, 2016 [December 31, 2015 - $26.2 million].

The deferred tax amount related to the expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers was $39.3
million as at December 31, 2016 [December 31, 2015 - $98.9 million].

k) Settlement Variances

This account includes the variances between amounts charged by LDC to customers, based on regulated rates, and the
corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs incurred by LDC. LDC has deferred
the variances between the costs incurred and the related recoveries in accordance with the criteria set out in the
accounting principles prescribed by the OEB. New variances are accrued based on current charges while approved
variances up to 2015, including carrying charges forecasted to the end of 2016, are disposed through OEB-approved
rate riders over twelve months commencing on January 1, 2017. Settlement variances pertaining to years subsequent
to 2015 have yet to be applied for disposition.

I) Tax-related Variance Accounts

This regulatory credit balance arose from favourable income tax reassessments on certain prior year tax positions
received, which differed from those assumed in previous applications for electricity distribution rates. In the CIR
decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the balance commencing on March 1, 2016 [note 3[a]].

m) Derecognition

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the revenue requirement on derecognition of PP&E and
intangible assets included in the OEB-approved rates and the actual amounts of derecognition. This account was
approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order [note 3[a]]. The timing of disposition of the balance is
currently unknown.

n) Capital-related Revenue Requirement

This regulatory balance relates to the asymmetrical variance between the cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related
revenue requirement included in rates and the actual capital-related revenue requirement over the same period. If the
cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related revenue requirement included in rates exceeds the actual capital-related
revenue requirement over the same rate period, LDC must apply for disposition of this account in order to clear the
balance to ratepayers through a rate rider. This account was approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order
[note 3[a]]. The timing of disposition of the balance is currently unknown.
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0) Incremental Capital Module

This regulatory balance related to the ICM application approved by the OEB and the associated rate riders, which
became effective June 1, 2013. The balance of $9.8 million represented the net of amounts collected through the ICM
rate riders from 2013 to 2014 and amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to the eligible in-service capital
expenditures. Further to the OEB’s decision of July 28, 2016, the entire balance of $9.8 million was recorded as an
increase in equity through net movements in regulatory balances in 2016 [note 3[a]].

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

2016 2015
$ 3
Trade payables 323.6 316.2
Accrued liabilities 116.3 100.7
Due to related parties [note 22] 58.7 52.8
Other 1.8 19
500.4 471.6

10. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire PP&E
which have not yet been recognized into other revenue, and revenue not yet recognized from ancillary services [note

25[]].

2016 2015
3 $

Capital contributions, beginning of year 103.0 72.6
Capital contributions received 44.3 33.0
Amortization (3.8) (2.2)
Other (0.3) (0.4)
Capital contributions, end of year 143.2 103.0
Other 1.0 1.0
Total deferred revenue 144.2 104.0
Less: Current portion of deferred revenue relating to:

Capital contributions 3.3 2.7

Other 1.0 1.0
Current portion of deferred revenue 4.3 3.7
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 139.9 100.3
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11. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY

Notes payable to related party consist of the following:

2016 2015
$ $
Notes payable to related party:

5.20% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 14, 2017 245.1 245.1
4.54% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 12, 2019 245.1 245.1
5.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due May 21, 2040 200.0 200.0
3.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 18, 2021 300.0 300.0
2.96% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 10, 2023 250.0 250.0
4.01% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 200.0 200.0
4.13% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due September 16, 2044 200.0 200.0
3.60% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due July 28, 2045 200.0 200.0
3.988% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 45.0 45.0
2.572% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due August 25, 2026 200.0 —
6.16% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on demand 45.0 45.0

3.32% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on the earlier of demand
and January 1, 2022 15.0 15.0
Total notes payable to related party 2,145.2 1,945.2
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs 9.7 9.2
Current portion of notes payable to related party [note 22] 304.9 60.0
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party [note 22] 1,830.6 1,876.0

All notes payable to related party of LDC rank equally.

On March 16, 2015, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory note
is $200.0 million payable on July 28, 2045, which bears interest at a rate of 3.60% per annum. Interest is calculated
and payable semi-annually in arrears on January 28 and July 28 of each year. The net proceeds from the promissory
note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

On September 2, 2015, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory
note is $45.0 million payable on April 9, 2063, which bears interest at a rate of 3.988% per annum. Interest is
calculated and payable semi-annually in arrears on April 9 and October 9 of each year. The net proceeds from the
promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

On June 14, 2016, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory note is
$200.0 million payable on August 25, 2026, which bears interest at a rate of 2.572% per annum. Interest is calculated
and payable semi-annually in arrears on February 25 and August 25 of each year. The net proceeds from the
promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.
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12. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pension

LDC’s eligible employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan through OMERS. As at December 31, 2016,
the OMERS plan was 93.4% funded [December 31, 2015 - 91.5%]. OMERS has a strategy to return the plan to a
fully funded position. LDC is not able to assess the implications, if any, of this strategy or of the withdrawal of other
participating entities from the OMERS plan on its future contributions. For the year ended December 31, 2016,
LDC’s contributions were $17.3 million [2015 - $17.2 million], representing less than five percent of total
contributions to the OMERS plan. LDC expects to contribute approximately $18.8 million to the OMERS plan in
2017.

Post-employment benefits other than pension

a) Benefit obligation

Balance, beginning of year 296.5 287.4
Current service cost 5.8 5.6
Interest cost 11.7 11.4
Benefits paid (10.9) (9.3)
Experience loss (gain) @ 4.2) 0.9
Actuarial gain arising from changes in demographic assumptions @ (17.5) —
Actuarial gain arising from changes in financial assumptions @ (1.6) —
Transfer from related parties 0.7 0.5
Balance, end of year 280.5 296.5

@ Actuarial loss (gain) on accumulated sick leave credits of ($2.1) million [2015 - $0.8 million] is recognized in
benefit cost [note 12[c]] and ($0.2) million in transfer from related parties [2015 - $0.1 million], and ($21.0) million
[2015 - $nil] of actuarial gain on medical, dental and life insurance benefits is recognized in OCI [note 12[d]].

The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at December 31, 2016 is 16.7 years [2015 — 17.1 years].

b) Amounts recognized in regulatory balances

As at December 31, 2016, the amount recognized in regulatory balances related to net actuarial loss and IFRS
transitional adjustments was $60.2 million [December 31, 2015 - $81.2 million] [note 8[b]].
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c) Benefit cost recognized

2016 2015
$ $
Current service cost 5.8 5.6
Interest cost 11.7 114
Actuarial loss (gain) on other employee benefits [note 12[a]] (2.1) 0.8
Benefit cost 15.4 17.8
Capitalized to PP&E and intangible assets 6.4 7.7
Charged to operating expenses 9.0 10.1
d) Amounts recognized in OCI
2016 2015
$ $
Actuarial gain [note 12[a]] (21.0) —
Income tax expense in OCI [note 20] 5.5
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax (15.5) —
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax 15.5
OClI, net of tax p— —
e) Significant assumptions

Discount rate (%) used in the calculation of:

Benefit obligation as at December 31 4.00 4.00
Assumed medical and dental cost trend rates (%) as at December 31:
Rate of increase in dental costs assumed for next year 4.00 4.00
Rate of increase in medical costs assumed for next year

For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00

For other retirements 5.50 6.00
Rate that medical cost trend rate gradually declines to

For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00

For other retirements 5.00 5.00
Year that the medical cost trend rate reaches the ultimate trend rate

For pre July 2000 retirements 2015 2015

For other retirements 2018 2018

f) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for benefit obligation measurement purposes are discount rate and assumed medical
and dental cost trend rates. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the assumptions, in isolation of one another, occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be
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representative of the actual change since it is unlikely that the change in the assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Changes in key assumptions would have had the following effect on the benefit obligation:

Change in assumption

As reported 280.5 296.5
Discount rate 1% T (42.0) (45.5)
1% 4 54.0 54.1
Medical and dental cost trend rate 1% T 36.1 38.6
1% ¢ (32.3) (34.7)

13. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

LDC’s main objectives when managing capital are to:

e ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain, refurbish and expand the electricity distribution system;

o ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents, investments or borrowings
through TH Energy or the Corporation) to meet the needs of the business; and

e minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic
risks and conditions.

LDC monitors forecasted cash flows, capital expenditures, debt repayment and key credit ratios similar to those used
by key rating agencies. LDC manages capital by preparing short-term and long-term cash flow forecasts. In addition,
LDC borrows from TH Energy or the Corporation as required to help fund some of the periodic net cash outflows and
to maintain available liquidity. There have been no changes in LDC’s approach to capital management during the
year. As at December 31, 2016, LDC’s definition of capital included bank indebtedness, borrowings through the
Corporation and obligations under finance leases, including the current portion thereof, and equity, and had remained
unchanged from the definition as at December 31, 2015. As at December 31, 2016, equity amounted to $1,565.0
million [December 31, 2015 - $1,414.6 million], and bank indebtedness, borrowings through the Corporation and
obligations under finance leases, including the current portion thereof, amounted to $2,191.0 million [December 31,
2015 - $2,132.9 million].

14. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Recognition and measurement

As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
unbilled revenue, bank indebtedness, advance from related party, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities
approximated their carrying amounts due to the short maturity of these instruments [note 25[j]]. The fair value of
customer deposits approximates their carrying amounts taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding
balance. Obligations under finance leases are measured based on a discounted cash flow analysis and approximate
the carrying amounts as management believes that the fixed interest rates are representative of current market rates.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of LDC’s notes payable consist of the following:

2016 2015
$ $
Carrying Fair value @ Carrying Fair value ®
amount amount
Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
5.20% due November 14, 2017 244.9 253.7 244.7 262.1
4.54% due November 12, 2019 244.6 265.6 244.4 2715
5.59% due May 21, 2040 198.8 253.3 198.8 248.2
3.59% due November 18, 2021 299.0 322.9 298.9 326.2
2.96% due April 10, 2023 249.1 259.7 249.0 259.7
4.01% due April 9, 2063 198.7 201.2 198.7 194.2
4.13% due September 16, 2044 198.5 209.4 198.4 203.4
3.60% due July 28, 2045 198.6 191.3 198.6 185.2
3.988% due April 9, 2063 445 45.1 445 435
2.572% due August 25, 2026 198.8 194.6 — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on demand 45.0 45.0 45.0 45.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1, 2022 15.0 16.0 15.0 16.1
2,135.5 2,257.8 1,936.0 2,055.1

(@ The fair value measurement of financial instruments for which the fair value has been disclosed is included in Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy [note 25[j]].

b) Financial risks

The following is a discussion of financial risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified by LDC for
financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks, nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks
listed.

Credit risk

LDC is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. LDC’s exposure
to credit risk primarily relates to accounts receivable and unbilled revenue. LDC monitors and limits its exposure to
credit risk on a continuous basis.

LDC is subject to credit risk with respect to customer non-payment of electricity bills. As at December 31, 2016,
LDC had approximately 761,000 customers. LDC obtains security instruments from certain customers in accordance
with direction provided by the OEB. As at December 31, 2016, LDC held security deposits in the amount of $54.1
million [December 31, 2015 - $47.4 million], of which $30.0 million [December 31, 2015 - $25.1 million] was related
to security deposits on offers to connect to guarantee the payment of additional costs related to expansion projects.
As at December 31, 2016, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to any customer. The
credit risk and mitigation strategies with respect to unbilled revenue are the same as for accounts receivable. The
credit risk related to cash, cash equivalents and investments is mitigated by LDC’s treasury policies on assessing and
monitoring the credit exposures of counterparties.

LDC did not have any single customer that generated more than 10% of total revenue for the years ended December
31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.
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Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and unbilled revenue is as follows:

2016 2015
3$ $

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts)

Outstanding for not more than 30 days 196.7 170.5

Outstanding for more than 30 days and not more than 120 days 25.4 16.4

Outstanding for more than 120 days 4.1 3.1
Total accounts receivable 226.2 190.0
Unbilled revenue 319.7 319.5
Total accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 545.9 509.5

LDC has a broad base of customers. As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, LDC’s accounts receivable
and unbilled revenue which were not past due or impaired were assessed by management to have no significant
collection risk and no additional allowance for doubtful accounts was required for these balances.

Reconciliation between the opening and closing allowance for doubtful accounts balances is as follows:

2016 2015
| $ $
Balance, beginning of year (11.5) (11.8)
Provision for doubtful accounts (5.5) (7.1)
Write-offs 7.6 7.6
Recoveries (0.3) (0.2)
Balance, end of year (9.7) (11.5)

Unbilled revenue represents amounts for which LDC has a contractual right to receive cash through future billings
and are unbilled at period-end. Unbilled revenue is considered current and no allowance for doubtful accounts was
provided as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015.

Interest rate risk

LDC is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates for the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations [note
12[f]]. LDC is also exposed to short-term interest rate risk on the net of cash and cash equivalents, notes payable to
related party, and customer deposits. Notes payable to related party bear interest based on the prevailing market
conditions at the time of issuance.

As at December 31, 2016, aside from the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations, LDC was exposed to
interest rate risk predominately from notes payable to related party and customer deposits, while most of its remaining
obligations were either non-interest bearing or bear fixed interest rates, and its financial assets were predominately
short-term in nature and mostly non-interest bearing. LDC estimates that a 100 basis point increase (decrease) in
short-term interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) of approximately
$1.0 million to annual finance costs.

Liquidity risk

LDC is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. LDC monitors and
manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial requirements. LDC
has access to credit facilities and borrowings through the Corporation and monitors cash balances daily. LDC’s
objective is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is on hand to meet obligations as they fall due while minimizing finance
costs.
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Liquidity risks associated with financial commitments are as follows:

2016 |

Due Due Due Due Due Due after 5
within 1 within2  within3  within4 within 5 years
year years years years years
3 $ $ 3$ 3$
Bank indebtedness 50.5 — — — — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities @ 481.9 — — — — —
Obligations under finance lease 3.2 1.6 — — — —
Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
5.20% due November 14, 2017 245.1 — — — — —
4.54% due November 12, 2019 — — 245.1 — — —
5.59% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0
3.59% due November 18, 2021 — — — — 300.0 —
2.96% due April 10, 2023 — — — — — 250.0
4.01% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 200.0
4.13% due September 16, 2044 — — — — — 200.0
3.60% due July 28, 2045 — — — — — 200.0
3.988% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 45.0
2.572% due August 25, 2026 — — — — — 200.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on demand 45.0 — — — — _
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1,
2022 15.0 — — — — —
Interest payments on long-term notes payable
and demand notes payable 85.5 77.8 71.4 65.8 60.3 1,014.0
926.2 79.4 316.5 65.8 360.3 2,309.0

@ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $18.5 million of accrued interest on long-term notes payable and
demand notes payable included within “Interest payments on long-term notes payable and demand notes payable”.

Foreign exchange risk
As at December 31, 2016, LDC had limited exposure to the changing values of foreign currencies. While LDC

purchases goods and services which are payable in US dollars, and purchases US currency to meet the related
commitments when required, the impact of these transactions is not material to the financial statements.

15. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

As at December 31, 2016, $33.4 million [December 31, 2015 - $32.4 million] of letters of credit had been issued by
the Corporation, on behalf of LDC, under its $75.0 million demand facility mainly to support LDC’s prudential
requirements with the IESO.
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16. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital consists of the following:

2016 2015
$ $
Authorized
The authorized share capital of LDC consists of an
unlimited number of common shares without par value.
Issued and outstanding
1,000 common shares, of which all were fully paid. 556.3 556.3
17. OTHER REVENUE
Other revenue consists of the following:
2016 2015
$ $
Other regulatory service charges 16.7 135
Ancillary services 15.2 9.9
Pole and duct rentals 12.0 10.5
Street lighting service fee 5.8 4.7
Amortization of deferred revenue 3.8 2.2
Miscellaneous 12.8 75
66.3 48.3
18. OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses consist of the following:
2016 2015
$ $
Salaries and benefits 218.9 224.9
External services 108.6 93.1
Materials and supplies 16.4 14.8
Other support costs & 32.2 37.7
Less: Capitalized costs (108.5) (111.5)
267.6 259.0

@ Includes taxes other than income taxes, utilities, rental, communication, insurance, and other general and
administrative expenses.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, LDC recognized operating expenses of $7.6 million related to materials and
supplies used to service electricity distribution assets [2015 - $6.6 million].
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19. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs consist of the following:

2016 2015
$ $
Interest income 0.3 (1.4)
Interest expense
Interest on long-term debt ® 85.4 79.8
Interest on short-term debt 3.6 45
Other interest 0.5 11
Capitalized borrowing costs (12.6) (10.8)
76.6 73.2

@ Includes amortization of debt issuance costs, discounts and premiums.

20. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined statutory Canadian
federal and provincial income tax rate. Reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax

rate to the income tax provision is set out below:

2 2005
$ $

Rate reconciliation before net movements in regulatory balances
Income before income taxes 250.8 115.9
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 66.5 30.7
Other 0.7 0.8
Income tax expense 67.2 31.5
Effective tax rate 26.8% 27.2%
Rate reconciliation after net movements in regulatory balances
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances, before income tax @ 173.6 133.3
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 46.0 35.3
Temporary differences recoverable in future rates (22.7) (31.7)
Other (0.2) (0.7)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory 23.2 2.9
balances
Effective tax rate 13.4% 2.2%

@ Income tax includes income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances.
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Income tax expense as presented in the statements of income and OCI are as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Income tax expense 67.2 31.5
Income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances (44.0) (28.6)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory

balances 23.2 2.9
Income tax expense in OCI [note 12[d]] 55 —
Income tax recovery in OCI recorded in net movements in regulatory balances (5.5) —
Income tax expense in OCI — —

Components of income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances are as follows:

2016 2015
$ $
Current tax expense
Current year 24.4 3.1
Adjustment for tax positions taken in prior periods (2.2) (0.3)
22.2 2.8
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.0 0.1
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory
balances 23.2 2.9

Deferred tax assets consist of the following:

Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 _in net in OCI December 31
2016 Income 2016
$ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 34.5 (22.8) — 11.7
Post-employment benefits 78.6 1.2 (5.5) 74.3
Other taxable temporary differences 1.2 (23.4) — (22.2)
114.3 (45.0) (5.5) 63.8
Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 _in net in OCI December 31
2015 income 2015
$ $ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 55.0 (20.5) — 34.5
Post-employment benefits 76.2 2.4 — 78.6
Other taxable temporary differences 11.9 (10.7) — 1.2
143.1 (28.8) — 114.3

LDC had recorded a net deferred tax asset as it expects to earn sufficient taxable income to realize the future reversal
of deductible temporary differences.
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21. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in non-cash working capital provided/(used) cash as follows:

2016 2015

$ $
Accounts receivable (36.5) 14.3
Unbilled revenue 0.2 (12.9)
Income tax receivable 9.0 (8.8)
Materials and supplies 0.1 (1.2)
Other current assets (3.6) —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19.9 9.1
Income tax payable 9.0 —
Deferred revenue 0.6 15
Deferred conservation credit (12.4) 17.9
Other current liabilities 0.1) 0.6

(14.2) 20.5

Reconciliation between the amount presented on the statements of cash flows and total additions to PP&E and
intangible assets is as follows:

2016 2015
$ $
Purchase of PP&E, cash basis 506.6 547.9
Net change in accruals related to PP&E (2.3) (36.4)
Other 1.8 1.7
Total additions to PP&E 506.1 513.2
Purchase of intangible assets, cash basis 39.9 21.1
Total additions to PP&E and intangible assets 546.0 534.3
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For LDC, transactions with related parties include transactions with the City, which wholly owns the Corporation, the
Corporation and TH Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation.

City Corporation TH Energy
$ $ $

For period ended December 31, 2016
Revenues 258.5 — 8.7
Operating expenses and capital expenditures 26.9 1.5 0.9
Finance costs — 85.8 —
As at December 31, 2016
Accounts receivable 9.3 — 0.8
Unbilled revenue 23.1 — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41.0 17.7 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 304.9 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,830.6 —
Customer deposits 14.1 — —
Deferred revenue 3.0 — —

City Corporation TH Energy

$ $ $

For period ended December 31, 2015
Revenues 222.6 — 7.6
Operating expenses and capital expenditures 19.7 3.6 0.5
Finance costs — 80.4 —
As at December 31, 2015
Accounts receivable 3.2 — 1.0
Unbilled revenue 20.8 — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 36.6 16.2 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 60.0 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,876.0 —
Customer deposits 11.7 — —
Deferred revenue 1.0 — —

Revenues represent amounts charged to the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and to TH Energy for
street lighting and ancillary services. Operating expenses and capital expenditures represent amounts charged by the
City for purchased road cut repairs, property taxes and other services, the Corporation for purchased corporate and
management services, and TH Energy for the provision of goods and services. Finance costs represent interest charged
by the Corporation on the notes payable [note 11].

Accounts receivable represents receivables from the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and TH
Energy for the provision of goods and services. Unbilled revenue represents receivables from the City mainly related
to electricity provided and not yet billed. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts payable to the
City related to road cut repairs and other services. Included in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities are amounts
payable to the Corporation for purchased corporate and management services and interest accruing on the notes
payable to the Corporation. Notes payable to related party represent amounts borrowed from the Corporation [note
11]. Customer deposits represent amounts received from the City for future expansion projects. Deferred revenue
represents amounts received from the City primarily for the construction of electricity distribution assets.
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Key management personnel include LDC’s senior executive officers and members of the Board of Directors. The
compensation costs associated with the key management personnel are as follows:

2016 2015

$ $
Short-term employee benefits 3.7 4.2
Post-employment benefits 1.0 1.0
Termination benefits — 0.9
4.7 6.1

23. COMMITMENTS
Operating leases and capital projects

As at December 31, 2016, the future minimum payments under property operating leases, capital projects and other
commitments were as follows:

Operating Capital
leases projects @ and
other
$ $
Less than one year 2.6 20.2
Between one and five years 3.0 25
Total amount of future minimum payments @ 5.6 22.7

(@ Refer to note 14 for financial commitments excluded from the table above.
@ Mainly commitments for construction services.

Operating lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $6.4 million [2015 - $6.3 million].

Finance leases

As at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, reconciliation between the future minimum lease payments and
their present value was as follows:

2016 2015
$ $
Present Present
Future value of Future value of
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
Less than one year 3.2 0.2 3.0 35 0.3 3.2
Between one and five years 1.6 — 1.6 5.0 0.2 4.8
More than five years — — — — — —
4.8 0.2 4.6 8.5 0.5 8.0
Current portion included
in Other liabilities 3.0 3.2
Non-current portion
included in Other liabilities 1.6 4.8
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24. CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, LDC is subject to various legal actions and claims from customers, suppliers,
former employees and other parties. On an ongoing basis, LDC assesses the likelihood of any adverse judgments or
outcomes as well as potential ranges of probable costs and losses. A determination of the provision required, if any,
for these contingencies is made after an analysis of each individual issue. The provision may change in the future due
to new developments in each matter or changes in approach, such as a change in settlement strategy. If damages were
awarded under these actions, LDC would make a claim under any applicable liability insurance policies which LDC
believes would cover any damages which may become payable by LDC in connection with these actions, subject to
such claim not being disputed by the insurers.

25. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Regulation

The following regulatory treatments have resulted in accounting treatments which differ from those prescribed by
IFRS for enterprises operating in an unregulated environment and regulated entities that did not adopt IFRS 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts [“IFRS 14”]:

Regulatory Balances

In January 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 14 as an interim standard giving entities conducting rate-regulated activities
the option of continuing to recognize regulatory balances according to their previous GAAP. Regulatory balances
provide useful information about LDC’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. IFRS 14 is
restricted to first-time adopters of IFRS and remains in force until either repealed or replaced by permanent guidance
on rate-regulated accounting from the 1ASB. LDC elected to early adopt IFRS 14 for the year ended December 31,
2015.

LDC has determined that certain debit and credit balances arising from rate-regulated activities qualify for the
application of regulatory accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS 14 and the accounting principles prescribed
by the OEB in the “Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity Distributors”. Under rate-regulated accounting,
the timing and recognition of certain expenses and revenues may differ from those otherwise expected under other
IFRS in order to appropriately reflect the economic impact of regulatory decisions regarding LDC’s regulated revenues
and expenditures. These amounts arising from timing differences are recorded as regulatory debit and credit balances
on LDC’s balance sheets, and represent existing rights and obligations regarding cash flows expected to be recovered
from or refunded to customers, based on decisions and approvals by the OEB. Regulatory balances can be recognized
for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if the OEB directs the relevant regulatory treatment or if future
OEB direction is determined by management to be probable. In the event that the disposition of these balances is
assessed to no longer be probable based on management’s judgment, the balances are recorded in LDC’s statements
of income in the period when the assessment is made. Regulatory balances that do not meet the definition of an asset
or liability under any other IFRS are segregated on the balance sheets, the statements of income and the statements of
comprehensive income as net movements in regulatory balances and net movements in regulatory balances related to
OCl, net of tax. The netting of regulatory debit and credit balances is not permitted. The measurement of regulatory
balances is subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions made in the interpretation of the
OEB’s regulations and decisions.
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b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank accounts and short-term investments with terms to maturity of 90 days
or less from their date of acquisition. On the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents (joint bank
indebtedness) include bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of LDC’s cash
management.

c) Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoiced amount and overdue amounts bear interest at OEB-approved rates.
Unbilled revenue is recorded based on an estimated amount for electricity delivered and for other services provided
and not yet billed. The estimate is primarily based on the customers’ previous billings with adjustments mainly for
assumptions related to seasonality and weighted average price. The carrying amount of accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue is reduced through an allowance for doubtful accounts, if applicable, and the amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the statements of income. The impairment loss is the difference between an asset’s
carrying amount and the estimated future cash flows. When LDC considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the financial assets, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases due to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through net income.

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, which includes default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, and adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers. Accounts receivable and unbilled
revenue that are not individually assessed for impairment are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together receivables with similar risk characteristics, and LDC considers historical trends on the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, as well as current economic and credit conditions.

d) Materials and supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of small consumable materials mainly related to the maintenance of the
electricity distribution infrastructure. LDC classifies all major construction related components of its electricity
distribution infrastructure to PP&E. Materials and supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
with cost determined on a weighted average cost basis net of a provision for obsolescence.

e) Property, plant and equipment

PP&E are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. The
cost of PP&E represents the original cost, consisting of direct materials and labour, contracted services, borrowing
costs, and directly attributable overhead. Subsequent costs are capitalized only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to LDC and the costs can be measured reliably. If
significant parts of an item of PP&E have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate major
components of PP&E. The carrying amount of an item of PP&E is derecognized on disposal of the asset or when no
future economic benefits are expected to accrue to LDC from its continued use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recorded in the statements of income in the period in which the asset is derecognized. The gain or
loss on disposal of an item of PP&E is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds less the carrying amount
of the asset and costs of removal and is recognized in the statements of income.
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Depreciation begins when an asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Distribution assets:

Distribution lines 1.7% to 5.0%

Transformers 3.3% to 5.0%

Meters 2.5% 10 6.7%

Stations 2.5% to 10.0%
Buildings 1.3% to 5.0%
Equipment and other:

Assets under finance lease 1.0% to 14.3%

Other capital assets 4.0% to 25.0%

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that LDC will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Assets under finance lease included a 99-year land lease.
Construction in progress relates to assets not currently available for use and therefore is not depreciated. The
depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. There are no
residual values for items of PP&E.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if
applicable.

Amortization begins when an asset becomes available for use. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Computer software 10.0% to 25.0%
Contributions 4.0%

Software in development and contributions for work in progress relate to assets not currently available for use and
therefore are not amortized. Contributions represent payments made to HONI for dedicated infrastructure in order to
receive connections to transmission facilities. The amortization method and useful lives are reviewed each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

LDC reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other than materials and supplies and deferred tax assets
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, in which case the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent on the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
LDC has determined that its assets are a single CGU due to interdependencies of its assets to generate cash flows. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in the statements of income, and are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in the
CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss recognized in prior periods is reversed when an asset’s recoverable
amount has increased, but not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
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h) Capitalized borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of qualifying assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The interest rate for capitalization is LDC’s weighted average
cost of borrowing, and is applied to the carrying amount of the construction-in-progress assets or assets under
development including borrowing costs previously capitalized, net of capital contributions received. Capitalization
commences immediately as the expenditure on a qualifying asset is incurred. Borrowing costs are included in PP&E
and intangible assets for financial reporting purposes, and charged to operations through depreciation and amortization
expense over the useful lives of the related assets.

1) Revenue recognition

Revenues from energy sales and distribution are recorded on the basis of cyclical billings and include an estimated
amount for electricity delivered and not yet billed. These revenues are impacted by energy demand primarily driven
by outside temperature, and customer class usage patterns and composition.

Energy sales arise from charges to customers for electricity consumed, based on regulated rates. Energy sales include
amounts billed or billable to customers for commodity charges, retail transmission charges, and WMS charges at
current rates. LDC applies judgment to determine whether revenues are recorded on a gross or net basis. These charges
are passed through to customers over time and are considered revenue by LDC due to the collection risk of the related
balances. LDC has primary responsibility for the delivery of electricity to the customer. During the same period,
energy sales should be equal to the cost of energy purchased. However, a difference between energy sales and energy
purchases arises when there is a timing difference between the amounts charged by LDC to customers, based on
regulated rates, and the electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to LDC.
This difference is recorded as a settlement variance, representing future amounts to be recovered from or refunded to
customers through future billing rates approved by the OEB. In accordance with IFRS 14, this settlement variance is
presented within regulatory balances on the balance sheets and within net movements in regulatory balances on the
statements of income.

Distribution revenue is recorded based on OEB-approved distribution rates to recover the costs incurred by LDC in
delivering electricity to customers. Distribution revenue also includes revenue related to the collection of OEB-
approved rate riders.

Other revenue, which includes revenue from services ancillary to the electricity distribution, delivery of street lighting
services, and pole and duct rentals, is recognized as the services are rendered. When services are made up of different
components which are not separately identifiable, the related other revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the contract. Capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire PP&E
for the purpose of connecting a customer to a network are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized into other
revenue at an equivalent rate to that used for the depreciation of the related PP&E. Revenue not yet recognized from
ancillary services is also included within deferred revenue.

Revenues and costs associated with CDM programs are presented using the net basis of accounting. Cost efficiency
incentives related to the CDM programs, included as part of other revenue, are recognized when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be reasonably measured.

j) Financial instruments

All financial assets are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and all financial liabilities are classified as “Other
Financial Liabilities”. These financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value adjusted for any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment for the financial assets. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration
that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between willing parties.
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LDC uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which carrying amounts are included in the balance sheets:

e Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured
at fair value. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

e Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent measurements
are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

e Bank indebtedness is classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and is initially measured at fair value. Subsequent
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

e Advance from related party is classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and is initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying
amount approximates fair value due to the short maturity of this instrument.

e Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured
at fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

e Customer deposits are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at cost plus accrued interest. The carrying amounts approximate fair
value taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance.

e  Obligations under finance leases are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value, or the present value of the minimum lease payments if lower. Subsequent measurements are based on a
discounted cash flow analysis and approximate the carrying amount as management believes that the fixed interest
rates are representative of current market rates.

e Notes payable to related party are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amounts are carried at amortized cost, based on the fair value of the notes payable at issuance,
which was the fair value of the consideration received adjusted for transaction costs. The fair values of the notes
payable are based on the present value of contractual cash flows, discounted at LDC’s current borrowing rate for
similar debt instruments [note 14[a]]. Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with LDC’s debt offerings are
capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the notes payable and amortized over the term of the related notes
payable, using the effective interest method, and the amortization is included in finance costs.

k) Fair value measurements

LDC utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A fair value hierarchy exists that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs
used to measure fair value. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect LDC’s assumptions with respect to how market participants would price an asset or
liability. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

e Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for
the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis;
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e Level 2: Other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3: Unobservable inputs, supported by little or no market activity, used to measure the fair value of the
assets or liabilities to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

I) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations that are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if LDC
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(i) Multi-employer pension plan

LDC’s full-time employees participate in a pension plan through OMERS. The OMERS plan is a jointly sponsored,
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan established in 1962 by the Province of Ontario for employees of
municipalities, local boards and school boards. Both participating employers and employees are required to make
plan contributions equally based on participating employees’ contributory earnings, and share equally in funding gains
or losses. The plan assets and pension obligations are not segregated in separate accounts for each member entity.
The OMERS plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan and the contribution payable is recognized as an
employee benefit expense in the statements of income in the period when the service is rendered by the employee,
since it is not practicable to determine LDC’s portion of pension obligations or of the fair value of plan assets.

(iii) Post-employment benefits other than pension

LDC has a number of unfunded benefit plans providing post-employment benefits (other than pension) to its
employees. LDC pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits under unfunded defined benefit plans on
behalf of its retired employees. LDC also pays accumulated sick leave credits, up to certain established limits based
on service, in the event of retirement, termination or death of certain employees.

The cost of providing benefits under the benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method,
which incorporates management’s best estimate of future salary levels, retirement ages of employees, health care
costs, and other actuarial factors. Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments give rise to actuarial
gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses on medical, dental and life insurance benefits are recognized in OCI as
they arise. Actuarial gains and losses related to rate-regulated activities are subsequently reclassified from OCI to a
regulatory balance on the balance sheets. Actuarial gains and losses on accumulated sick leave credits are recognized
in the statements of income in the period in which they arise.

The measurement date used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation is December 31 of the applicable
year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1, 2016.

m) Customer deposits

Security deposits from electricity customers are cash collections to guarantee the payment of electricity bills. The
electricity customer security deposits liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers with a
corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits that are refundable upon demand are classified as a current
liability.
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Security deposits on offers to connect are cash collections from specific customers to guarantee the payment of
additional costs relating to expansion projects. This liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers
with a corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits are classified as a current liability when LDC no
longer has an unconditional right to defer payment of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

n) Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, LDC is required to make PILs to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. These
payments are calculated in accordance with the ITA and the TA as modified by regulations made under the Electricity
Act and related regulations. This effectively results in LDC paying income taxes equivalent to what would be imposed
under the Federal and Ontario Tax Acts.

LDC uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, current income taxes
payable are recorded based on taxable income. LDC recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the carrying value of assets and liabilities on the balance
sheets and their respective tax basis, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date that
are in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Tax benefits associated with income tax
positions taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return are recorded only when it is probable that they will be realized,
and are measured at the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The calculation of current and deferred taxes requires
management to make certain judgments with respect to changes in tax interpretations, regulations and legislation, and
to estimate probable outcomes on the timing and reversal of temporary differences and tax authority audits of income
tax.

Rate-regulated accounting requires the recognition of regulatory balances and related deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the amount of deferred taxes expected to be refunded to or recovered from customers through future electricity
distribution rates. A gross up to reflect the income tax benefits associated with reduced revenues resulting from the
realization of deferred tax assets is recorded within regulatory credit balances. Deferred taxes that are not included in
the rate-setting process are charged or credited to the statements of income.

The benefits of the refundable and non-refundable apprenticeship and other ITCs are credited against the related
expense in the statements of income.

0) Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of LDC’s financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, reported assets, liabilities and
regulatory balances, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported revenues and expenses for the year. The estimates are based on historical experience, current conditions
and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as for identifying and
assessing the accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results could differ from
those estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the IESO, the Ontario Ministry of
Energy or the Ontario Ministry of Finance.

Information about judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements is included in note 25[i] relating to principal versus agent determination.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively. Assumptions and estimates with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year are used in the following:

Note 25[a] — Recognition and measurement of regulatory balances;

Note 25[i] — Revenue recognition — measurement of unbilled revenue, determination of the CDM incentive;
Notes 25[e] and 25[f] — Determination of useful lives of depreciable assets;

Notes 25[I] and 12 — Measurement of post-employment benefits — key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 25[n] and 20 — Recognition of deferred tax assets — availability of future taxable income against which
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be used; and

e Note 24 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies.

p) Changes in accounting policies

In December 2014, the IASB issued Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements). These amendments improve the existing presentation and disclosure requirements and encourage entities
to apply professional judgment regarding disclosure and presentation in their financial statements. These amendments
were adopted effective January 1, 2016. The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on LDC’s financial
statements.

g) Future accounting pronouncements

A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,
2016, and have not yet been applied in preparing these financial statements. LDC continues to analyze these standards
and has determined that the following could have an impact on its financial statements.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers [“IFRS 15”], which replaces existing
revenue recognition guidance, including 1AS 18 Revenue and IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers [“IFRIC
18”]. IFRS 15 contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers with two approaches for recognizing
revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to
determine whether revenue should be recognized and the respective timing and amount. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds have been introduced, which may affect the amount and/or timing of revenue recognized. The
new standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope of
other IFRS. On July 22, 2015, the IASB confirmed a one-year deferral of the effective date of IFRS 15 to annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 15, which was originally issued in May 2014. These amendments
do not change the underlying principles of the standard but clarify how those principles should be applied. The
amendments clarify how to identify a performance obligation in a contract, determine whether a company is a principal
or an agent, and determine whether the revenue from granting a licence should be recognized at a point in time or over
time. The amendments also include two additional transitional reliefs. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, consistent with the effective date of the standard.

LDC will adopt IFRS 15 on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach with practical expedients.
LDC has completed its initial assessment of the key revenue streams and continues to evaluate the impact of the new
standard.

Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the 1ASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments [“IFRS 9], which replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement [“IAS 39”]. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the
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classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for measuring
impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance
on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and will be applied retrospectively with some exceptions. LDC is currently
evaluating the impact of the new standard.

Leases

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases [“IFRS 16”], which replaces IAS 17 Leases [“IAS 17”] and related
interpretations. IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and liabilities
for all leases, unless the lease term is twelve months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessor accounting
remains largely unchanged from IAS 17 and the distinction between operating and finance leases is retained. In
addition, lessees will recognize a front-loaded pattern of expense for most leases, even when they pay constant annual
rentals. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, and will be applied
retrospectively with some exceptions. Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15 is also adopted.

LDC will elect to early adopt IFRS 16 on January 1, 2018 using the full retrospective approach for lessee’s
measurement of leases with practical expedients, and apply the practical expedient on lease definition. LDC has
completed its initial assessment of its existing operating leases and anticipates that IFRS 16 will not have a significant
impact on the LDC’s consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows as part of the IASB’s Disclosure
Initiative. These amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes from cash flows and non-cash
changes. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The adoption of
these amendments are expected to increase disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
with no impact to the LDC’s financial position or results of operations.
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Chartered Professional Accountants Fax (416) 777-8818
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333 Bay Street
Toronto, ON M5H 2S5

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholder of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited, which comprise the balance
sheets as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Toronto Hydro-Electric
System Limited as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

K& 214
e

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
March 6, 2018
Toronto, Canada

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

BALANCE SHEETS
[in millions of Canadian dollars]
As at December 31 2017 2016

$ $
ASSETS
Current
Accounts receivable [notes 4 and 15[b]] 217.2 226.2
Unbilled revenue [note 15[b]] 276.0 319.7
Materials and supplies 9.3 9.7
Other assets  [note 5] 12.7 13.5
Assets held for sale [note 8] 8.7 -
Total current assets 523.9 569.1
Property, plant and equipment [note 6] 4,107.8 3,876.3
Intangible assets  [note 7] 296.2 217.8
Deferred tax assets  [note 21] 57.0 63.8
Other assets [note 5] 3.0 1.3
Total assets 4,987.9 4,728.3
Regulatory balances [note 9] 199.9 190.8
Total assets and regulatory balances 5,187.8 4,919.1
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current
Bank indebtedness 125.0 50.5
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 10] 513.3 500.4
Income tax payable 12.5 9.0
Customer deposits 49.2 39.1
Deferred revenue [note 11] 9.9 43
Deferred conservation credit  [note 3[c]] 9.3 55
Notes payable to related party [notes 12 and 23] 60.0 304.9
Other liabilities [note 24] 1.5 3.1
Total current liabilities 780.7 916.8
Notes payable to related party [notes 12 and 23] 2,029.9 1,830.6
Customer deposits 8.9 15.0
Deferred revenue [note 11] 178.8 139.9
Post-employment benefits [note 13] 313.0 280.5
Other liabilities [note 24] 0.2 1.9
Total liabilities 3,3115 3,184.7
Commitments, contingencies and subsequent events [notes 2, 24 and 25]
Equity
Share capital [note 17] 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings 1,147.2 995.9
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,716.3 1,565.0
Total liabilities and equity 5,027.8 4,749.7
Regulatory balances [note 9] 160.0 169.4
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 5,187.8 4,919.1

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2017 2016

$ $
Revenues
Energy sales 3,017.8 3,306.2
Distribution revenue 724.2 647.9
Other [note 18] 96.7 66.3

3,838.7 4,020.4
Expenses
Energy purchases 3,063.5 3,216.9
Operating expenses [note 19] 284.2 267.6
Depreciation and amortization [notes 6 and 7] 222.3 210.6

3,570.0 3,695.1
Finance costs [note 20] (81.0) (76.6)
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment 9.8 2.1
Income before income taxes 197.5 250.8
Income tax expense [note 21] (44.2) (67.2)
Net income 153.3 183.6
Net movements in regulatory balances [note 9] (13.1) (77.2)
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets [note 9] 13.2 44.0
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 153.4 150.4

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2017 2016

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 153.4 150.4

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to income or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax (2017 - $6.7, 2016 - $5.5) [note 13] (18.4) 15.5
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (2017 - $6.7, 2016 - $5.5) [note 13] 18.4 (15.5)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income 153.4 150.4

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2017 2016
$ $

Share capital [note 17] 556.3 556.3
Retained earnings, beginning of year 995.9 845.5
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 153.4 150.4
Dividends [notes 17 and 23] (2.1) -
Retained earnings, end of year 1,147.2 995.9
Contributed surplus 12.8 12.8
Total equity 1,716.3 1,565.0

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

[in millions of Canadian dollars]

Year ended December 31 2017 2016
$ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 153.4 150.4
Net movements in regulatory balances [note 9] 13.1 77.2
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets [note 9] (13.2) (44.0)
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortization [notes 6 and 7] 222.3 210.6
Amortization of deferred revenue [note 11] 4.7) (3.8)
Finance costs 81.0 76.6
Income tax expense 44.2 67.2
Post-employment benefits 7.4 5.0
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment (9.8) (2.1)
Other 11 0.7
Capital contributions received [note 11] 50.8 44.3
Net change in other non-current assets and liabilities (6.5) (0.4)
Increase in customer deposits 4.0 6.7
Changes in non-cash working capital balances [note 22] 60.7 (14.2)
Income tax paid (22.1) (0.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities 581.7 573.3
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [note 22] (433.8) (506.6)
Purchase of intangible assets [note 22] (93.4) (39.9)
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 12.5 2.2
Net cash used in investing activities (514.7) (544.3)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of notes payable to related party [note 12] 198.6 198.7
Repayment of notes payable to related party [note 12] (245.1) -
Repayment of finance lease liability (3.0) (3.1)
Dividends paid [note 17] (2.1) -
Interest received 0.3 0.3
Interest paid (90.2) (86.5)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (141.5) 109.4
Net decrease (increase) in bank indebtedness during the year (74.5) 138.4
Bank indebtedness, beginning of year (50.5) (188.9)
Bank indebtedness, end of year (125.0) (50.5)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited was incorporated on June 23, 1999 under the Business Corporations Act
(Ontario) in accordance with the Electricity Act. LDC is wholly-owned by the Corporation and is domiciled in
Canada, with its registered office located at 14 Carlton Street, Toronto, Ontario, M5B 1KS5.

LDC distributes electricity to customers located in the City and is subject to rate regulation. LDC is also engaged in
the delivery of CDM activities.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

LDC’s audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS with respect to the preparation of annual financial information.

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, LDC’s functional currency, and have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for post-employment benefits which are recorded at actuarial value.

LDC has evaluated the events and transactions occurring after the balance sheet date through March 6, 2018 when
LDC’s financial statements were authorized for issue by LDC’s Board of Directors, and identified the events and
transactions which required recognition in the LDC’s financial statements and/or disclosure in these notes to the
LDC’s financial statements [note 8].

The summary of significant accounting policies has been disclosed in note 26.

3. REGULATION

The OEB has regulatory oversight of electricity matters in Ontario. The OEB’s authority and responsibilities include
the power to approve and fix rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity, the power to approve the amounts
paid to non-contracted generators, the responsibility to provide rate protection for rural or remote electricity customers,
and the responsibility for ensuring that electricity distribution companies fulfill their obligations to connect and service
customers.

LDC s required to charge its customers for the following amounts (all of which, other than distribution rates, represent
a pass-through of amounts payable to third parties):

Commodity Charge — The commodity charge represents the market price of electricity consumed by
customers and is passed through the IESO back to operators of generating stations. It includes the global
adjustment, which represents the difference between the market price of electricity and the rates paid to
regulated and contracted generators.

Retail Transmission Rate — The retail transmission rate represents the costs incurred in respect of the
transmission of electricity from generating stations to local distribution networks. Retail transmission rates
are passed through back to operators of transmission facilities.

WMS Charge — The WMS charge represents various wholesale market support costs, such as the cost of the
IESO to administer the wholesale electricity system, operate the electricity market, and maintain reliable
operation of the provincial grid. Wholesale charges are passed through back to the IESO.

Distribution Rate — The distribution rate is designed to recover the costs incurred by LDC in delivering
electricity to customers, including the OEB-allowed cost of capital. Distribution rates are regulated by the
OEB and include fixed and variable (usage-based) components, based on a forecast of LDC’s customers and
load.



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

a) Electricity Distribution Rates

The OEB’s regulatory framework for electricity distributors is designed to support the cost-effective planning and
operation of the electricity distribution network and to provide an appropriate alignment between a sustainable,
financially viable electricity sector and the expectations of customers for reliable service at a reasonable price.

The OEB typically regulates the electricity rates for distributors using a combination of detailed cost of service reviews
and IRM adjustments. Under the OEB’s rate-setting methods, actual operating conditions may vary from forecasts
such that actual returns achieved can differ from approved returns. Approved electricity rates are generally not
adjusted as a result of actual costs or revenues being different from forecasted amounts, other than for certain
prescribed costs that are eligible for deferral for future collection from, or refund to, customers.

On March 1, 2016 pursuant to LDC’s 2015 — 2019 CIR application, the OEB set 2018 distribution rates on an interim
basis. On August 23, 2017, LDC filed its 2018 rate application seeking OEB’s approval to finalize distribution rates
and other charges for the period commencing on January 1, 2018 and ending on December 31, 2018. On December
14,2017, the OEB issued a decision and rate order approving LDC’s 2018 rates, with an effective date of January 1,
2018, and the disposition of certain deferral and variance accounts.

b) Ontario’s Fair Hydro Plan

On March 2, 2017, the Government of Ontario announced the OFHP, which includes a number of initiatives, some of
which affect LDC or its customers.

OFHP includes the OREC, which came into effect on January 1, 2017. The OREC provides eligible customers with
financial assistance in the form of an 8% rebate of the pre-tax cost of their electricity. The OREC rebates are
administered by LDC and paid by the IESO in the month following customer billing. Current accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue include the amount owing by the IESO to LDC. No effect on revenue or expense is recognized by
LDC in respect of the OREC rebates.

OFHP also includes the OFHA, which enacted the Ontario Fair Hydro Plan Act, 2017 and amended the Electricity
Act, 1998 and the Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998. The OFHA came into effect on June 1, 2017 and its impact is
reflected in the financial statements. The OFHA provides eligible customers with financial assistance through various
changes to commaodity pricing, new or amended programs, and eliminating or reducing certain provincial charges on
the electricity bill. The OFHA reduces the total electricity bill for eligible customers and, accordingly, reduces current
accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, accounts payable and accrued liabilities for LDC. No effect on distribution
revenue or expense is recognized by LDC in respect of the OFHA.

c) CDM Activities

On March 26, 2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario, under the guidance of sections 27.1 and 27.2 of the OEB Act,
directed the OEB to amend the licence of each licensed electricity distributor to require the electricity distributor, as
a condition of its licence, to make CDM programs available to its customers and to do so in relation to each customer
segment in its service area, over the period beginning January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2020. On March 31,
2014, the Minister of Energy of Ontario issued a direction to require the OPA to coordinate, support and fund the
delivery of CDM programs through electricity distributors. The objective of the CDM efforts is to reduce electricity
consumption in the Province of Ontario by a total of 7 terawatt hours between January 1, 2015 and December 31,
2020, of which LDC’s share is approximately 1,576 GWh of energy savings.

On November 13, 2014, LDC entered into an energy conservation agreement with the OPA for the delivery of CDM
programs over the 2015-2020 period. The IESO and the OPA were merged under the name IESO starting on January
1, 2015.

Under the energy conservation agreement with the IESO, LDC has a joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro Electricity

Distribution Inc. [“Oakville Hydro”] for the delivery of CDM programs over the 2015-2020 period. LDC can choose

between full cost recovery funding, pay-for-performance funding, or a combination of both, on a CDM program by
8
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[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

program basis. Under the full cost recovery funding method, the IESO reimburses LDC for all adequately documented
incurred costs, with an option to receive a portion of its funding in advance. Cost efficiency incentives may be awarded
if LDC’s electricity savings meet or exceed certain CDM plan targets for programs under the full cost recovery funding
method, with a mid-term review to be performed by the IESO for the 2015-2017 period. Under the pay-for-
performance funding method, LDC receives payment in arrears based on verified electricity savings achieved with
various options for frequency of payment. The programs under the joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro are only
being offered under the full cost recovery funding method.

The joint CDM plan provides combined funding of approximately $425.0 million, including participant incentives
and program administration costs to achieve an aggregate energy savings target of approximately 1,668 GWh.
Oakville Hydro’s programs under the joint CDM plan started on January 1, 2016. LDC received $44.9 million as at
December 31, 2016 and $57.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2017 from the IESO for the delivery of CDM
programs. Amounts received but not yet spent are presented on the balance sheets under current liabilities as deferred
conservation credit. As at December 31, 2017, LDC estimated that approximately $12.9 million qualified as a joint
mid-term incentive, of which $12.2 million represents LDC’s portion and is included within accounts receivable.

Effective October 16, 2017, LDC entered into an agreement to transfer $4.0 million of funding and a corresponding
20 GWh of its energy savings target to another local distribution company. This agreement will decrease the joint

CDM plan funding with Oakville Hydro to $421.0 million, with a revised energy savings target of 1,648 GWh. The
revised CDM plan was approved by the IESO on December 14, 2017.

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consists of the following:

2017 2016
$ $
Trade receivables 188.6 214.7
Due from related parties [note 23] 14.8 10.1
CDM mid-term incentive [note 3[c]] 122 —
Other 16 14
217.2 226.2
5. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets consist of the following:
2017 2016
$ $
Prepaid expenses 11.3 12.3
Deferred financing costs 1.6 1.6
Other 2.8 0.9
Total other assets 15.7 14.8
Less: Current portion of other assets relating to:
Prepaid expenses 113 12.3
Deferred financing costs 04 04
Other 1.0 0.8
Current portion of other assets 12.7 13.5
Non-current portion of other assets 3.0 13




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PP&E consist of the following:

Distribution Land and Equipment Construction Total
assets buildings and other in progress
$ $ $ $ $
Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2016 3,027.2 203.1 119.7 496.3 3,846.3
Additions/(Transfers) 381.2 111.3 61.7 (48.1) 506.1
Disposals and retirements (32.1) (0.1) (0.3) — (32.5)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,376.3 314.3 181.1 448.2 43199
Additions/(Transfers) 404.4 84.8 32.8 (77.1) 4449
Assets held for sale [note 8] — (21.2) — = (21.2)
Disposals and retirements (31.5) (3.2) (0.3) = (35.0)
Balance as at December 31, 2017 3,749.2 374.7 213.6 371.1 4,708.6
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2016 222.6 15.7 46.1 — 2844
Depreciation 129.3 10.3 24.3 — 163.9
Disposals and retirements (4.6) — (0.1) — (4.7)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 347.3 26.0 70.3 — 4436
Depreciation 138.1 135 24.8 = 1764
Assets held for sale [note 8] — (12.5) — — (12.5)
Disposals and retirements (5.9) (0.5) (0.3) = (6.7)
Balance as at December 31, 2017 479.5 26.5 94.8 600.8
Carrying amount
Balance as at December 31, 2016 3,029.0 288.3 110.8 448.2 3,876.3
Balance as at December 31, 2017 3,269.7 348.2 118.8 371.1 4107.8

As at December 31, 2017, “Equipment and other” included assets under finance lease with cost of $18.2 million
[December 31, 2016 - $18.2 million] and accumulated depreciation of $10.4 million [December 31, 2016 - $8.3
million]. For the year ended December 31, 2017, LDC recorded depreciation expense of $2.1 million [2016 - $2.3
million] related to assets under finance lease.

For the year ended December 31, 2017, borrowing costs in the amount of $6.2 million [2016 - $9.5 million] were
capitalized to PP&E and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.73% [2016 - 3.61%)].

“Construction in progress” additions are net of transfers to the other PP&E categories.

10




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Computer Contributions Software in Contributions Total
software development forwork in
progress
$ $ $

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2016 101.6 21.7 11.8 104.3 2394
Additions/(Transfers) 11.9 53.8 8.4 (34.2) 39.9
Balance as at December 31, 2016 1135 755 20.2 70.1 279.3
Additions/(Transfers) 234 — 34.0 44.0 1014
Balance as at December 31, 2017 136.9 75.5 54.2 1141 380.7
Accumulated amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2016 38.1 2.0 — — 40.1
Amortization 19.3 2.1 — — 214
Balance as at December 31, 2016 57.4 41 — — 61.5
Amortization 20.0 3.0 — — 23.0
Balance as at December 31, 2017 774 7.1 — — 84.5
Carrying amount
Balance as at December 31, 2016 56.1 714 20.2 70.1 217.8
Balance as at December 31, 2017 59.5 68.4 54.2 1141 296.2

For the year ended December 31, 2017, borrowing costs in the amount of $3.6 million [2016 - $3.0 million] were
capitalized to intangible assets and credited to finance costs, with an average capitalization rate of 3.73% [2016 -
3.61%)].

“Software in development” and “Contributions for work in progress” additions are net of transfers to the other
intangible asset categories.

“Computer software” is externally acquired. The remaining amortization periods for computer software and
contributions range from less than one year to 5 years, and from 11 to 25 years, respectively.

8. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

In 2017, LDC commenced the process to sell a property including land and buildings to a third party. Accordingly,
the carrying amount of the identified assets of $8.7 million was transferred from PP&E to assets held for sale as at
December 31, 2017. Upon reclassification as assets held for sale, no further depreciation was recorded by LDC on
the related assets. On January 16, 2018, LDC entered into an agreement to sell the property, which is expected to
close on April 16, 2018. Upon completion of the sale, the net gain including the future tax savings will be deferred as
a regulatory credit balance [note 9[c]].

11



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

9. REGULATORY BALANCES

Debit balances consist of the following:

RELTIETY Balances Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
1,2017 arising in reversal movements 31, 2017 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
period
months
OPEB actuarial net loss 60.2 25.1 — — 85.3 note 9[a] —
Foregone revenue 64.3 — (20.3) — 44.0 24 —
Gain on disposal 8.6 (8.1) 18.6 = 19.1 note 9[c] *
LRAM 105 11.0 (4.8) — 16.7 note 9[d] *
IFRS transitional adjustments 228 — (7.8) — 15.0 24 —
Stranded meters 114 — (3.9) — 7.5 24 *
OPEB cash versus accrual 29 13 — — 4.2 note 9[g] —
Named properties 4.6 — (15) — 3.1 24 —
Capital contributions 15 — 05) = 1.0 24 —
Smart meters 2.1 — (3.1) 1.0 — — —
Other 1.9 21 — — 4.0 — *
190.8 314 (23.3) 1.0 199.9
January Balances Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
arising in reversal movements 31,2016 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
period
months
OPEB actuarial net loss 81.2 (21.0) — — 60.2 note 9[a] —
Foregone revenue 61.1 192 (16.0) — 64.3 36 —
Gain on disposal — — 145 (5.9) 8.6 note 9[c] *
LRAM 9.1 47 (3.3) — 105 note 9[d] *
IFRS transitional adjustments 28.9 — (6.1) — 22.8 36 —
Stranded meters 144 — (3.0) — 114 36 *
OPEB cash versus accrual 1.8 11 — — 29 note 9[g] —
Named properties 58 — (1.2) — 4.6 36 —
Capital contributions 1.9 — 0.4) — 15 36 —
Smart meters 10.0 — (7.9) — 2.1 4 —
Settlement variances 253 — — (25.3) — — *
Other 22 16 — (1.9) 19 —
241.7 5.6 (23.4) (33.1) 190.8

* In accordance with the OEB’s direction, carrying charges were accrued to certain regulatory balances at a rate of 1.10% for
January 1, 2017 to September 30, 2017 and 1.50% for October 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 [2016 - 1.10%].

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Credit balances consist of the following:

January 1, Balances  Recovery/ Other December  Remaining Carrying
2017 arising in reversal  movements 31,2017 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
$
Deferred taxes 65.3 (6.5) — — 58.8 note 9j] —
Settlement variances 62.8 (45.2) 234 — 410 note 9[k] *
Capital-related revenue
requirement 8.8 16.2 — — 250 note 9[I] *
Derecognition 128 3.1 — = 159 note 9[m] *
Tax-related variances 175 — (8.2) — 93 12 *
Development charges — 53 — — 53 note 9[o] *
Smart meters — — (0.7) 1.0 03 — *
Other 22 2.7 (0.5) — 44 — *
169.4 (24.4) 14.0 1.0 160.0
January 1, Balances  Recovery/ Other December  Remaining  Carrying
2016 arising in reversal movements 31,2016 recovery/ charges
the period reversal applicable
$
Deferred taxes 114.8 (49.5) — — 65.3 note 9j] —
Settlement variances — 89.3 1.2 27.7) 62.8 note 9[k] *
Capital-related revenue
requirement 28 6.0 — — 8.8 note 9[I] *
Derecognition 99 29 — — 12.8 note 9[m] *
Tax-related variances 26.5 — (8.5) (0.5) 175 24 *
ICM 9.7 0.1 (9.8) — — — *
Gain on disposal 59 — — (5.9) — — *
Other 20 12 (2.0) 1.0 22 — *
1716 50.0 (19.1) (33.1) 169.4

* In accordance with the OEB’s direction, carrying charges were accrued to certain regulatory balances at a rate of 1.10% for
January 1, 2017 to September 30, 2017 and 1.50% for October 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017 [2016 - 1.10%)].

The “Balances arising in the period” column consists of new additions to regulatory balances (for both debits and
credits). The “Recovery/reversal” column consists of amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders or
transactions reversing an existing regulatory balance. The “Other movements” column consists of impairment and
reclassification between the regulatory debit and credit balances. Inaddition, the “Other movements” column includes
reclassification of regulatory deferral accounts considered to be insignificant into the “Other” categories. During
20186, residual regulatory balances approved by the OEB for disposition over a 10-month period commencing on
March 1, 2016 were reclassified from “Other” regulatory debit balance, settlement variances and tax-related variances
into “Other” regulatory credit balance. There was no impairment recorded for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Reconciliation between the net movements in regulatory balances shown above and the net movements presented on
the statements of income and the statements of comprehensive income is as follows:

2017 2016
$ $

Total movements per regulatory debit balances table 9.1 (50.9)
Total movements per regulatory credit balances table 9.4 2.2
Total net movements 185 (48.7)
Net movements per financial statements:

Net movements in regulatory balances (13.2) (77.2)

Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred tax assets 13.2 44.0

Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax 18.4 (15.5)
Total net movements per financial statements 18.5 (48.7)

Regulatory developments in Ontario's electricity industry regulatory developments and other governmental policy
changes may affect the electricity distribution rates charged by LDC and the costs LDC is permitted to recover. There
is a risk that the OEB may disallow the recovery of a portion of certain costs incurred in the current period through
future rates or disagree with the proposed recovery period. In the event that the disposition of these balances is
assessed to no longer be probable based on management’s judgment, any impairment will be recorded in the period
when the assessment is made.

The regulatory balances of LDC consist of the following:

a) OPEB Actuarial Net Loss

This regulatory balance accumulates the actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and
experience adjustments recognized in OCI. The balance arising during the year ended December 31, 2017 of $25.1
million is related to the actuarial loss recorded for the year [2016 - $21.0 million actuarial gain] [note 13[a]]. The net
position is an actuarial loss that is recoverable in future rates. LDC has not sought recovery to date from the OEB as
changes in underlying assumptions may reduce the balance in the account. LDC expects to recover this regulatory
balance as per OEB direction, in a future rate application.

b) Foregone Revenue

This regulatory balance relates to the revenue that LDC would have recovered in 2015 and 2016 if new OEB-approved
rates were implemented as of May 1, 2015 and January 1, 2016, respectively. In the CIR decision and rate order, the
OEB approved foregone revenue rate riders over 46 months commencing on March 1, 2016 for May 1, 2015 to
December 31, 2015 based on approved 2015 rates and for January 1, 2016 to February 29, 2016 based on approved
2016 rates.

c) Gain on Disposal

This regulatory balance consists of the net of amounts disposed through the OEB-approved rate riders offset by the
related tax savings (debits), and the after-tax gain realized on two significant LDC properties (credits). As part of the
CIR decision and rate order, LDC agreed to a rate rider that would pass the total forecasted net gains along with future
tax savings on both properties back to ratepayers, effective from March 1, 2016 to December 31, 2018. During 2015,
the gain on one of the properties was realized by LDC resulting in a net credit balance at December 31, 2015. As at
December 31, 2016, the amount disposed through the rate riders exceeded the gain realized on the first property as the
second property was still not sold, resulting in a net debit balance. Upon the sale of the second property, the account
would revert to a credit balance if actual net gains and tax savings exceed the total amount of the approved rate riders
[note 8]. In the second quarter of 2017, LDC realized a gain in connection with the disposal of a third property. LDC
expects to seek disposition for any residual balance in a future rate application.
14
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For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

d) Lost Revenue Adjustment Mechanism

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the level of CDM program activities included in LDC’s load
forecast used to set approved rates and the actual impact of CDM activities achieved. New variances are accrued
based on current CDM activities. Approved variances up to 2014 were disposed through OEB-approved rate riders
over 12 months commencing on January 1, 2017 and approved variances for 2015 and 2016 will be disposed through
OEB-approved rate riders over 12 months commencing on January 1, 2018. Variances pertaining to years subsequent
to 2016 have yet to be applied for disposition.

e) IFRS Transitional Adjustments

This regulatory balance relates to the differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible
assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014, primarily related to derecognition of certain assets and
additional capitalized borrowing costs. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the
balance over 46 months commencing on March 1, 2016.

f) Stranded Meters and Smart Meters
These regulatory balances relate to the provincial government’s decision to install smart meters throughout Ontario.

The net book value of stranded meters related to the deployment of smart meters was reclassified from PP&E to a new
regulatory balance as at December 31, 2013. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved LDC’s request
for recovery of the forecasted net book value of the stranded meters as at December 31, 2014 over 46 months
commencing on March 1, 2016.

On January 16, 2014, the OEB approved LDC's request for incremental revenue and disposition of the smart meter
regulatory balances to be recovered through rates over 36 months commencing on May 1, 2014. The OEB ruling on
smart meters also permitted the recovery in principle of LDC's allowed cost of capital on smart meters since 2008,
with a rate order issued to this effect. This allows LDC to recover the incremental revenue requirement associated
with these assets for the period during which they remained outside of rate base.

g) OPEB Cash versus Accrual

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between LDC’s forecasted OPEB costs determined on an accrual
basis and the cash payments made under the OPEB plans. The OEB directed LDC to track the difference as a
temporary arrangement, pending the OEB’s conclusion on the sector-wide policy consultation it initiated on the
regulatory treatment of pension and OPEB costs. On September 14, 2017, the OEB issued its final report on the
consultation and established the use of the accrual accounting method as the default method on which to set rates for
OPEB costs. LDC will continue to track the cash versus accrual difference until its next rate application when the
disposition of this regulatory balance will be considered. The timing of disposition of the balance is currently
unknown.

h) Named Properties

As part of 2010 rates, LDC had forecasted net gains on certain properties which were planned for sale between 2007
and 2011. This regulatory balance relates to the excess of those forecasted net gains over the actual net gains realized
upon the sale of the named properties. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of this
variance over 46 months commencing on March 1, 2016.
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i) Capital Contributions

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between amounts included in rates for HONI capital contributions
and actual contributions made in 2010 and 2011. In the CIR decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition
of this variance over 46 months commencing on March 1, 2016.

j) Deferred Taxes

This regulatory credit balance relates to both deferred tax amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 [note 26[a]] and the
expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the recognition
of deferred tax assets. LDC did not apply for disposition of the balance since it is reversed through timing differences
in the recognition of deferred tax assets.

The amounts reclassified under IFRS 14 include the deferred tax liability related to regulatory balances of $34.9
million as at December 31,2017 [December 31, 2016 - $36.4 million], offset by the recognition of a regulatory balance
in respect of additional temporary differences for which a deferred tax amount was recognized of $8.5 million as at
December 31, 2017 [December 31, 2016 - $10.4 million].

The deferred tax amount related to the expected future electricity distribution rate reduction for customers was $32.4
million as at December 31, 2017 [December 31, 2016 - $39.3 million].

k) Settlement Variances

This account includes the variances between amounts charged by LDC to customers, based on regulated rates, and the
corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs incurred by LDC. LDC has deferred
the variances between the costs incurred and the related recoveries in accordance with the criteria set out in the
accounting principles prescribed by the OEB. New variances are accrued based on current charges while approved
variances up to 2016, including carrying charges forecasted to the end of 2017, will be disposed through OEB-
approved rate riders over 12 months commencing on January 1, 2018. Settlement variances pertaining to years
subsequent to 2016 have yet to be applied for disposition.

I) Capital-related Revenue Requirement

This regulatory balance relates to the asymmetrical variance between the cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related
revenue requirement included in rates and the actual capital-related revenue requirement over the same period. If the
cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related revenue requirement included in rates exceeds the actual capital-related
revenue requirement over the same rate period, LDC must apply for disposition of this account in order to clear the
balance to ratepayers through a rate rider. This account was approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order.
The timing of disposition of the balance is currently unknown.

m) Derecognition

This regulatory balance relates to the difference between the revenue requirement on derecognition of PP&E and
intangible assets included in the OEB-approved rates and the actual amounts of derecognition. This account was
approved by the OEB in the CIR decision and rate order. The timing of disposition of the balance is currently
unknown.

n) Tax-related Variance Accounts

This regulatory credit balance arose from favourable income tax reassessments on certain prior year tax positions
received, which differed from those assumed in previous applications for electricity distribution rates. In the CIR
decision and rate order, the OEB approved disposition of the balance over 10-34 months commencing on March 1,
2016.
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0) Development charges

This regulatory balance relates to excess expansion deposits retained by LDC where the requested number of
connections or electricity demand were not met by the connecting customer. Pursuant to the OEB’s Distribution
System Code, LDC may collect expansion deposits on offers to connect from specific customers to guarantee the
payment of additional costs relating to expansion projects. During the customer connection horizon, LDC has an
obligation to annually return the expansion deposit to the connecting customer in proportion to the actual connections
or electricity demand that occurred in that year. If the number of connections or electricity demand requested by the
customer do not materialize by the end of the specified customer connection horizon, LDC retained the excess
expansion deposit not otherwise returned to the connecting customer.

The excess expansion deposits were recorded as a regulatory balance on the balance sheets, with a corresponding
offset in net movements in regulatory balances. This regulatory balance is expected to offset future electricity
distribution rates for customers, although application has yet to be made to dispose of the balance.

p) Incremental Capital Module

This regulatory balance related to the ICM application approved by the OEB and the associated rate riders, which
became effective June 1, 2013. The balance of $9.8 million represented the net of amounts collected through the ICM
rate riders from 2013 to 2014 and amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to the eligible in-service capital
expenditures. Further to the OEB’s decision on July 28, 2016, the entire balance of $9.8 million was recorded as an
increase in equity through net movements in regulatory balances in 2016.

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following:

2017 2016
$ $
Trade payables 323.7 323.6
Accrued liabilities 129.6 116.3
Due to related parties [note 23] 58.3 58.7
Other 1.7 18
513.3 500.4

17



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

11. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire PP&E
which have not yet been recognized into other revenue, and revenue not yet recognized from ancillary services [note

26[i]].

2017 2016
$ $
Capital contributions, beginning of year 143.2 103.0
Capital contributions received 50.8 44.3
Amortization 4.7) (3.8)
Other (1.5) (0.3)
Capital contributions, end of year 187.8 143.2
Other 0.9 1.0
Total deferred revenue 188.7 1442
Less: Current portion of deferred revenue relating to:
Capital contributions 9.0 3.3
Other 0.9 1.0
Current portion of deferred revenue 9.9 4.3
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 178.8 139.9
12. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTY
Notes payable to related party consist of the following:
‘ 2017 2016
$ $
Notes payable to related party:
5.20% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 14, 2017 — 2451
4.54% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 12, 2019 245.1 2451
5.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due May 21, 2040 200.0 200.0
3.59% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due November 18, 2021 300.0 300.0
2.96% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 10, 2023 250.0 250.0
4.01% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 200.0 200.0
4.13% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due September 16, 2044 200.0 200.0
3.60% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due July 28, 2045 200.0 200.0
3.988% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due April 9, 2063 45.0 45.0
2.572% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due August 25, 2026 200.0 200.0
3.535% Long-term note payable to the Corporation due February 28, 2048 200.0 —
6.16% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on demand 45.0 45.0
3.32% Demand note payable to the Corporation due on the earlier of demand
and January 1, 2022 15.0 15.0
Total notes payable to related party 2,100.1 2,1452
Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs 10.2 9.7
Current portion of notes payable to related party [note 23] 60.0 304.9
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party [note 23] 2,029.9 1,830.6

All notes payable to the Corporation are unsecured, rank equally and will be settled in cash.
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On June 14, 2016, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory note is
$200.0 million payable on August 25, 2026, which bears interest at a rate of 2.572% per annum. Interest is calculated
and payable semi-annually in arrears on February 25 and August 25 of each year. The net proceeds from the
promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

On November 14, 2017, LDC issued a promissory note to the Corporation. The principal amount of the promissory
note is $200.0 million payable on February 28, 2048, which bears interest at a rate of 3.535% per annum. Interest is
calculated and payable semi-annually in arrears on February 28 and August 28 of each year. The net proceeds from
the promissory note were used to repay certain existing indebtedness of LDC and for general corporate purposes.

13. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS

Pension

LDC’s eligible employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan through OMERS. As at December 31, 2017,
the OMERS plan was 94.0% funded [December 31, 2016 - 93.4%]. OMERS has a strategy to return the plan to a
fully funded position. LDC is not able to assess the implications, if any, of this strategy or of the withdrawal of other
participating entities from the OMERS plan on its future contributions. For the year ended December 31,2017, LDC’s
contributions were $17.5 million [2016 - $17.3 million], representing less than five percent of total contributions to
the OMERS plan. LDC expects to contribute approximately $18.7 million to the OMERS plan in 2018.

Post-employment benefits other than pension

a) Benefit obligation

2017 2016
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 280.5 296.5
Current service cost 40 58
Interest cost 11.0 117
Benefits paid (11.0) (10.9)
Experience loss (gain) © 1.9 4.2)
Actuarial gain arising from changes in demographic assumptions — (17.5)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from changes in financial assumptions ® 26.3 (1.6)
Transfer from related parties 0.3 0.7
Balance, end of year 313.0 280.5

@ Actuarial loss (gain) on accumulated sick leave credits of $3.1 million [2016 - ($2.1) million] is recognized in benefit cost [note
13[c]] and $nil million in transfer from related parties [2016 - ($0.2) million], and actuarial loss (gain) on medical, dental and life
insurance benefits of $25.1 million [2016 - ($21.0) million] is recognized in OCI [note 13[d]].

The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at December 31, 2017 is 16.7 years [2016 — 16.7 years].

b) Amounts recognized in regulatory balances

As at December 31, 2017, the amount recognized in regulatory balances related to net actuarial loss was $85.3 million
[December 31, 2016 - $60.2 million] [note 9[a]].
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c) Benefit cost recognized

2017 2016
$ $
Current service cost 4.0 5.8
Interest cost 11.0 11.7
Actuarial loss (gain) on other employee benefits [note 13[a]] 3.1 (2.1)
Benefit cost 18.1 154
Capitalized to PP&E and intangible assets 8.1 6.4
Charged to operating expenses 10.0 9.0
d) Amounts recognized in OCI
2017 2016
$ $
Actuarial loss (gain) [note 13[a]] 25.1 (21.0)
Income tax expense (recovery) in OCI [note 21] (6.7) 55
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax 18.4 (15.5)
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (18.4) 15.5
OClI, net of tax — —

e) Significant assumptions

2017 2016

Discount rate (%) used in the calculation of:
Benefit obligation as at December 31 3.50 4.00
Assumed medical and dental cost trend rates (%) as at December 31:
Rate of increase in dental costs assumed for next year 4.00 4.00
Rate of increase in medical costs assumed for next year
For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00
For other retirements 5.50 5.50
Rate that medical cost trend rate gradually declines to
For pre July 2000 retirements 5.00 5.00
For other retirements 5.00 5.00
Year that the medical cost trend rate reaches the ultimate trend rate
For pre July 2000 retirements 2015 2015
For other retirements 2018 2018

f) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for benefit obligation measurement purposes are discount rate and assumed medical
and dental cost trend rates. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes
of the assumptions, in isolation of one another, occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be
representative of the actual change since it is unlikely that changes in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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Changes in key assumptions would have had the following effect on the benefit obligation:

Change in assumption

Benefit obligation 313.0 280.5
Discount rate 1% - (46.8) (42.0)
1% — 60.2 54.0
Medical and dental cost trend rate 1% - 40.2 36.1
1% — (36.0) (32.3)

14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

LDC’s main objectives when managing capital are to:

ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain, refurbish and expand the electricity distribution system;
ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents, investments or borrowings
through TH Energy or the Corporation) to meet the needs of the business; and

minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic
risks and conditions.

LDC monitors forecasted cash flows, capital expenditures, debt repayment and key credit ratios similar to those used
by key rating agencies. LDC manages capital by preparing short-term and long-term cash flow forecasts. In addition,
LDC borrows from TH Energy or the Corporation as required to help fund some of the periodic net cash outflows and
to maintain available liquidity. There have been no changes in LDC’s approach to capital management during the
year. As at December 31, 2017, LDC’s definition of capital included equity, bank indebtedness, borrowings through
the Corporation and obligations under finance leases, including the current portion thereof, and had remained
unchanged from the definition as at December 31, 2016. As at December 31, 2017, equity amounted to $1,716.3
million [December 31, 2016 - $1,565.0 million], and bank indebtedness, borrowings through the Corporation and
obligations under finance leases, including the current portion thereof, amounted to $2,216.4 million [December 31,
2015 - $2,191.0 million].

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a) Recognition and measurement

As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
unbilled revenue, bank indebtedness, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximated their carrying
amounts due to the short maturity of these instruments [note 26[j]]. The fair value of customer deposits approximates
their carrying amounts taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance. Obligations under finance
leases are measured based on a discounted cash flow analysis and approximate the carrying amounts as management
believes that the fixed interest rates are representative of current market rates.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of LDC’s notes payable to related party consist of the following:

‘ 2017 2016
$ $
Carrying Fair value ® Carrying Fair value ®
amount amount

Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
5.20% due November 14, 2017 — — 2449 253.7
4.54% due November 12, 2019 244.7 255.6 2446 265.6
5.59% due May 21, 2040 198.9 263.9 198.8 253.3
3.59% due November 18, 2021 299.2 313.9 299.0 322.9
2.96% due April 10, 2023 249.2 255.8 249.1 259.7
4.01% due April 9, 2063 198.7 217.4 198.7 201.2
4.13% due September 16, 2044 198.5 221.1 198.5 209.4
3.60% due July 28, 2045 198.7 202.9 198.6 191.3
3.988% due April 9, 2063 445 48.7 445 451
2.572% due August 25, 2026 198.9 195.4 198.8 194.6
3.535% due February 28, 2048 198.6 202.5 — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on demand 45.0 45.0 450 45.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due
on the earlier of demand and January 1, 2022 15.0 15.6 15.0 16.0

2,089.9 22378 2,1355 2,257.8

@ The fair value measurement of financial instruments for which the fair value has been disclosed is included in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy [note 26[j]].

b) Financial risks

The following is a discussion of financial risks and related mitigation strategies that have been identified by LDC for
financial instruments. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks, nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks
listed.

Credit risk

LDC is exposed to credit risk as a result of the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. LDC’s exposure
to credit risk primarily relates to accounts receivable and unbilled revenue. LDC monitors and limits its exposure to
credit risk on a continuous basis.

LDC is subject to credit risk with respect to customer non-payment of electricity bills. LDC obtains security
instruments from certain customers in accordance with direction provided by the OEB. As at December 31, 2017,
LDC held security deposits in the amount of $58.2 million [December 31, 2016 - $54.1 million], of which $29.8
million [December 31, 2016 - $30.0 million] was related to security deposits on offers to connect to guarantee the
payment of additional costs related to expansion projects. LDC’s security instruments may not provide sufficient
protection from counterparties defaulting on their obligations. As at December 31, 2017, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk with respect to any customer. The credit risk and mitigation strategies with respect to
unbilled revenue are the same as those for accounts receivable. The credit risk related to cash, cash equivalents and
investments is mitigated by LDC’s treasury policies on assessing and monitoring the credit exposures of
counterparties.

LDC did not have any single customer that generated more than 10% of total revenue for the years ended December
31,2017 and December 31, 2016.
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Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and unbilled revenue is as follows:

2017 2016
$ $

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts)

Outstanding for not more than 30 days 180.3 196.7

Outstanding for more than 30 days and not more than 120 days 32.6 254

Outstanding for more than 120 days 4.3 4.1
Total accounts receivable 217.2 226.2
Unbilled revenue 276.0 319.7
Total accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 493.2 545.9

LDC has a broad base of customers. As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, LDC’s accounts receivable
and unbilled revenue which were not past due or impaired were assessed by management to have no significant
collection risk and no additional allowance for doubtful accounts was required for these balances.

Reconciliation between the opening and closing allowance for doubtful accounts balances is as follows:

2017 2016
$ $
Balance, beginning of year 9.7) (11.5)
Provision for doubtful accounts (6.2) (3.8)
Write-offs 5.9 59
Recoveries (0.2) (0.3)
Balance, end of year (10.2) (9.7)

Unbilled revenue represents amounts for which LDC has a contractual right to receive cash through future billings
and are unbilled at period-end. Unbilled revenue is considered current and no allowance for doubtful accounts was
provided as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016.

Interest rate risk

LDC is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates for the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations [note
13[f]]. LDC is also exposed to short-term interest rate risk on the net of cash and cash equivalents, notes payable to
related party, and customer deposits. Notes payable to related party bear interest based on the prevailing market
conditions at the time of issuance.

As at December 31, 2017, aside from the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations, LDC was exposed to
interest rate risk predominately from notes payable to related party and customer deposits, while most of its remaining
obligations were either non-interest bearing or bear fixed interest rates, and its financial assets were predominately
short-term in nature and mostly non-interest bearing. LDC estimates that a 100 basis point increase (decrease) in
short-term interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) of approximately
$1.8 million to annual finance costs.

Liquidity risk

LDC is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. LDC monitors and
manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial requirements. LDC
has access to credit facilities and borrowings through the Corporation and monitors cash balances daily. LDC’s
objective is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is on hand to meet obligations as they fall due while minimizing finance
costs.
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Liquidity risks associated with financial commitments are as follows:

2017

Due Due Due Due Due Due
within within 2 within3  within4 within5 after 5
1 year years years years years years
$ $ $ $ $ $
Bank indebtedness 125.0 — — — — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ® 495.6 — — — — —
Obligations under finance lease 15 — — — — —
Long-term notes payable to the Corporation
4.54% due November 12, 2019 — 245.1 — — — —
5.59% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0
3.59% due November 18, 2021 — — — 300.0 — —
2.96% due April 10, 2023 — — — — — 250.0
4.01% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 200.0
4.13% due September 16, 2044 — — — — — 200.0
3.60% due July 28, 2045 — — — — — 200.0
3.988% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 45.0
2.572% due August 25, 2026 — — — — — 200.0
3.535% due February 28, 2048 — — — — — 200.0
Demand note payable to the Corporation due on
demand 450 — — — — —
Demand note payable to the Corporation due on
the earlier of demand and January 1, 2022 15.0 — — — — —
Interest payments on long-term notes payable
and demand notes payable 78.3 78.5 67.3 67.3 56.3 1,145.0
760.4 323.6 67.3 367.3 56.3  2,640.0

@ Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $17.7 million of accrued interest on long-term notes payable and demand notes
payable included within “Interest payments on long-term notes payable and demand notes payable”.

Foreign exchange risk
As at December 31, 2017, LDC had limited exposure to the changing values of foreign currencies. While LDC

purchases goods and services which are payable in US dollars, and purchases US currency to meet the related
commitments when required, the impact of these transactions is not material to the financial statements.

16. FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

As at December 31, 2017, $38.4 million [December 31, 2016 - $33.4 million] of letters of credit had been issued by
the Corporation, on behalf of LDC, under its $75.0 million demand facility mainly to support LDC’s prudential
requirements with the IESO.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL

Share capital consists of the following:

2017 2016
$ $
Authorized
The authorized share capital of LDC consists of an
unlimited number of common shares without par value
Issued and outstanding
1,000 common shares, of which all were fully paid. 556.3 556.3

Dividends

On May 11, 2017, the Board of Directors of LDC declared dividends in the amount of $2.1 million to the Corporation
[2016 - $nil], which was paid out on June 27, 2017.

18. OTHER REVENUE

Other revenue consists of the following:

2017 2016

$ $
Ancillary services 21.1 15.2
Pole and duct rentals 15.8 12.0
Other regulatory service charges 133 16.7
CDM mid-term incentive [note 3[c]] 12.2 —
Street lighting service fee 6.7 5.8
Development charges [note 9[0]] 5.1 —
Amortization of deferred revenue [note 11] 4.7 3.8
Miscellaneous 17.8 12.8
96.7 66.3

19. OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating expenses consist of the following:
2017 2016

$ $
Salaries and benefits 2254 2189
External services 131.9 108.6
Other support costs 21.6 32.2
Materials and supplies 21.3 16.4
Less: Capitalized costs (116.0) (108.5)
284.2 267.6

@ Includes taxes other than income taxes, utilities, rental, communication, insurance, and other general and administrative
expenses.
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For the year ended December 31, 2017, LDC recognized operating expenses of $13.0 million related to materials and

supplies used to service electricity distribution assets [2016 - $7.6 million].

20. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs consist of the following:

2017 2016
$ $
Interest income (0.3) (0.3)
Interest expense
Interest on long-term debt @ 87.1 854
Interest on short-term debt 33 36
Other interest 0.7 05
Capitalized borrowing costs (9.8) (12.6)
81.0 76.6

@ Includes amortization of debt issuance costs, discounts and premiums.

21. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined statutory Canadian
federal and provincial income tax rate. Reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax

rate to the income tax provision is set out below:

2017 2016
$ $

Rate reconciliation before net movements in regulatory balances
Income before income taxes 197.5 250.8
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 52.3 66.5
Non-taxable amounts (8.7) 04
Other 0. 0.3
Income tax expense 442 67.2
Effective tax rate 22.4% 26.8%
Rate reconciliation after net movements in regulatory balances
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances, before income tax ® 184.4 1736
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5% 26.5%
Expected income tax expense 48.9 46.0
Temporary differences recoverable in future rates (15.5) (22.7)
Other (2.4) 0.1)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory
balances 31.0 23.2
Effective tax rate 16.8% 134%

@ Income tax includes income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances.
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Income tax expense as presented in the statements of income and OCI are as follows:

2017 2016
$ $

Income tax expense 44.2 67.2
Income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances (13.2) (44.0)
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movementsin regulatory
balances 31.0 23.2
Income tax expense (recovery) in OCI [note 13[d]] (6.7) 55
Income tax expense (recovery) in OCI recorded in net movements in regulatory
balances 6.7 (5.5)

Income tax expense in OCI

Components of income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances are as follows:

2017 2016
$ $
Current tax expense
Current year 32.0 24.4
Adjustment for tax positions taken in prior periods (1.2) (2.2)
30.9 22.2

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.1 1.0
Income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory
balances 31.0 23.2

Deferred tax assets consist of the following:

Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 in net in OCI December 31
2017 income 2017
$ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 117 (26.6) — (14.9)
Post-employment benefits 74.3 1.9 6.7 82.9
Other taxable temporary differences (22.2) 11.2 — (11.0)
63.8 (135) 6.7 57.0
Net balance, Recognized Recognized Net balance,
January 1 _in net in OCI December 31
2016 Income 2016
$ $ $
PP&E and intangible assets 345 (22.8) — 117
Post-employment benefits 78.6 1.2 (5.5) 74.3
Other taxable temporary differences 1.2 (23.4) — (22.2)
1143 (45.0) (5.5) 63.8

LDC had recorded a net deferred tax asset as it expects to earn sufficient taxable income to realize the future reversal

of deductible temporary differences.
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22. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in non-cash working capital provided/(used) cash as follows:

2017 2016

$ $
Accounts receivable 8.7 (36.5)
Unbilled revenue 437 (0.2)
Income tax receivable — 9.0
Materials and supplies 0.4 0.1
Other current assets 0.8 (3.6)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4.2) 19.9
Income tax payable 35 9.0
Deferred revenue 5.6 0.6
Deferred conservation credit 3.8 (12.4)
Other current liabilities (1.6) (0.1)

60.7 (14.2)

Reconciliation between the amount presented on the statements of cash flows and total additions to PP&E and

intangible assets is as follows:

2017 2016
$ $
Purchase of PP&E, cash basis 433.8 506.6
Net change in accruals related to PP&E 9.5 (2.3)
Other 16 18
Total additions to PP&E 444.9 506.1
Purchase of intangible assets, cash basis 934 39.9
Net change in accruals related to intangible assets 8.0 —
Total additions to intangible assets 1014 39.9
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Summary of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Cash flows Non-cash changes
$ $

Foreign

exchange Other
Year ended December
Dividends payable — (2.1) — 21 —
Notes payable to related party
[note 12] 2,135.5 (46.5) — 09 2,089.9
Accrued interest @ 185 (90.2) — 894 17.7
Lease liability © 4.6 (3.0) 0.2) — 15

2,158.6 (141.8) (0.1) 924 2,109.1

Cash flows Non-cash changes

$ $
Foreign
exchange Other

Year ended December
Notes payable to related party

[note 12] 1,936.0 198.7 — 038 2,1355
Accrued interest @ 16.7 (86.5) — 88.3 185
Lease liability @ 8.0 (3.1) (0.3) — 4.6

1,960.7 109.1 (0.3) 89.1 2,158.6

)

Cash inflows and cash outflows arising from notes payable to related parties are presented on a net basis
Included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 15[b]]
Included within other liabilities
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23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For LDC, transactions with related parties include transactions with the City, which is the sole shareholder of the
Corporation, the Corporation, and TH Energy, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation.

City Corporation TH Energy |
$ $ $ \

For period ended December 31, 2017
Revenues 263.1 = 10.7
Operating expenses (recoveries) and capital expenditures 221 16 (1.2)
Finance costs — 87.0 =
Dividends — 21 —
As at December 31, 2017
Accounts receivable 12.7 — 21
Unbilled revenue 24.7 — —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 40.0 183 =
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 60.0 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 2,029.9 —
Customer deposits 15.7 — —
Deferred revenue 1.5 o o
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City Corporation TH Energy |
$ $ $ |

For period ended December 31, 2016
Revenues 258.5 — 8.7
Operating expenses and capital expenditures 26.9 15 0.9
Finance costs — 85.8 —
As at December 31, 2016
Accounts receivable 9.3 — 0.8
Unbilled revenue 231 —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41.0 17.7 —
Current portion of notes payable to related party — 304.9 —
Long-term portion of notes payable to related party — 1,830.6 —
Customer deposits 141 — —
Deferred revenue 3.0 — —

Revenues represent amounts charged to the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and to TH Energy for
street lighting and ancillary services. Operating expenses and capital expenditures represent amounts charged by the
City for purchased road cut repairs, property taxes and other services, and the Corporation for purchased corporate
and management services. Operating expense recoveries represent amounts charged to TH Energy for the provision
of goods and services. Finance costs represent interest charged by the Corporation on the notes payable [note 20].
Dividends are paid to the Corporation [note 17].

Accounts receivable represents receivables from the City primarily for electricity and ancillary services, and TH
Energy for the provision of goods and services. Unbilled revenue represents receivables from the City mainly related
to electricity provided and not yet billed. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts payable to the
Cityrelated to road cut repairs and other services. Included in the accounts payable and accrued liabilities are amounts
payable to the Corporation for purchased corporate and management services and interest accruing on the notes
payable to the Corporation. Notes payable to related party represent amounts borrowed from the Corporation [note
12]. Customer deposits represent amounts received from the City for future expansion projects. Deferred revenue
represents amounts received from the City primarily for the construction of electricity distribution assets.

Key management personnel include LDC’s senior executive officers and members of the Board of Directors. The
compensation costs associated with the key management personnel are as follows:

2017 2016

$ $
Short-term employee benefits 43 37
Post-employment benefits 1.1 1.0
54 47
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24. COMMITMENTS
Operating leases and capital projects

As at December 31, 2017, the future minimum payments under property operating leases, capital projects and other
commitments were as follows:

Operating Capital
leases projects ¥ and
other
$ $
Less than one year 0.3 175
Between one and five years 11 28.5
Total amount of future minimum payments @ 1.4 46.0

@ Mainly commitments for construction services and estimated capital contributions.
@ Refer to note 15 for financial commitments excluded from the table above.

Operating lease expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $0.8 million [2016 - $2.8 million].

Finance leases

As at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, reconciliation between the future minimum lease payments and
their present value was as follows:

2017 2016
$ $
Present Present
Future value of Future value of
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments Interest payments payments Interest payments
Less than one year 15 — 15 32 0.2 3.0
Between one and five years — — — 16 — 16
More than five years — — — — — —
15 — 15 438 0.2 46
Current portion included
within Other liabilities 15 3.0
Non-current portion
included within Other liabilities — 1.6

25. CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, LDC is subject to various legal actions and claims from customers, suppliers,
former employees and other parties. On an ongoing basis, LDC assesses the likelihood of any adverse judgments or
outcomes as well as potential ranges of probable costs and losses. A determination of the provision required, if any,
for these contingencies is made after an analysis of each individual issue. The provision may change in the future due
to new developments in each matter or changes in approach, such as a change in settlement strategy. If damages were
awarded under these actions, LDC would make a claim under any applicable liability insurance policies which LDC
believes would cover any damages which may become payable by LDC in connection with these actions, subject to
such claim not being disputed by the insurers.
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26. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a) Regulation

The following regulatory treatments have resulted in accounting treatments which differ from those prescribed by
IFRS for enterprises operating in an unregulated environment and regulated entities that did not adopt IFRS 14
Regulatory Deferral Accounts [“IFRS 14™]:

Regulatory Balances

In January 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 14 as an interim standard giving entities conducting rate-regulated activities
the option of continuing to recognize regulatory balances according to their previous GAAP. Regulatory balances
provide useful information about LDC’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. IFRS 14 is
restricted to first-time adopters of IFRS and remains in force until either repealed or replaced by permanent guidance
on rate-regulated accounting from the 1ASB.

LDC has determined that certain debit and credit balances arising from rate-regulated activities qualify for the
application of regulatory accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS 14 and the accounting principles prescribed
by the OEB in the “Accounting Procedures Handbook for Electricity Distributors”. Under rate-regulated accounting,
the timing and recognition of certain expenses and revenues may differ from those otherwise expected under other
IFRS in order to appropriately reflect the economic impact of regulatory decisions regarding LDC’s regulated revenues
and expenditures. These amounts arising from timing differences are recorded as regulatory debit and credit balances
on LDC’s balance sheets, and represent existing rights and obligations regarding cash flows expected to be recovered
from or refunded to customers, based on decisions and approvals by the OEB. Regulatory balances can be recognized
for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if the OEB directs the relevant regulatory treatment or if future
OEB direction is determined by management to be probable. In the event that the disposition of these balances is
assessed to no longer be probable based on management’s judgment, the balances are recorded in LDC’s statements
of income in the period when the assessment is made. Regulatory balances, which do not meet the definition of an
asset or liability under any other IFRS, are segregated on the balance sheets and are presented on the statements of
income and the statements of comprehensive income as net movements in regulatory balances and net movements in
regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax. The netting of regulatory debit and credit balances is not permitted.
The measurement of regulatory balances is subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions made
in the interpretation of the OEB’s regulations and decisions.

b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank accounts and short-term investments with terms to maturity of 90 days
or less from their date of acquisition. On the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents (bank indebtedness)
include bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of LDC’s cash management.

¢) Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue

Accounts receivable is recorded at the invoiced amount and overdue amounts bear interest at OEB-approved rates.
Unbilled revenue is recorded based on an estimated amount for electricity delivered and for other services provided
and not yet billed. The estimate is primarily based on the customers’ previous billings with adjustments mainly for
assumptions related to seasonality and weighted average price. The carrying amount of accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue is reduced through an allowance for doubtful accounts, if applicable, and the amount of the related
impairment loss is recognized in the statements of income. The impairment loss is the difference between an asset’s
carrying amount and the estimated future cash flows. When LDC considers that there are no realistic prospects of
recovery of the financial assets, the relevant amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently
decreases due to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed through net income.
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Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment, which includes default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will
enter bankruptcy, and adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers. Accounts receivable and unbilled
revenue that are not individually assessed for impairment are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together receivables with similar risk characteristics, and LDC considers historical trends on the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, as well as current economic and credit conditions.

d) Materials and supplies

Materials and supplies consist primarily of small consumable materials mainly related to the maintenance of the
electricity distribution infrastructure. LDC classifies all major construction related components of its electricity
distribution infrastructure to PP&E. Materials and supplies are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
with cost determined on a weighted average cost basis net of a provision for obsolescence.

e) Property, plant and equipment

PP&E are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. The
cost of PP&E represents the original cost, consisting of direct materials and labour, contracted services, borrowing
costs, and directly attributable overhead. Subsequent costs are capitalized only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to LDC and the costs can be measured reliably. If
significant parts of an item of PP&E have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate major
components of PP&E. The carrying amount of an item of PP&E is derecognized on disposal of the asset or when no
future economic benefits are expected to accrue to LDC from its continued use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recorded in the statements of income in the period in which the asset is derecognized. The gain or
loss on disposal of an item of PP&E is determined as the sale proceeds less the carrying amount of the asset and costs
of removal and is recognized in the statements of income.

Depreciation begins when an asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Distribution assets:

Distribution lines 1.7%t0 5.0%

Transformers 3.3% 10 5.0%

Meters 25%1t06.7%

Stations 2.0%to 10.0%
Buildings 1.3%1t05.0%
Equipment and other:

Assets under finance lease 1.0%t0 14.3%

Other capital assets 4.0% to 25.0%

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain
that LDC will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Assets under finance lease included a 99-year land lease.
Construction in progress relates to assets not currently available for use and therefore is not depreciated. The
depreciation method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. There are
no residual values for items of PP&E.

f) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if
applicable.
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Amortization begins when an asset becomes available for use. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Computer software 10.0% to 25.0%
Contributions 4.0%

Software in development and contributions for work in progress relate to assets not currently available for use and
therefore are not amortized. Contributions represent payments made to HONI for dedicated infrastructure in order to
receive connections to transmission facilities. The amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets

LDC reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other than materials and supplies and deferred tax assets
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, in which case the assets’ recoverable
amounts are estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent on the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
LDC has determined that its assets are a single CGU due to interdependencies of its assets to generate cash flows. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in the statements of income, and are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in the
CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss recognized in prior periods is reversed when an asset’s recoverable
amount has increased, but not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

h) Capitalized borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of qualifying assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use. The interest rate for capitalization is LDC’s weighted average
cost of borrowing, and is applied to the carrying amount of the construction-in-progress assets or assets under
development including borrowing costs previously capitalized, net of capital contributions received. Capitalization
commences immediately as the expenditure on a qualifying asset is incurred. Borrowing costs are included in PP&E
and intangible assets for financial reporting purposes, and charged to operations through depreciation and amortization
expense over the useful lives of the related assets.

i) Revenue recognition

Revenues from energy sales and electricity distribution are recorded on the basis of cyclical billings and include an
estimated amount for electricity delivered and not yet billed. These revenues are impacted by energy demand
primarily driven by outside temperature, and customer class usage patterns and composition.

Energy sales arise from charges to customers for electricity consumed, based on regulated rates. Energy sales include
amounts billed or billable to customers for commodity charges, retail transmission charges, and WMS charges at
current rates. These charges are passed through to customers over time and are considered revenue by LDC due to
the collection risk of the related balances. LDC applies judgment to determine whether revenues are recorded on a
gross or net basis. LDC has primary responsibility for the delivery of electricity to the customer. During the same
period, energy sales should be equal to the cost of energy purchased. However, a difference between energy sales and
energy purchases arises when there is a timing difference between the amounts charged by LDC to customers, based
on regulated rates, and the electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to
LDC. This difference is recorded as a settlement variance, representing future amounts to be recovered from or
refunded to customers through future billing rates approved by the OEB. In accordance with IFRS 14, this settlement
variance is presented within regulatory balances on the balance sheets and within net movements in regulatory
balances on the statements of income.

34



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Distribution revenue is recorded based on OEB-approved distribution rates to recover the costs incurred by LDC in
delivering electricity to customers. Distribution revenue also includes revenue related to the collection of OEB-
approved rate riders.

Other revenue, which includes revenue from services ancillary to the electricity distribution, delivery of street lighting
services, and pole and duct rentals, is recognized as the services are rendered. When services are made up of different
components which are not separately identifiable, the related other revenues are recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the contract. Capital contributions received from electricity customers to construct or acquire PP&E
for the purpose of connecting a customer to a network are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized into other
revenue at an equivalent rate to that used for the depreciation of the related PP&E. Revenue from ancillary services
not yet recognized is also included within deferred revenue.

Revenues and costs associated with CDM programs are presented using the net basis of accounting. Cost efficiency
incentives related to the CDM programs, included as part of other revenue, are recognized when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be reasonably measured.

J) Financial instruments

All financial assets are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and all financial liabilities are classified as “Other
Financial Liabilities”. These financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value adjusted for any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
less any impairment for the financial assets. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount of consideration
that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between willing parties.

LDC uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which carrying amounts are included in the balance sheets:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are
measured at fair value. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as “Loans and Receivables” and are measured at
amortized cost, which, upon initial recognition, is considered equivalent to fair value. Subsequent
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Bank indebtedness is classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and is initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially
measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method. The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these
instruments.

Customer deposits are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent measurements are recorded at cost plus accrued interest. The carrying amounts approximate fair
value taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance.

Obligations under finance leases are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at
fair value, or the present value of the minimum lease payments if lower. Subsequent measurements are
based on a discounted cash flow analysis and approximate the carrying amount as management believes that
the fixed interest rates are representative of current market rates.

35



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
[All tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars]

Notes payable to related party are classified as “Other Financial Liabilities” and are initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amounts are carried at amortized cost, based on the fair value of the notes payable at
issuance, which was the fair value of the consideration received adjusted for transaction costs. The fair
values of the notes payable are based on the present value of contractual cash flows, discounted at LDC’s
current borrowing rate for similar debt instruments [note 15[a]]. Debt issuance costs incurred in connection
with LDC’s debt offerings are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the notes payable and amortized
over the term of the related notes payable, using the effective interest method, and the amortization is
included in finance costs.

k) Fair value measurements

LDC utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. A fair value hierarchy exists that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs
used to measure fair value. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while
unobservable inputs reflect LDC’s assumptions with respect to how market participants would price an asset or
liability. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for
the asset or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis;

Level 2: Other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Unobservable inputs, supported by little or no market activity, used to measure the fair value of the
assets or liabilities to the extent that observable inputs are not available.

1) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations that are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service are measured on an undiscounted basis and
are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if LDC
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Multi-employer pension plan

LDC’s full-time employees participate in a pension plan through OMERS. The OMERS plan is a jointly sponsored,
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan established in 1962 by the province of Ontario for employees of
municipalities, local boards and school boards. Both participating employers and employees are required to make
plan contributions equally based on participating employees’ contributory earnings, and share equally in funding gains
or losses. The plan assets and pension obligations are not segregated in separate accounts for each member entity.
The OMERS plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan and the contribution payable is recognized as an
employee benefit expense in the statements of income in the period when the service is rendered by the employee,
since it is not practicable to determine LDC’s portion of pension obligations or of the fair value of plan assets.

(iii) Post-employment benefits other than pension

LDC has a number of unfunded benefit plans providing post-employment benefits (other than pension) to its
employees. LDC pays certain medical, dental and life insurance benefits under unfunded defined benefit plans on
behalf of its retired employees. LDC also pays accumulated sick leave credits, up to certain established limits based
on service, in the event of retirement, termination or death of certain employees.
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The cost of providing benefits under the benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method,
which incorporates management’s best estimate of future salary levels, retirement ages of employees, health care
costs, and other actuarial factors. Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments give rise to actuarial
gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses on medical, dental and life insurance benefits are recognized in OCI as
they arise. Actuarial gains and losses related to rate-regulated activities are subsequently reclassified from OCl to a
regulatory balance on the balance sheets. Actuarial gains and losses on accumulated sick leave credits are recognized
in the statements of income in the period in which they arise.

The measurement date used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation is December 31 of the applicable
year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1, 2016.

m) Customer deposits

Security deposits from electricity customers are cash collections to guarantee the payment of electricity bills. This
liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers with a corresponding amount charged to finance
costs. Deposits that are refundable upon demand are classified as a current liability.

Security deposits on offers to connect are cash collections from specific customers to guarantee the payment of
additional costs relating to expansion projects. This liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers
with a corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits are classified as a current liability when LDC no
longer has an unconditional right to defer payment of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

n) Income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, LDC is required to make PILs to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. These
payments are calculated in accordance with the ITA and the TA as modified by regulations made under the Electricity
Act and related regulations. This effectively results in LDC paying income taxes equivalent to what would be imposed
under the Federal and Ontario Tax Acts.

LDC uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, current income taxes
payable are recorded based on taxable income. LDC recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the carrying value of assets and liabilities on the balance
sheets and their respective tax basis, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date that
are in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Tax benefits associated with income tax
positions taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return are recorded only when it is probable that they will be realized,
and are measured at the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. The calculation of current and deferred taxes requires
management to make certain judgments with respect to changes in tax interpretations, regulations and legislation, and
to estimate probable outcomes on the timing and reversal of temporary differences and tax authority audits of income
tax.

Rate-regulated accounting requires the recognition of regulatory balances and related deferred tax assets and liabilities
for the amount of deferred taxes expected to be refunded to or recovered from customers through future electricity
distribution rates. A gross up to reflect the income tax benefits associated with reduced revenues resulting from the
realization of deferred tax assets is recorded within regulatory credit balances. Deferred taxes that are not included in
the rate-setting process are charged or credited to the statements of income.

The benefits of the refundable and non-refundable apprenticeship and other ITCs are credited against the related
expense in the statements of income.
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0) Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of LDC’s financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, reported assets, liabilities and
regulatory balances, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported revenues and expenses for the year. The estimates are based on historical experience, current conditions
and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as for identifying and
assessing the accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results could differ from
those estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the IESO, the Ontario Ministry of
Energy or the Ontario Ministry of Finance.

Information about judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts

recognized in the financial statements is included in note 26[i] relating to principal versus agent determination for
recording revenue on a gross or net basis.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized
prospectively. Assumptions and estimates with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year are used in the following:

Note 26[a] — Recognition and measurement of regulatory balances;

Note 26[i] — Revenue recognition — measurement of unbilled revenue, determination of the CDM incentive;
Notes 26[e] and 26[f] — Determination of useful lives of depreciable assets;

Notes 26[I] and 13 — Measurement of post-employment benefits — key actuarial assumptions;

Notes 26[n] and 21 — Recognition of deferred tax assets — availability of future taxable income against which
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be used; and

Note 25 — Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies.

p) Changes in accounting policies

In January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows as part of the IASB’s Disclosure
Initiative. These amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including changes from cash flows and non-cash
changes. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017. The additional
disclosures relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are included in note 22 and have no impact
to the LDC’s financial position or results of operations.

g) Future accounting pronouncements

A number of new standards, amendments and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended December 31,
2017, and have not yet been applied in preparing these financial statements.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers [“IFRS 15™], which replaces existing
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue and IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers. IFRS

15 contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers with two methods for recognizing revenue: at a
point in time or over time. IFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
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LDC will adopt IFRS 15 on January 1, 2018 using the modified retrospective approach. LDC has completed its
assessment of the key revenue streams. The majority of LDC’s revenue (energy sales and distribution revenue) is
generated from electricity distribution at regulated prices. LDC concluded that IFRS 15 will not have a material impact
on the accounting for these revenue streams. Upon adoption of IFRS 15, there will be a $167.6 million income
statement reclassification between Energy Sales and Energy Purchases for the comparative year ended December 31,
2017 and there is no impact to opening retained earnings as at January 1, 2018. LDC is currently finalizing its
assessment on capital contributions. LDC has determined that IFRS 15 will also increase its required disclosure on
revenue streams.

Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments [“IFRS 9”], which replaces 1AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement [“IAS 39”]. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a new expected credit loss model for measuring
impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance
on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS 39. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and will be applied retrospectively with some exceptions. LDC has assessed
the impact of adopting IFRS 9, and concluded that the new classification under IFRS 9 will not have a material impact
on the financial statements. Management is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new expected credit loss
model for measuring impairment.

Leases

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases [“IFRS 16”], which replaces IAS 17 Leases [“IAS 17”"] and related
interpretations. IFRS 16 introduces a single lessee accounting model eliminating the current distinction between
finance and operating leases. It requires the recognition of lease-related assets and liabilities on the balance sheet,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value underlying assets. In addition, the nature and timing of expenses
related to leases will change, as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating leases expense with the depreciation
expense for the assets and interest expense on the lease liabilities. Lessor accounting remains substantially unchanged.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019, and may be applied either
retrospectively or using a modified retrospective approach. Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15 is also adopted.

LDC intends to early adopt IFRS 16 on January 1, 2018. LDC has completed its assessment of existing operating
leases. IFRS 16 will not have a significant impact on LDC’s financial statements and LDC has assessed the
quantitative impact of adopting IFRS 16 to be $nil in opening retained earnings, and an increase of $1.6 million in
total assets and total liabilities for the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities, respectively, as at January 1, 2018.
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CDM - Conservation and demand management
CIR - Custom Incentive Rate-setting

City — City of Toronto

Corporation — Toronto Hydro Corporation

Electricity Act — Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario), as
amended

GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
GWh - Gigawatt hour

HONI — Hydro One Networks Inc.

IAS - International Accounting Standard

1ASB - International Accounting Standards Board
ICM - Incremental Capital Module

IESO - Independent Electricity System Operator.
The IESO and the Ontario Power Authority were
merged under the name Independent Electricity
System Operator on January 1, 2015.

IFRIC - International
Interpretations Committee

Financial  Reporting

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards
IRM - Incentive Regulation Mechanism
ITA - Income Tax Act (Canada), as amended

LDC - Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

LRAM - Lost revenue adjustment mechanism
OCI - Other comprehensive income
OEB - Ontario Energy Board

OEB Act - Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998
(Ontario), as amended

OFHP - Ontario’s Fair Hydro Plan
OFHA - Fair Hydro Act, 2017 (Ontario)

OMERS - Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement
System

OPA - Ontario Power Authority. The IESO and the
OPA were merged under the name Independent
Electricity System Operator on January 1, 2015.

OPEB - Other post-employment benefits

OREC - Ontario Rebate for Electricity Consumers
Act, 2016 (Ontario).

PILs — Payments in lieu of corporate taxes

PP&E - Property, plant and equipment

TA — Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), as amended
TH Energy — Toronto Hydro Energy Services Inc.

US GAAP - United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles

WMS - Wholesale Market Service
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RECONCILIATIONS

In accordance with s. 2.1.9 of the OEB’s Filing Requirements,* this schedule provides
reconciliations of the financial results shown in the Audited Financial Statements
(Exhibit 1C, Tab 3, Schedule 3) with the regulatory financial results filed unders. 2.1.13
of the OEB’s Electricity Reporting & Record Keeping Requirements for the years 2015
through 2017:

e Appendix A: 2015 Reconciliation

e Appendix B: 2016 Reconciliation

e Appendix C: 2017 Reconciliation

1 Ontario Energy Board, Filing Requirements for Electricity Distributor Rate Applications, Chapter 2 (July 12, 2018).



RRR Reporting
Rate Base Calculation
Reconciliation - Total PP&E

As Reported - US GAAP RRR Dec 31, 2014

Difference to mIFRS
mIFRS - Trial Balance
A/C 2440 Deferred Revenue LT

CWIP portion of A/C 2440

mlIFRS Balance

Inclusions for new Rate Regime

ICM Assets

Streetlighting Assets
Total Jan 1 2015 PP&E - RRR
Total Adjustment to RRR Opening PP&E
2015 ROE
mIFRS - RRR Balances per ledger - OEB roll up

A/C 2440 Deferred Revenue LT
CWIP portion of A/C 2440

Submission per RRR

R1

R2

R3=R1+R2

R4

RS
R6=R3:R5

R7

R8

R9=R6:R8

R10=R9-R1

c1 C2 C3 C4=C1.C3
PP&E ROE Exclusions ROE Calc
(incl CWIP) Remove CWIP Other Net
$2,903,903 -$518,239 S0 $2,385,664
$25,841 -$24,250 S0 $1,591
$2,929,744 -$542,489 $0 $2,387,255
-$43,571 -$43,571
$22,706 $22,706
$2,929,744 -$542,489 -$20,865 $2,366,390
$439,074 $439,074
$38,475 $38,475
$3,407,293 -$542,489  -$20,865 $2,843,939
$458,275
$3,750,644 -$609,194 $3,141,450
-$86,773 -$86,773
$31,475 $31,475
$3,750,644 -$609,194 -$55,298 $3,086,151
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Comment

PPE per ROE Calc. 2014

Adjustments due to conversion from US GAAP
to MIFRS

Capital contributions recorded in A/C 2440 is
netted in the determination of rate base
CWIP portion of A/C 2440 is excluded in
determination of rate base

As a result of the December 29, 2015 OEB
Decision and Order, the approved rate base as
atJanuary 1, 2015 included the ICM and street
lighting assets.

As a result of the December 29, 2015 OEB
Decision and Order, the approved rate base as
atJanuary 1, 2015 included the ICM and street
lighting assets.

Jan 1, 2015 PP&E for ROE Purposes

Dec 31, 2015 PP&E for ROE Purposes



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Unbilled revenue
Income tax receivable
Materials and supplies
Other assets

Property, plant and equipment

1005_Cash
1010_Cash Advances and Working Funds

1100_Customer Accounts Receivable
1104_Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work
1110_Other Accounts Receivable

1130 A Provision for L
1200_Accounts Receivable from iated C

Accounts-- Credit

1120 Accrued Utility Revenues
2294 Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc.
1330_Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

1180 Prepayments

1190_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets

1805_Land

1808_Buildings and Fixtures

1815_Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV
1820_Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kv
1830_Poles Towers and Fixtures

1835_Overhead Conductors and Devices
1840_Underground Conduit

1845_Underground Conductors and Devices

1850_Line Transformers

1855_Services

1860_Meters

1905 _Land

1908 _Buildings and Fixtures

1910_Leasehold Improvements

1915_Office Furniture and Equipment

1920_Computer Equipment - Hardware
1930_Transportation Equipment

1935_Stores Equipment

1940 _Tools Shop and Garage Equipment

1945 | and Testing i
1955_Communication Equipment

1960_Miscellaneous Equipment

1970_Load Management Controls - Customer Premises
1975 _Load Management Controls - Utility Premises
1980_System Supervisory Equipment
1995_Contributions and Grants - Credit

1612 _Land Rights

2005_Property Under Capital Leases
2055_Construction Work in Progress-Electric

2105_Accum. Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property Plant & Equipment

2120 Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles

Filing: April 30, 2016

Calculated
Regulated Regulated Unregulated Consol Adj THESL Consol
2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual
OEB Acct TB (in (in (in (in thousands)
- - 7,588 7,588 -
188,642,297 188,642
5,364,989 5,365
612 1
-11,451,441 -11,451
949,071 949
183,505,530 183,506 7,096 746 189,855
319,034,891 319,035 509 319,544
8,213,756 8,214 8,214
9,827,944 9,828 9,828
9,932,782 9,933 9,933
875,659 876 876
347,885,033 347,885 509 - 348,394
7,101,021 7,101
51,400,864 51,401
5,839,979 5,840
149,863,147 149,863
310,997,642 310,998
299,369,433 299,369
951,961,159 951,961
609,870,852 609,871
412,408,347 412,408
93,304,634 93,305
168,697,558 168,698
17,738,078 17,738
126,908,339 126,908
753,840 754
10,757,047 10,757
27,318,767 27,319
27,217,305 27,217
7,066 7
14,696,369 14,696
480,243 480
8,025,828 8,026
267,071 267
3,022,834 3,023
25,425,079 25,425
7,191,090 7,191
10,979,744 10,980
493,198,903 493,199
- 282,768,843 -282,769
-698,681 -699
3,551,334,715 3,551,335 10,590 - 3,561,925
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Audited THESL
Consol
2015 Actual
(in thousands) Diff Comment
189,855 0
319,544 0
8,964 750 Notel
9,828 -
9,933 -
- -876 Note 2
348,268 -126
3,561,925 -0
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Filing: April 30, 2016

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Calculated Audited THESL
Regulated Regulated Unregulated Consol Adj THESL Consol Consol
2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual
OEB Acct TB (in (in (in (in (in thousands) Diff Comment
Intangible assets 1609_Capital Contributions Paid 21,730,287 21,730
1611_Computer Software 101,649,562 101,650
2055_Construction Work in Progress--Electric 115,995,560 115,996
2120_Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles - 40,065,975 -40,066
199,309,434 199,309 - - 199,309 199,309 -
Deferred tax assets 1495_Deferred Taxes - Non-Current Assets 99,859,048 99,859 - - 99,859 114,345 14,486 Note 3
Other assets 1460_Other Non-Current Assets 3,838,091 3,838 - - 3,838 1,211 2,627 Note2
Regulatory balances 1508_Other Regulatory Assets 151,906,897 151,907
1520_Power Purchase Variance Account 0 0
1521_Special Purpose Chg Assessment Variance Account - -
1550_Low Voltage Variance Acct 2,198,398 2,198
1551_Smart Metering Entity Charge Variance Acct 140,568 141
1555_Smart Meter Capital Offset Variance 14,404,067 14,404
1556_Smart Meter Operating Variance - -
1562_Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes - -
1563_Deferred PILs Contra Account - -
1568_LRAM Variance Account 9,105,233
1575_IFRS-UGAAP Transitional PPE Amounts 24,193,438
1580_RSVAWMS - 156,333,491 -156,333
1584 _RSVANW 69,472,636 69,473
1586_RSVACN 36,894,013 36,894
1588 RSVAPOWER -22,246,709 22,247
1589_RSVAGA 97,731,157 97,731
1592_PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years 2,494,112
1595_Disposition Recovery Reg Balances Control Acct - 1,742,385 -1,742
223,229,711 223,230 - - 223,230 241,718 18,488 Note 4
Total Assets 4,608,961,562 4,608,962 25,782 -8,334 4,626,410 4,656,631 30,222
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Bank indebtedness 2225 Notes and Loans Payable - 196,521,453 -196,521 - 7,588 -188,934 -188,934 -
Advance from related party - - - - - - -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2205_Accounts Payable - 389,106,383 -389,106
2208_Customer Credit Balances - 16,243,629 -16,244
2220_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities - 15,426,009 -15,426
2240 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies Notes - 54,010,977 -54,011
2250_Debt Retirement Charges( DRC) Payable -12,683,957 12,684
2290_Commodity Taxes - 759,852 -760
2294 Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc. 650,961 651
2292 _Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable - 7,815,043 -7,815
- 495,394,890 -495,395 23,122 746 -471,527 -471,527 0
Customer deposits 2210 Current Portion of Customer Deposits - 37,469,696 -37,470 -37,470
2335 _Long Term Customer Deposits - -
- 37,469,696 -37,470 - - -37,470 -37,470 -
Deferred revenue 2220 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities -973,180 973 - -973 -3,740 -2,766  Note 5
Deferred conservation credit 0 - -17,885 -17,885 -17,885 -
Other li; 2285 Obligations Under Finance Leases—-Current - 3,235,715 -3,236 -3,236 -3,236 -
Note payable to related party 2242 Payable to Associated Companies - 60,000,000 -60,000 -60,000 -
2240 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies Notes - - - -
2260 Current Portion of Long Term Debt - - - - -
- 60,000,000 -60,000 - - -60,000 -60,000 -
Note payable to related party 2550 Advances from Associated Companies -1,875,984,003 -1,875,984 -1,875,984 -1,875,984 0
2505_Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion - - - - -
Customer deposits 2335 _Long Term Customer Deposits -9,888,218 -9,888 -9,888 -9,888 -
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Calculated Audited THESL
Regulated Regulated Unregulated Consol Adj THESL Consol Consol
2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual
OEB Acct TB (in (in (in (in (in Diff Comment
Deferred revenue 2440_Deferred Revenues - 86,772,590 -86,773 -86,773 -100,281
2320_Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities - - - -
2335_Long Term Customer Deposits - 16,275,062 -16,275 -16,275 -
-103,047,652 103,048 - - -103,048 100,281 2,766 Note5
Post-employment benefits 2306_Employee Future Benefits - 295,351,821 -295,352 -1,168 -296,520 -296,520 -
Other i 2325 Obligati Under Capital L Non-Current -4,773,123 -4,773 -4,773 -4,942
2320 Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities - 168,633 -169 -169
-4,941,757 -4,942 - - -4,942 -4,942 -
Total Lial ies -3,082,808,385 -3,082,808 4,069 8,334 -3,070,406 -3,070,406 0
Share Capital 3005 Common Shares Issued - 527,816,668 -527,817 -28,461 -556,278 -556,278 ]
Retained Earnings 3045 Unappropriated Retained Earnings -989,001,291 -989,001
3046 Balance Transferred From Income - 140,491,242 -140,491
3049 Dividends Payable-Common Shares 321,526,000 321,526
3055 Adjustment to Retained Earnings - 5,969,175 -5,969
- 813,935,709 -813,936 -1,390 - -815,325 -845,547 -30,222 Note 6
Contributed Surplus 3010 Contributed Surplus -12,757,392 -12,757 -12,757 -12,757 -
Regulatory balances 1508 Other Regulatory Assets -72,714,445 -72,714
2350 Future Income Tax - Non-Current - 98,928,963 -98,929
-171,643,408 -171,643 - - -171,643 -171,643 -
Total liabilities, equity and reg -4,608,961,562 -4,608,962 -25,782 8,334 -4,626,410 -4,656,631 -30,222
-0 -0 - - -0 - 0
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13 Filing: April 30, 2016
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2015

Notes: The Uniform System of are and re iled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: Difference in "Income tax receivable" of $750: Calculated balance of $8,214 & AFS balance of $8,964, a difference of $750, as follows:
The difference represents the non-regulated business income tax receivable included in the AFS.

Note 2: This relates to the CIR Costs Deferral re-instatement on the Balance Sheet.

For OSC purposes, as a result of the OEB's Decision with regards to the DRO, the CIR costs were considered no longer recoverable, and as such it was considered impaired and written-off to the P&L.

For RRR purposes, since the CIR Costs were approved to be recovered over the 5 year term in the original OEB Decision on December 29, 2015 with regards to the 2015-2019 CIR Application, the

CIR costs were re-instated on the balance sheet and will be amortized over the 5 years. The current portion and the long-term portion of the re-instated CIR costs on the balance sheet was $876 and $2,627 respectively.

Note 3: Difference in "Deferred tax assets" of $14,486: Calculated balance of $99,859 & AFS balance of $114,345, a difference of $14,486, as follows:

a. The deferred tax balance related to regulatory balances and gross up in respect of deferred tax assets are recorded in regulatory balances in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS.
For purposes of RRR reporting, these balances are reclassified to deferred tax assets in the amount of $15,918.

b. For purposes of RRR reporting, an adjustment was made to remove deferred income tax asset in respect of the non-rate regulated assets in the amount of ($1,432).

Note 4: Difference in "Regulatory balances - deferred debits" of $18,488: Calculated balance of $223,230 & AFS balance of $241,718, a difference of $18,488, as follows:

a. A "Smart meter recovery" regulatory asset (RA) was booked for AFS, and is not considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting: $9,947
b. Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue and depreciation expense was booked in the AFS in the past, and this considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting. $20,884
c. The deferred tax balance related to regulatory balances and gross up in respect of deferred tax assets are recorded in regulatory balances in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS. For purposes of RRR -$15,918

reporting, these balances are reclassified to deferred tax assets.

d. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax -$1,180
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,180k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $14k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,166k.

e. For RRR purposes, as per the APH, Article 510, “The return on rate base shall not be recorded in Account 1575 IFRS-GAAP Transitional PP&E Return on Rate Base. On disposition of the account $4,755
balance, the return is applied prospectively in rates as an adjustment to the revenue requirement.” In the AFS, the return on rate base was accrued at year-end 2015 since the OEB approved

the disposition of Account 1575 with the return on rate base of $4.7 million. For RRR purposes, the $4.7 million accrual has been reversed.

Total difference: $18,488

Note 5: Difference in "Deferred revenue - current", offset by difference in "Deferred revenue - long-term" of $2,766 as follows:
For the AFS the Deferred revenue was split between current and long-term. For the RRR purposes, the Deferred revenue is not split between current and long-term.

Note 6: Difference in "Retained Earnings" of ($30,222): Calculated balance of ($815,325) & AFS balance of ($845,547), a difference of ($30,222).
Adjustments have been made to certain AFS income statement items to arrive at the RRR reporting as follows:

A. Adjustments made to certain AFS income statement items in prior years as follows:

a. Reduction for prior years AFS Distribution revenue booked for Smart Meter "net revenue requirement" on the disposition of Account 1555 "Smart Meter Capital & Recovery" and 1556 "Smart Meter OM&A -$20,879
Variance account" balances. The is recorded to Distribution revenue for RRR reporting, to OEB account 4080 as the amount is billed to THESL customers in the future.

b. Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue and depreciation expense booked in the AFS in prior year, and this considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting. This ICM revenue and -20,884
depreciation expense shall be booked for RRR reporting in the future under regulatory prescribed ICM accounting treatment.

c. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PlLs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax 1,166
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,166k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $16k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,150k.

d. "Wireless pole attachments" regulatory asset (RA) was booked for purposes of RRR reporting while for prior year AFS purposes the RA amount was included in the income statement. -113
e. For purposes of RRR reporting, an adjustment was made to remove deferred income tax asset in respect of the non-rate regulated assets related to prior year. 1,275

B. Adjustments made to certain AFS income statement items in 2015, with these differences as explained in the Income Statement attached.

a. The total impact on net income or difference for the year 2015 was $9,213, per the Income Statement attached. 9,213

Total difference: -$30,222



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income
December 31, 2015

Revenue
Energy sales

4006_Residential Energy Sales
4010_Commercial Energy Sales
4020_Energy Sales to Large Users
4025_Street Lighting Energy Sales
4035_General Energy Sales
4050_Revenue Adjustment
4062_Billed WMS

4066_Billed NW

4068_Billed CN

4075_Billed LV

Distribution revenue

Other income

Costs
Energy purchases

Operating expenses

4080_Distribution Services Revenue

4082_Retail Services Revenues

4084_Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues
4086_SSS Administration Revenue

4090_Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales
4210_Rent from Electric Property

4215_0Other Utility Operating Income

4220_Other Electric Revenues

4225_Late Payment Charges

4235 _Miscellaneous Service Revenues
4245_Government and Other Assistance Directly Credited to Income
4325_Revenues from Merchandise Jobbing Etc.
4330_Costs and Expenses of Merchandising Jobbing Etc.
4076_Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge

4705_Power Purchased
4707_Charges - Global Adjustment
4708_Charges-WMS
4714_Charges-NW
4716_Charges-CN

4730_Rural Rate Assistance Expense
4750_Charges LV

4380_Expenses of Non-Utility Operations

4398_Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses Including Amortization
5005_Distribution Operation Supervision and Engineering
5010_Distribution Load Dispatching

5012_Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense

5016_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour
5017_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses
5020_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour
5025_0verhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses
5035_Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation
5040_Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour
5045_Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies & Expenses
5055_Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation

5065_Meter Expense

5070_Customer Premises - Operation Labour

5075_Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses

5085_Miscellaneous Distribution Expense

5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering

5110_Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations
5112_Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment

5114 _Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment
5120_Maintenance of Poles Towers and Fixtures

5125_Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices

Filing: April 30, 2016

Regulated
2015 Actual
OEB Acct TB

511,505,959
-1,473,500,371
-216,615,501
-12,384,109
-252,285,805
-6,409,770
-84,969,806
-166,194,728
-116,495,879
43
-2,840,361,885
-612,354,538
-3,452,716,423
-397,235
-20,107
-2,196,126

0

-10,406,330
-1,111,340
-7,055,723
-4,126,310
-6,786,826
-2,210,580
-12,747,564
14,047,565
6,756,356
-39,766,931

1,363,933,297
1,096,864,597
64,322,666
166,193,052
116,497,555
32,551,447
-43
2,840,362,572
91,941
1,500,430
20,195,329
5,728,776

0

2,791,165
2,876,993
810,769
1,163,363
0
1,462,007
1,800,410
14,266
484,730
2,798,435
1,997,164
6,437,256
19,129,502
14,284,733
0
3,212,202
426,963
15,645,627

Regulated
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

-511,506
-1,473,500
-216,616
12,384

- 2,840,362
- 612,355
-3,452,716

1,363,933
1,096,865
64,323
166,193
116,498
32,551

-0
2,840,363
92

1,500
20,195
5,729
2,791
2,877

811

1,163

1,462
1,800

6,437
19,130
14,285

3,212

16,913

Unregulated
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

-1,177

Net Movement Adj
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

-30,834
50,751
19,918

- 250

3,697

Consol Adj
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

Calculated THESL

Consol
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

-2,871,195
- 561,603
-3,432,799

-41,194

2,844,060

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
EB-2018-0165
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Audited THESL

Consol
2015 Actual
(in thousands) Diff Comment
- 2,925,630 -54,434 Notel
- 555,424 6,179 Note2
- 3,481,054 - 48,255
- 48,335 -7,141 Note3
2,898,492 54,432 Note 4



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income
December 31, 2015

Depreciation and amortization

Financing costs
Interest Income

Interest Expense, Long-term Debt

Interest Expense, Other

Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment

Income Tax Expense

Net Income
Net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax

Net income after net in Y

5130_Maintenance of Overhead Services
5135_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way
5145_Maintenance of Underground Conduit
5150_Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices
5155_Maintenance of Underground Services
5160_Maintenance of Line Transformers
5165_Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems
5305_Supervision

5310_Meter Reading Expense

5315_Customer Billing

5320_Collecting

5335_Bad Debt Expense

5410_Community Relations - Sundry

5415 Energy Conservation

5420_Community Safety Program

5605_Executive Salaries and Expenses
5610_Management Salaries and Expenses

5615 _General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5620_Office Supplies and Expenses
5625_Administrative Expense Transferred Credit
5630_Outside Services Employed

5635 Property Insurance

5640_Injuries and Damages

5655_Regulatory Expenses

5660_General Advertising Expenses
5665_Miscellaneous General Expenses
5675_Maintenance of General Plant
5680_Electrical Safety Authority Fees

6105_Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6205_Donations

4375_Revenues from Non-Utility Operations
4751_Charges Smart Metering Entity Chg

5705_Amortization Expense - Property Plant and Equipment
5715_Amortization of Intangible Assets

4375_Revenues from Non-Utility Operations
4405_Interest and Dividend Income

6030_Interest on Debt to Associated Companies

5615_General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5420_Community Safety Program
5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
6035_Other Interest Expense

6040_Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction--Credit

4355_Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property
4335_Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges

6110_Income Taxes
6115_Provision for Deferred Taxes - Inc. Statement

Filing: April 30, 2016

Regulated
2015 Actual
OEB Acct TB

840,012
3,204,037
-182
7,685,651
15,992

0

2,379,914
230,612
3,578,418
8,714,033
17,591,343
6,630,000
-16,029

84
3,472,067
1,610,316
2,827
52,024,951
3,001
138,439
6,130,421
1,566,037
1,642,100
4,878,459

0

-630
11,320,163
409,601
5,192,007
968,556
2,927,027
6,756,356
246,893,592
171,911,093
20,418,336
192,329,429
212,897,762

0
-1,298,537
-1,298,537

79,824,748

2,175,207
41,513
292,895
2,951,987
-10,806,600
74,479,750
-4,062,681
211,338
-4,274,019
3,518,763
-19,437
-140,491,242
0
-140,491,242

Regulated
2015 Actual
(in thousands)

3,204
-0
7,686

138
6,130
1,566
1,642
4,878

-1
11,320
410
5,192
969
2,927
6,756
246,894

192,329
-212,898

-1,299
-1,299
79,825

2,175
42

293
2,952
-10,807
74,480

-4,074
3,519
-19

- 140,491

-140,491,242

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

Calculated THESL ~ Audited THESL

Unregulated Net Movement Adj Consol Adj Consol Consol
2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual 2015 Actual
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Diff Comment
-304
1,582 -304 - 248,172 258,928 10,756  Note 5
479 - 192,809 192,809 -
884 23,061 - - 188,953 -179,161 9,792
- 60 - -1,358 -1,358 -
- 79,825 79,825 -
2,175 - -2,175
42 - -4
293 - -293
1 152 - 3,104 -5,179 - 8,283
- 10,807 - 10,807
1 152 - 74,632 74,646 14 Note 6
-5,844 -10,118 -10,118 -
- 28,590 - 32,108 31,358 -750 Note7
-19 138 157 Note8
825 45,958 - - 93,708 - 84,495 9,213
- 45,958 - 45,958 - 45,958 -
825 - - - 139,667 -130,453 9,213

EB-2018-0165
Exhibit 1C
Tab3
Schedule 4
Appendix A
ORIGINAL
Page 7 of 18



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13 Filing: April 30, 2016
Statement of Income

December 31, 2015

Notes: The Uniform System of Account are and re iled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: Difference in "Energy sales" of ($54,434): Calculated balance of ($2,871,195) & AFS balance of ($2,925,629), a difference of ($54,434), as follows:

a. For RRR reporting, THESL books the RSVA change to the higher of COP Revenue or COP expense. For the AFS, the RSVA change is booked to COP Revenue.

The difference between the amounts charged by THESL to customers, based on regulated rates, and the corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to THESL,
is recorded as a settlement variance. In accordance with IFRS 14, this settlement variance is presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.

For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into COP revenue.

b. For RRR Reporting, for the period Jan to Sept 2015, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" and "COP expense" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of $3,160 and ($3,160), respectively.

For the AFS, for the period Jan to Sept 2015, THESL does not book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to either COP revenue or COP expense.

c. For RRR Reporting, for the period Oct to Dec 15, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of $12,328.
For the AFS, for the period Oct to Dec 2015, THESL book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to COP expense.

d. Other

Total difference:

Note 2: Difference in "Distribution revenue" of $6,179: Calculated balance of ($561,603) & AFS balance of ($555,424), a difference of $6,179, as follows:

a. A "Smart meter recovery" regulatory asset (RA) was booked for AFS, with AFS Distribution revenue booked on an accrual basis. This is not considered a regulatory

asset for purposes of RRR reporting. The AFS Distribution revenue amount has been adjusted so the Distribution revenue booked for RRR Reporting is appropriately reflected on a cash basis.
b. This relates to the reversal of the Account 1575 IFRS-GAAP Transitional PP&E Return on Rate Base.

For RRR purposes, as per the APH, Article 510, “The return on rate base shall not be recorded in this account. On disposition of the account balance, the return is

applied prospectively in rates as an adjustment to the revenue requirement.” In the AFS, the return on rate base was accrued at year-end 2015 since the

OEB approved the disposition of Account 1575 with the return on rate base of $4,755. As such, for RRR purposes, the $4,755 accrual will need to be reversed.

c. Other

Total difference:

Note 3: Difference in "Other income" of ($7,141): Calculated balance of ($41,194) & AFS balance of ($48,335), a difference of ($7,141), as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: As per GAAP, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a net basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per AFS GAAP, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory

accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charge":

c. "Wireless pole attachments" revenue was booked to a regulatory asset (RA) for purposes of RRR reporting, while for AFS purposes the wireless pole attachment revenues were included in "Other income" in the amount of $150:
Total difference:

Note 4: Difference in "Energy purchases" of $58,129: Calculated balance of $2,840,363 & AFS balance of $2,898,492, a difference of $58,129, as follows:
a. For RRR reporting, THESL books the RSVA change to the higher of COP Revenue or COP expense. For the AFS, the RSVA change is booked to COP Revenue.

b. For RRR Reporting, for the period Jan to Sept 2015, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" and "COP expense" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of $3,160 and ($3,160), respectively.

For the AFS, for the period Jan to Sept 2015, THESL does not book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to either COP revenue or COP expense.

c. For RRR Reporting, for the period Oct to Dec 15, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of $12,328.
For the AFS, for the period Oct to Dec 2015, THESL book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to COP expense.

Total difference:

Note 5: Difference in "Operating expenses" of $7,059: Calculated balance of $251,869 & AFS balance of $258,928, a difference of $7,059, as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: As per AFS GAAP, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a net basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per AFS GAAP, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory
accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charge":

c. This relates to the CIR Costs Deferral re-instatement on the Balance Sheet.

For OSC purposes, as a result of the OEB's Decision with regards to the DRO, the CIR costs were considered no longer recoverable, and as such it was considered impaired and written-off to the P&L.
For RRR purposes, since the CIR Costs were approved to be recovered over the 5 year term in the original OEB Decision on December 29, 2015 with regards to the 2015-2019 CIR Application, the

CIR costs were re-instated on the balance sheet and will be amortized over the 5 years.

e. Other

Total difference:

Note 6: Difference in "Financing Costs - Interest expense" of $14: Calculated balance of $74,632 & AFS balance of $74,646, a difference of $14, as follows:

a. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,180k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $14k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,166k.

Note 7: Difference in "Income tax expense - Income taxes" of ($750): Calculated balance of $32,108 & AFS balance of $31,358, a difference of ($750), as follows:
The difference represents the non-regulated business current income tax expense included in the AFS.

Note 8: Difference in "Income tax expense - Provision for deferred taxes" of $157: Calculated balance of ($19) & AFS balance of $138, a difference of $157, as follows:
For purposes of RRR reporting, an adjustment was made to remove deferred income tax asset in respect of the non-rate regulated assets.

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
EB-2018-0165
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-38,944

-3,160
-12,328

2
54,434
10,932

-4,755

6,179
-14,047
6,756
150

-7,141

38,944
3,160

12,328

14,047
6,756

3,503

10,756

14

-750

157



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Unbilled revenue

Income tax receivable

Materials and supplies

Other assets

Assets held for sale

Current portion of regulatory assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Regulatory balances

1005 Cash
1010 Cash Advances and Working Funds

1100 Customer Accounts Receivable

1104 Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work

1110 Other Accounts Receivable

1130 Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts-- Credit
1200 Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies

1120 Accrued Utility Revenues

2294 Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc.
1330 Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

1180 Prepayments

1190 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets

1508 Other Regulatory Assets

1805 Land

1808 Buildinas and Fixtures

1815_Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV
1820_Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kv
1830 Poles Towers and Fixtures

1835 Overhead Conductors and Devices

1840 Underaround Conduit

1845 Underaround Conductors and Devices

1850 Line Transformers

1855 Services

1860 Meters

1905 Land

1908 Buildings and Fixtures

1910 Leasehold Improvements

1915 Office Furniture and Equipment

1920 Computer Equipment - Hardware

1930 Transportation Equipment

1935 Stores Equipment

1940_Tools Shop and Garage Equipment

1945 Measurement and Testing Equipment

1955 Communication Equipment

1960_Miscellaneous Equipment

1970_Load Management Controls - Customer Premises

1975 Load Management Controls - Utility Premises

1980 System Supervisory Equipment

1995 Contributions and Grants - Credit

1612 Land Rights

2005 Property Under Finance Leases

2055 Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2105_Accum. Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant - Property Plant & Equipment
2120 Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles

1609 Capital Contributions Paid

1611 Computer Software

2055 Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2120 Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles
2105_Accum. Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant - Property Plant & Equipment

1495 Deferred Taxes - Non-Current Assets

1460_Other Non-Current Assets

1508 Other Requlatory Assets

1520 Power Purchase Variance Account

1521 Special Purpose Chq Assessment Variance Account
1550 Low Voltage Variance Acct

1551 Smart Metering Entity Charge Variance Acct

1555 Smart Meter Capital Offset Variance

1556 _Smart Meter Operating Variance

1562 _Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes

1563 Deferred PILs Contra Account

1568 LRAM Variance Account

1575 IFRS-UGAAP Transitional PPE Amounts

1580 RSVAWMS

1584 RSVANW

1586 RSVACN

1588 RSVAPOWER

1589 RSVAGA

1592 PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years
1595 Disposition Recovery Rea Balances Control Acct

USGAAP

Requlated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB

87,642,549
10,378
87,652,927
199,557,426
7,235,439
14,148
-11,758,208
795,509
195,844,314
306,481,105
194,618
8,649,272
12,487,592
4,045,847
11,812,612
343,671,047
7.580.501
49,223,004
10.972,681
243,832,471
411,108,296
477.275.658
1.451.620.240
923,599,543
815.359.725
88.280.402
201,190,539
18,401,025
133,816,591
20,404,897
22,329,700
65,167,799
72,270,772
5,506,283
44,410,493
5,120,008
36,011,961
369,101
14,843,095
554,382
62,188,595

- 361,198,753
15,815,421
407,121,264
-2,295,387,700
- 241,754,780
2,706,033,215
23,039,470
285,531,224
111,117,488

- 221,818,227
197,869,955
129,808,574
8,066,234
490,133,299
0

1,728,591
241,003
14,404,067

- 108,421,020
62,266,249
29,067,376

- 18,770,687
88,291,117

558,939,995

USGAAP

Requlated
2014 Actual
(in thousands)

87,643
10
87,653
199,557
7,235

14
-11,758
796
195.844
306,481
195
8,649
12,488
4,046
11,813
343,671
7.581
49,223
10,973
243,832
411,108
477.276
1,451,620
923.600
815,360
88,280
201,191
18,401
133,817
20,405
22,330
65,168
72,271
5,506
44,410
5,120
36,012
369
14,843
554
62,189
-361,199
15,815
407,121
-2,295,388
-241,755
2,706,033
23,039
285,531
111,117
-221,818
197,870
129,809
8,066
490,133
0

-108,421
62,266
29,067

-18,771
88,291

558,940

Notes Adiustments

-0

B - 88,276
- 24,581

C -11,812,612
- 11,925.470

- 20.488.806

-5.132,702

-109.718.097
-204.436.233

- 268.525.879
-784,267.392

- 498,410,431
-495,099.610

- 23,396.553

- 63,069,563

- 51,464,224

- 19,651,057

- 12,493,951

- 45,195,780

- 47,535,946
-5,499,217

- 31,550,676

- 4,640,005

- 28,497,996

- 102,031

- 11,820,262

- 554,382

- 41,874,894
361,198,753
7,191,090

- 4,835,677
23,766,940
2,169,784,284
241,380,237
25,059,944

- 3,072,683

- 198,800,474
483,462

- 19,647,639
221,818,227
E.N 780,893
G 20,427,303
B - 7,014,538
A C 10,402,184

ABCDELMN

F -1,713,099
32,882,524

Adiustments

(in thousands)

-11,813
-11,925
-20.489
-5.133
-109.718
-204.436
-268.526
-784.267
-498.410
-495,100
-23.397
-63,070

-51,464
-19,651
-12,494
-45,196

-19,648
221,818
781
20,427
-7.015
10,402

-1,713
32,883

Filing: April 30, 2016

mIFRS

Requlated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB

87,642,549
10,378
87,652,927
199,557,426
7,235,439
14,148

- 11,758,208
821,960
195.870.765
306,481,105
194,617
8,649,272
12,399,316
4,021,266

331,745.577
7.580.501
28.734.199
5.839.979
134,114,373
206.672.063
208.749.780
667.352.848
425,189,112
320.260.115
64,883.849
138,120,976
18,401,025
82,352,367
753,840
9,835,750
19,972,019
24,734,826
7,066
12,859,818
480,004
7,513,965
267,071
3,022,834

20,313,701
7,191,090
10,979,744
430,888,204
- 125,603,416
- 374,543
2,731,093,158
19,966,787
86,730,750
111,600,950

- 19,647,639

198,650,848
150,235,877
1,051,695
500,535,483
0

1,728,591
241,003
14,404,067
24,193,438
- 108,421,020
62,266,249
29,067,376
- 18,770,687
88,291,117
-1,713,099
591,822,519

mIFRS

Reaulated
2014 Actual

(in

Unrequlated
2014 Actual
(in

Consol Adi
2014 Actual
(in

Calculated
THESL Consol
2014 Actual

(in

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

Audited THESL
Consol
2014 Actual

(in

87,643
10
87,653
199,557
7,235
14
-11,758
822
195.871
306,481
195
8,649
12,399
4,021

331,746
7.581
28.734
5.840
134,114
206.672
208.750
667.353
425,189
320.260
64.884
138,121
18,401
82,352
754
9,836
19,972
24,735
7

12,860
480
7.514
267
3,023

20,314
7.191
10,980
430,888
-125,603
-375
2,731,093
19,967
86,731
111,601
-19,648

198,651
150,236
1,052
500,535
0

24,193
-108,421
62,266
29,067
-18,771
88,291
-1,713
591,823

-2,925

10.588
129

129

47,434

-692

84,728

205.766
306,610
195
8,649
12,399
4,021

331.874

2,778,527

198,651
150,236
1,052

591,823

84,728

205.766
306,610
195
8,649
9,878
4,021

329.353

3,224,536

198,651
143,072
1,052

197,146

Diff

-2,521

-2.521

446,009

-7,163

-394,677
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Comment

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Total Assets

Liabilities and eauitv

Bank indebtedness

Advance from related party

Accounts pavable and accrued liabiliti

Customer deposits

Current portion of requlatory liabilities
Current portion of Post-emplovment benefits
Deferred revenue

Deferred conservation credit
Other i ies
Note pavable to related party

Note payable to related party

Customer deposits
Deferred revenue

Post-employment benefits
Other liabilities

Regulatory liability

Total Liabilities

Share Capital
Retained Earnings

Contributed Surplus

Regulatory balances

Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances

2242 Pavable to Associated Companies

2205 Accounts Pavable

2208 Customer Credit Balances

2220 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities
2240 Accounts Pavable to Associated Companies Notes
2250 Debt Retirement Charaes( DRC) Pavable

2290 Commoditv Taxes

2294 Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc.
2292 Pavroll Deductions / Expenses Pavable

2210 Customer Deposits
2335 Non-Current Customer Deposits

1595 Disposition Recoverv Rea Balances Control Acct
2306 Emplovee Future Benefits

2220 Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities
2240 Accounts Pavable to Associated Companies Notes

2285 Obliaations Under Finance Leases--Current

2242 Pavable to Associated Companies

2240 Accounts Payable to Associated Companies Notes.
2260 Current Long Term Debt

2550_Advances from Associated Companies
2505_Debentures Outstanding - Long Term
2335_Non-Current Customer Deposits

2440 Deferred Revenues

2320 Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities
2335 _Non-Current Customer Deposits

2306_POEB Liability

2325 Obligations Under Finance Lease--Nol
2320 _Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Lial

1592 PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years
1595 Disposition Recovery Reg Balances Control Acct
2350 _Future Income Tax - Non-Current

3005 _Common Shares Issued

3045 Unappropriated Retained Earninas

3046 Balance Transferred From Income

3049 Dividends Payable-Common Shares
3055 Adiustment to Retained Earninas

3010 Contributed Surplus
1508 Other Requlatory Assets

1592 PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years
2350 Deferred Tax - Non-Current Liability

USGAAP

Requlated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB
4,227.886.261

- 421,555,928
- 40,808,916
- 13,780,070
- 12,388,608
-12,973.211

- 3.316.585
- 7.638.080
- 512,461,397

-15,122,093
-23.333.176

- 38,455,269
- 1,644,343
- 7,958,000

- 965,386

- 965,386

- 2,624,659

- 368.000.000

- 368,000,000
-1,632,196,529

- 4,669,307

- 284,485,208

- 6,771,630
-22,321,322

- 29,092,952

- 2,466,509

- 68,757

- 130,161,389

- 132,696,655
-3,015,249,703

- 527,816,668
- 893,470,038
- 94,945,708
321,526,000
- 5,172,752

- 672,062,498
- 12,757,392

-4,227,886,261

USGAAP

Requlated
2014 Actual
(in thousands)

4,227,886

-421,556
-40,809
-13,780
-12,389
-12,973

-3.317
-7.638
-512.,461

-15,122
-23.333

-38.455
-1.644
-7.958

-965
-965
-2.625
-368.000

-368,000
-1,632,197

-4,669

284,485
-6,772
-22,321
-29,093
-2,467

-69

-130,161

- 132,696,655
3,015,250

-527.,817
-893,470
-94,946
321,526
-5,173
-672,062
-12,757

-4,227,886

Notes

> >

-

Adiustments

60.237.106

- 308.000.000
851,539
22,132,108
965.386

- 956.386

0

0
22,992,648

-23.333.176
23,333.176

1,644.343

7.958.000
(965.386.35)

965.386.35

-0
308.000.000

308,000,000

- 43,571,006

-22,132,108
- 65,703,115
-1,782,033
20,440

- 1,266,730
- 1,246,290
2,466,509
68,757
130,161,389
132,696,655
96,560,207

2
689,046

- 796,423
- 107,375

- 3,623,607
- 2,466,509
- 150,599,822
- 156,689,937

- 60,237,106

Adiustments

(in thousands)
60.237

-308.000
852
22,132
965

-956

0

0
22,993

-23.333
23.333

1.644
7.958
-965
965

308.000

308,000
-0

-43,571
-22,132
-65,703
-1,782
20
-1,267
-1,246
2,467
69
130,161
132,696,655
96,560

0
689
-796
-107

-3,624
-2,467
-150,600
-156,690

-60,237
-0

Filing: April 30, 2016

mIFRS

Requlated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB

4,288,123,367

- 308.000.000
- 420,704,389
- 18.676.807
- 12,814,683
- 13,344,994
-12,973.211
- 3,316,585

0

- 7.638.080

- 489.468.749

- 38.455.269

- 38.455.269

-965.386
- 965.386
0

- 2,624,659
- 60.000.000

- 60,000,000
-1,632,196,529

4,669,307
- 43,571,006

-22,132,108
- 65,703,115
- 286,267,241
- 6,751,190

- 23,588,052
- 30,339,242

- 2,918,689,496

- 527,816,668
- 893,470,036
- 94,256,662
321,526,000
- 5,969,175

- 672,169,874
- 12,757,392

- 3,623,607
- 2,466,509
- 150,599,822
- 156,689,937

- 4,288,123,367
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mIFRS
Calculated Audited THESL
Reaulated Unrequlated Consol Adi THESL Consol Consol
2014 Actual 2014 Actual 2014 Actual 2014 Actual 2014 Actual
(in (in (in (in Diff Comment
4,288,123 55.226 -692 4,342,657 4,384,304 41,648
-308.000 - - -308.000 -308.000 -
-420,704
-18,677
-12,815
-13.345
-12,973
-3.317
0
-7.638
-489.469 -23.447 692 -512,224 -512,224 0
-38.455 -38.455
-38.455 - - -38.455 -38.455 -
-965 - -965 -2,159 -1,194 Note 5
-965 -965 -2.159 -1.194
-2.625 -2.625 -2.625 -
-60.000 -60.000 -
-60,000 - - -60,000 -60,000 -
-1,632,197 -1,632,197 -1,632,197 0
-4,669 -4,669 -4,669 -
-43,571 -43,571 -71,444
-22,132 -22,132 -
-65,703 - - -65,703 -71,444 -5,741 Note 6
286,267 -1,103 -287,370 287,370 -
-6,751 -6,751 -8,018
-23,588 -23,588
-30,339 - - -30,339 -8,018 22,321 Note 7
2,918,689 -24,550 692 -2,942,547 -2,927,161 15,386
-527,817 -28,461 -556,278 -556,278 0
-893,470
-94,257
321,526
-5.969
-672,170 -2,214 - -674,384 -715,094 -40,710 Note 8
-12,757 -12,757 -12,757 -
-3,624
-2,467
-150,600
-156,690 - - -156,690 -173,014 -16,324 Note 9
-4,288,123 -55,226 692 -4,342,657 -4,384,304 -41,648
- - - -0 - 0
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

Notes on the adjustments from OEB US GAAP to mIFRS:

A

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB):
prbedputi vt sotet bt oatoredertntt. ot S SRR
between mIFRS and US GAAP and result in a measurement
difference of the post-employment benefit liability. In addition,
under mIFRS, a liability is recognized for both non-vested
accumulating and vested sick leave benefits, unlike US GAAP,
which only requires a liability for the vested sick leave

Land Lease:

assets. Under mIFRS, prepaid land lease is included in PP&E as
a finance lease as substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of the land are transferred to LDC. The

1508 - Other Regulatory Assets:

The total difference between US GAAP and mIFRS for account 1508 - Other Regulatory Assets after considering presentation differences is ($5.0 million). The difference is primarily comprised of the following:

OPEB measurement difference between US GAAP and mIFRS

ICM assets that was transferred from PP&E measurement difference between US GAAP and mIFRS primarily related to capitalized borrowing costs

1575 - IFRS - GAAP Transitional PP&E:

Transitional Issues, PP&E and intangibles transitionél
differences from US GAAP to mIFRS are to be recorded in
USoA 1575 IFRS - GAAP Transitional PP&E. The balance of

Rate-Regulated Deemed Costs Exemption:

LDC has applied the rate-regulated deemed cost exemption on its PP&E and intangibles. As such, LDC has elected to use the US GAAP net book value as its deemed cost on the date of transition, January 1, 2014.

1595 - Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances Control Account:
The total difference between US GAAP and mIFRS for account 1595 - Disposition and Recovery/Refund of Regulatory Balances Control Account after considering presentation differences is $nil.

Deferred Tax Asset and Liability:

The difference between US GAAP and mIFRS is primarily the tax impact as a result of the transition from US GAAP to IFRS.

2242 - Notes Payable to Associated Companies:

The total difference between US GAAP and mIFRS for account 2242 - Notes Payable to Associated Companies after considering presentation differences is $nil.

Contributions in Aid of Construction:

Construction, under mIFRS the initial receipt of cash related to
contributions in aid of construction are recorded in customer
deposits. Under US GAAP, these amounts were recorded
Construction, under mIFRS when the cash related to
contributions in aid of construction are spent on the
construction or acquisition of PP&E or intangibles, the
customer deposit account is drawn down and an entry is made

Customer D_eposits'Rec_:Iassification )
cash collections to guarantee the payment of electricity bills.
The electricity customer security deposits liability includes

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
EB-2018-0165
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13 Filing: April 30, 2016

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014
K Reclassification of Other Long-Term Benefits:
The difference primarily relates to the reclassification of other long-term benefits from Accounts Payable under US GAAP to USoA 2320 Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities under mIFRS.

L 1592 - PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years:
The total difference between US GAAP and mIFRS for account 1592 - PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years after considering presentation differences is $nil.

M D issioning Pr
remeasured at the end of each period, whereas under US
GAAP, remeasurement was not required. After adjusting for
the Day 1 adjustment and for the difference in retired value,

N January 1, 2015 PP&E and Intangibles for Rate Base Purposes under mIFRS:
on the Application for electricity distribution rates effective
from May 1, 2015 and for
each following year effective January 1 through to December

December 31, 2014 PP&E under mIFRS 2,731,093
December 31, 2014 Intangibles under mIFRS 198,651

2,929,744
Less: USOA 2055 - Construction Work in Progress--Electric -542,489
December 31, 2014 PP&E and Intangibles excluding CWIP 2,387,255

Add: USoA 2440 - Deferred Revenues

Less: Capital Contribution CWIP included in USoA 2440 - Deferred Revenues
December 31, 2014 PP&E and Intangibles excluding CWIP, net of capital contributions
Add: ICM Assets transferred to PP&E on January 1, 2015

Add: Street lighting Assets transferred to PP&E on January 1, 2015

January 1, 2015 PP&E and Intangibles for rate base purposes under mIFRS

O 3046 - Balance Transferred From Income
Refer to the income statement reconciliation for details.

Notes: The Uniform System of Account balances are mapped and reconciled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: Difference in "Current portion of other assets" of ($2,521). Calculated balance of $12,399 & AFS balance of $9,878, a difference of ($2,521), due to transfer of AFS regulatory
asset for CIRA cost deferral to Prepaids account 1180 for RRR purposes. -$2,521

Note 2: Difference in "Property, plant and equipment" of $446,009. Calculated balance of 2,778,527 & AFS balance of $3,224,536, a difference of $446,009,
due to transfer of AFS PP&E Assets to Regulatory asset account 1508 Other Regulatory asset, sub-account Incremental Capital Expenditures. $446,009

Note 3: Difference in "Deferred tax assets" of ($7,163). Calculated balance of $150,236 & AFS balance of $143,072, a difference of ($7,163), due to transfer of the gross up on the
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability on regulatory balances from Regulatory balance accont to AFS Deferred tax assets in the amount of $7,163. -$7,163

Note 4: Difference in "Regulatory balances (debit)" of ($394,677): Calculated balance of $591,823 & AFS balance of $197,146, a difference of ($394,677), as follows:

a. A "Smart meter recovery" regulatory balance was booked for AFS, and is not considered a regulatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting: $20,879
b. Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue and depreciation expense contra account RA were booked for the AFS, and this not considered a requlatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting: $22,493
c. Due to the transfer of AFS PP&E Assets to Regulatory asset account 1508 Other Regulatory asset, sub-account Incremental Capital Expenditures: -$440,682
d. "Wireless pole attachments" requlatory balance was booked for purposes of RRR reporting and not included the AFS: $113
e.Transfer of AFS regulatory balance for CIRA cost deferral to Prepaids account 1180 for RRR purposes. $2,521

Total difference: -$394,677



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2014

Note 5: Difference in "Current portion of deferred revenue" of ($1,194). Calculated balance of ($965) & AFS balance of ($2,159), a difference of ($1,194), due to
the transfer of capital contributions in 2220_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities to 2440_Deferred Revenues for OEB reporting purpose.

Note 6: Difference in "Deferred revenue" of ($5,741). Calculated balance of ($65,703) & AFS balance of ($71,444), a difference of ($5,741), due to:
a. The transfer of AFS Deferred revenue to Regulatory asset account 1508 Other Regulatory asset, sub-account Incremental Capital Expenditures.
b. The transfer of capital contributions in 2320_Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities to 2440_Deferred Revenues for OEB reporting purpose.
Total difference:

Note 7: Difference in "Other long-term liabilities" of $22,321. Calculated balance of ($30,339) & AFS balance of ($8,018), a difference of $22,321, due to:
A Revision of prior year tax position" regulatory credit balance was booked for AFS, and is not considered a regulatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting:
For RRR Reporting, the amount was transferred to OEB account 2320 "Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities".

Note 8: Difference in "Retained Earnings" of ($40,710): Calculated balance of ($674,384) & AFS balance of ($715,094), a difference of ($40,710).
Adijustments have been made to certain AFS income statement items to arrive at the RRR reporting as follows:

a. Reduction to AFS Distribution revenue booked for Smart Meter "net revenue requirement" on the disposition of Account 1555 "Smart Meter Capital & Recovery" and 1556 "Smart Meter OM&A
Variance account" balances. The amount shall be booked to Distribution revenue for RRR reporting, to OEB account 4080 as the amount is billed to THESL customers in the future:

b. Reverse the ICM revenue and related depreciation expense booked LTD 2014 in the AFS. This ICM revenue and depreciation expense shall be booked for RRR reporting in the future under regulatory
prescribed ICM accounting treatment:

c. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account” of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,166k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $16k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,150k.

d. Due to the transfer of AFS Depreciation expense to Regulatory asset account 1508 Other Regulatory asset, sub-account Incremental Capital Expenditures in the amount of $1,608.
e. "Wireless pole attachments" regulatory balance was booked for purposes of RRR reporting while for AFS purposes the amount was included in the income statement:

Total difference:

Note 9: Difference in "Regulatory credit balances" of ($16,324): Calculated balance of ($156,690) & AFS balance of ($173,014), a difference of ($16,324), as follows:

a. A Revision of prior year tax position" regulatory credit balance was booked for AFS, and is not considered a requlatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting:
For RRR Reporting, the amount was transferred to OEB account 2320 "Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities" from Regulatory Liabilities.

b. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,166k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $16k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,150k.

c. The gross up on the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability on requlatory balances was booked as part of Regulatory balances
and transferred to Deferred tax assets for purpose of RRR reporting.

Total difference:
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-$1,194

-$6,935
$1,194
65,741

$22,321

-$20,879

- 22,493

1,166
1,608
- 113

-$40,710

-$22,321

- 1,166

7,163

516,324



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income

December 31, 2014

Revenue
Energy sales

Distribution revenue

Other income

Expenses
Energy purchases

Operating expenses

4006_Residential Energy Sales
4010_Commercial Energy Sales
4020_Energy Sales to Large Users
4025_Street Lighting Enerqy Sales
4035_General Energy Sales
4050_Revenue Adjustment
4062_Billed WMS

4066_Billed NW

4068_Billed CN

4075_Billed LV

4080_Distribution Services Revenue

4082_Retail Services Revenues

4084_Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues
4086_SSS Administration Revenue

4090_Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales

4210 _Rent from Electric Property

4215_Other Utility Operating Income

4220 Other Electric Revenues

4225_Late Payment Charges

4235_Miscellaneous Service Revenues

4245_Government and Other Assistance Directly Credited to Income
4325 _Revenues from Merchandise Jobbing Etc.
4330_Costs and Expenses of Merchandising Jobbing Etc.
4390_Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income

4355_Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property
4076_Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge

4705_Power Purchased
4707_Charges - Global Adjustment
4708_Charges-WMS
4714_Charges-NW
4716_Charges-CN

4730_Rural Rate Assistance Expense
4750_Charges LV

4380_Expenses of Non-Rate Requlated Operations

4398_Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses Including Amortization
5005_Distribution Operation Supe and

5010_Distribution Load Dispatching

5012_Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense

5016_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour

5017_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses

5020_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour

5025_Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses

5035_Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation
5040_Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour

5045_Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies & Expenses

5055_Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation
5065_Meter Expense

5070_Customer Premises - Operation Labour
5075_Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses
5085_Miscellaneous Distribution Expense
5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
5110_Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations
5112_Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment
5114_Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment
5120_Maintenance of Poles Towers and Fixtures
5125_Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices

USGAAP

Regulated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB

486,662,662
-1,385,714,616
199,844,824
-10,813,462
210,750,959
20,840,986
140,981,015
-177,393,894
122,500,059
-483,426
-2,714,303,930
533,456,671
-3,247,760,602
-439,346
-19,204
-2,142,518

0

-8,694,567
-956,230

0
4,072,861
6,543,450
0

-15,789,942
14,815,407
0

0
-6,674,801
30,517,512

1,450,996,403
821,950,228
109,089,063
177,373,782
122,520,171
31,891,953
483,426
2,714,305,025
299,017
836,217
23,877,567
5,970,719
-595

870,363
1,087,913
0

1,474,740
65,611
19,221
703,792
2,225,487
1,152,544
5,772,413
19,684,342
14,384,807
1,675
2,391,986
792
18,182,819

USGAAP
Regulated Notes Adjustments
2014 Actual
(in thousands)

- 486,663 0
- 1,385,715 47,589,091
- 199,845 0
-10,813 0
- 210,751 0
20,841 0
- 140,981 0
-177,3%4 15,032,996
- 122,500 6,865,068
- 483 487,421
- 2,714,304 A 69,974,576
- 533,457 0
- 3,247,761 A 69,974,576
-439 0
-19 0
-2,143 0
- 0
- 8,695 0
- 956 0
- 0
- 4,073 0
- 6,543 0
- B -711,174
- 15,790 C -325,077
14,815 0
- C 377,506
- -39,226
- 6,675 0
- 30,518 -697,970
1,450,996 0
821,950 -47,589,091
109,089 0
177,374 -15,032,996
122,520 -6,865,068
31,892 0
483 -487,421
2,714,305 A 69,974,576
299 10,000
836 0
23,878 0
5971 0
-1 0
2,802 0
2,979 0
870 0
1,088 0
- 0
1,475 0
- 66 0
19 0
704 0
2,225 0
1,153 0
5,772 0
19,684 0
14,385 0
2 0
2,392 0
1 0
18,183 0

Adjustments

(in thousands)

47,589

15,033
6,865
487
69,975

69,975

-325

- 698

- 47,589
- 15,033
- 6,865

- 487
- 69,975
10

Filing: April 30, 2016
mIFRS

Regulated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB

486,662,662
-1,338,125,525
199,844,824
-10,813,462
210,750,959
20,840,986
140,981,015
-162,360,898
115,634,991
3,995
-2,644,329,354
533,456,671
-3,177,786,025
-439,346
-19,204
-2,142,518

0

-8,694,567
-956,230

0
4,072,861
543,450
-711,174
-16,115,018
14,815,408
377,506
-39,226
-6,674,801
31,215,483

1,450,996,403
774,361,137
109,089,063
162,340,786
115,655,103
31,891,953
3,995
2,644,330,449
309,017
836,217
23,877,567

870,363
1,087,913
0

1,474,740
65,611
19,221
703,792
2,225,487
1,152,544
5,772,413
19,684,342
14,384,807
1,675
2,391,986
792
18,182,819

mIFRS

Regulated
2014 Actual
(in

Unregulated
2014 Actual

Consol Adj
2014 Actual

Calculated THESL
Consol
2014 Actual

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
EB-2018-0165

Exhibit 1C

Tab 3

Schedule 4

Appendix A

ORIGINAL

Page 14 of 18

Audited THESL
Consol
2014 Actual
i Comment

- 486,663
-1,338,126
- 199,845
-10,813

- 210,751
20,841

- 140,981

- 162,361
- 115,635
4

- 2,644,329
- 533,457

- 3,177,786
-439

-19
-2,143

- 8,695

- 956
-4,073
-6,543

1,450,996
774,361
109,089
162,341
115,655

31,892
-4
2,644,330
309

836
23,878
5971

-1

2,802
2,979

2,225
1,153
5,772
19,684
14,385
2

2,392
1

18,183

(in

- 11,786

(in

(in

- 2,644,329
- 533,457
- 3,177,786

- 43,001

2,644,330

(in Diff

- 2,654,966
- 555,051
-3,210,017

-10,637 Note 1
-21,594 Note 2
-32,231

- 51,650 -8,649 Note3

2,700,378 56,047  Note 4



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.

Statement of Income

December 31, 2014

Depreciation and amortization

Financing costs
Interest Income

Interest Expense, Long-term Debt

Interest Expense, Other

Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment

Income Tax Expense

Net Income
Net movements in requlatory balances, net of tax
Net income after net movements in regulatory balances

13

5130_Maintenance of Overhead Services
5135_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way
5145_Maintenance of Underground Conduit
5150_Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices
5155_Maintenance of Underground Services
5160_Maintenance of Line Transformers
5165_Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems
5305_Supervision

5310_Meter Reading Expense

5315_Customer Billing

5320_Collecting

5335 Bad Debt Expense

5410_Community Relations - Sundry

5415_Eneray Conservation

5420_Community Safety Program

5605_Executive Salaries and Expenses
5610_Management Salaries and Expenses

5615 General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5620_Office Supplies and Expenses

5625 Administrative Expense Transferred Credit
5630_Outside Services Employed

5635_Property Insurance

5640_Injuries and Damages

5655_Requlatory Expenses

5660_General Advertising Expenses
5665_Miscellaneous General Expenses
5675_Maintenance of General Plant

5680_Electrical Safety Authority Fees

6105_Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6205_Donations

4375_Revenues from Non-Rate Requlated Operations
4751_Charges Smart Metering Entity Chg

5705_Depreciation Expense - Property Plant and Equipment
5715_Amortization of Intangible Assets

4375_Revenues from Non-Rate Requlated Operations
4405_Interest and Dividend Income

6030_Interest on Debt to Associated Companies

5615_General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5420_Community Safety Program

5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
5675_Maintenance of General Plant

6035_Other Interest Expense

6040_Allowance for Borrowed Costs Applied to CWIP--Credit

4355_Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property
4335_Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges

6110_Income Taxes
6115_Provision for Deferred Taxes - Inc. Statement

USGAAP

Regulated

2014 Actual

OEB Acct TB
-6
2,461,534
15,930
6,472,704
5378
233
64,308
238,889
3,729,620
13,258,274
12,960,393
6,500,000
2,833
0
2,567,716
1,288,765
2,437
52,420,167
4,241
18,848
7,682,506
2,109,526
1,647,295
4,322,741
0
700
11,092,442
402,600
5,784,625
660,000
-3,316,031
6,674,801
243,724,988
128,411,008
19,925,483
148,336,490
-171,911,611

2,198
-1,474,251
-1,476,449
67,585,841

1,870,971
0

0

0
4,455,557
-5,516,998
68,395,372
66,918,922
-1,478,662

0
-1,478,662
11,158,421

367,222
11,525,643
-94,945,708

0
94,945,708

USGAAP

Regulated
2014 Actual
(in thousands)
2,462
16
6,473
5

0

64

239
3,730
13,258
12,960
6,500
3

2,568
1,289
2
52,420
4

19
7,683
2,110
1,647
4,323

1
11,002
403
5,785
660
-3316
6,675
243,725
128,411
19,925
148,336

- 171,912

-2
- 1,474
- 1,476
67,586

1,871

4,456
-5,517
68,395
66,919
-1,479
1,479
11,158
367
11,526
- 94,946

- 94,946

Notes

Adjustments

ocococooocoococooococooo

-102,824
0

0
733,007
0

0
1,551,628

-88,27¢

cocoodocoocoocoo

0
999,721
717,661
0
717,661
-980,030

oloo o

94,388

-0

94,388
94,388

1,573,628
1,060
1,574,688
689,046

0
689,046

Adjustments

(in thousands)

718

1,574
1

1,575
689

689

Filing: April 30, 2016
mIFRS

Regulated
2014 Actual
OEB Acct TB
-6
2,461,534
15,930
6,472,704
5378
233
64,308
238,889
3,729,620
13,258,274
12,960,393
6,500,000
2,833

0
2,464,892
1,288,765

2,437
53,153,173
4,241
18,848
6,130,878
2,109,526
1,647,295
4,322,741

0

700
11,004,166
402,600
5,784,625
660,000
3,316,031
6,674,801
242,725,267
129,128,669
19,925,483
149,054,151
-172,891,641

2,198
-1,474,251
-1,476,449
67,585,841

1,870,971
94,388

0

0
4,455,557
-5,516,998
68,489,759
67,013,310
-1,478,662

0
-1,478,662
12,732,049

368,282
13,100,331
-94,256,662
0

94,256,662

mIFRS

Regulated
2014 Actual

(in

Unregulated
2014 Actual

(in
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Calculated THESL ~ Audited THESL
Consol Adj Consol Consol
2014 Actual 2014 Actual 2014 Actual

(in (in (in Diff Comment.

-0
2,462
16
6,473
5

-2
- 1,474
- 1,476
67,586
1,871
9
4,456
-5,517
68,490
67,013
-1,479
1,479
12,732
368
13,100

- 94,257

- 94,257

5,904

2,007
-3,875

-33

-33

-33
- 66

- 3,941

- 3,941

- 248,629 257,889 9,260 Note 5

- 151,061 Note 6

- - 176,767

183,549
- 119,852

32,488
56,915

- - 1,509
67,586

-1,048 462
67,586 -

1,871 - - 1,871
9% - -94

- 4,423 -2,123 - 6,546
- 5,517 - 5,517

- 68,457 65,463 2,994

- 66,948 64,415 -2,533  Note 7

-1,479 -1,479 -

- 12,732 12,732 -
368 1,193 825
- 13,100 13,925 825
- - 98,197 -42,990 55,207
- - 66,923 - 66,923
- - 98,197 -109,913 -11,715

Note 8

Note 9



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income
December 31, 2014

Notes on the adjustments from OEB US GAAP to mIFRS:

A RSVA Adjustments:

Settlement Variances, for recording the difference between
Cost of Power Revenue and Cost of Power Expense, the

comprised of the amortization of Contributions in Aid of
Construction. In accordance with the APH Article 430 -
Contributions in Aid of Construction, under mIFRS the

C Dec issioning Pr
decommissioning provision asset and liability of ($0.3 million)
and the transitional adjustment for decommissioning provision

D Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB):
between IFRS and US GAAP and result in a measurement
difference of the post-employment benefit liability. In addition,
under IFRS, a liability is recognized for both non-vested

E Non-Refundable Investment Tax Credits:
UINUEr Ud UAAF, UIE NON-rerunudoie IMvesunernL Wwx Creudis dre

recorded in income tax expenses. Under mIFRS, these tax
credits are recorded in operating expenses. For December 31,

F Land Lease: S
assets, and as such, the amortization was recorded in
operating expenses. Under mIFRS, prepaid land lease is
included in PP&E as a finance lease as substantially all of the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the land are

G Decommissioning Provision Accretion Expense Presentation
Y

TG UG UGS UGS T Us UMM G T 1o 15 P
related to the presentation of the decommissioning provision
accretion expense, where under US GAAP, the accretion
expense is presented in operating expenses. Under mIFRS,

Notes: The Uniform System of Account balances are mapped and reconciled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: Difference in "Energy sales" of ($10,637): Calculated balance of ($2,644,329) & AFS balance of ($2,654,966), a difference of ($10,637), as follows:

a. For RRR Reporting, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" and "COP expense" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of ($13,927) and $13,927, respectively.

For the AFS, THESL does not book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to either COP revenue or COP expense.

b. For RRR reporting, THESL books the RSVA change to the higher of COP Revenue or COP expense. For the AFS, the RSVA change is booked to COP Revenue.

c. The difference between the amounts charged by THESL to customers, based on regulated rates, and the corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to THESL,
is recorded as a settlement variance. In accordance with IFRS 14, this settlement variance is presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.

For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into COP revenue.

Total difference:

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
EB-2018-0165
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13,927
-69,975

45,410
-10,637



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income

December 31, 2014

Note 2: Difference in "Distribution revenue" of ($21,594): Calculated balance of ($533,457) & AFS balance of ($555,051), a difference of ($21,594), as follows:

a. A "Smart meter recovery" regulatory balance was booked for AFS, with AFS Distribution revenue booked on an accrual basis. This is not considered a regulatory

balance for purposes of RRR reporting. The AFS Distribution revenue amount has been adjusted so the Distribution revenue booked for RRR Reporting is appropriately reflected on a cash basis.

b. An Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue contra account Regulatory balance was booked for the AFS, with an offsetting entry to Distribution revenue. This is not considered a regulatory balance for
purposes of RRR reporting. The Regulatory balance and related Distribution revenue have been reversed for RRR reporting:

c. The difference between revenue recorded based on collection of OEB-approved rate riders and revenue booked on an accrual basis is presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" O
in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS. For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into distribution revenue.

Total difference:

Note 3: Difference in "Other income" of ($8,649): Calculated balance of ($43,001) & AFS balance of ($51,650), a difference of ($8,649), as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: $14,792. As per IFRS, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a net basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per IFRS, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory
accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charge":

c. "Wireless pole attachments" revenue was booked to a regulatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting, while for AFS purposes the wireless pole attachment revenues were included in "Other income" in the amount of $150:

d. The differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014 was recorded in a regulatory account "IFRS Transitional Adjustments". O
In accordance with IFRS 14, the related impact was presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.

For purpose of RRR reporting, a portion of the amount related to write off of certain assets within net movement is reversed into other income.

Total difference:

Note 4: Difference in "Energy purchases" of $56,047: Calculated balance of $2,644,330 & AFS balance of $2,700,378, a difference of $56,047, as follows:

a. For RRR Reporting, THESL booked to "Cost of Power revenue" and "COP expense" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the amounts of ($13,927) and $13,927, respectively.
For the AFS, THESL does not book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to either COP revenue or COP expense:

b. For RRR reporting, THESL books the RSVA change to the higher of COP Revenue or COP expense. For the AFS, the RSVA change is booked to COP Revenue.

Total difference:

Note 5: Difference in "Operating expenses" of $9,260: Calculated balance of $248,629 & AFS balance of $257,889, a difference of $9,260, as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: As per IFRS, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a net basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per IFRS, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory

accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charge":

c. "Wireless pole attachments" Operating expenses were booked to a regulatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting, while for AFS purposes the wireless pole attachment operating expenses

were included in "Operating expenses" in the amount of $38:

d. THESL deferred costs relating to OPEB and CIR application as regulatory balances under IFRS, with related impact presented separately in "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" under IFRS 14 for AFS.OJ
For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into operating expenses.

Total difference:

Note 6: Difference in "Depreciation and amortization" of $32,488: Calculated balance of $151,061 & AFS balance of $183,549, a difference of $32,488, as follows:

a. An Incremental Capital Model (ICM) depreciation contra account Regulatory balance was booked for the AFS, with an offsetting entry to Depreciation expense. This is not considered a regulatory asset for
purposes of RRR reporting. The RA and related depreciation expense have been reversed for RRR reporting:

b. Due to the transfer of AFS Depreciation expense to Regulatory asset account 1508 Other Regulatory asset, sub-account Incremental Capital Expenditures

c. The differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014 related to derecognition of certain assets was recorded]

in a regulatory account "IFRS Transitional Adjustments". In accordance with IFRS 14, the related impact was presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.

For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into depreciation and amortization expense.

Total difference:
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4,351
-25,063
-883
21,594
-14,793
6,675

-150

-379
-8,647

-13,927
69,975
56,047
14,793
-6,675

38

1,104
9,260

7,485
1,608

23,394
32,487



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Statement of Income

December 31, 2014

Note 7: Difference in "Finance costs" of ($2,533): Calculated balance of $66,948 & AFS balance of $64,415, a difference of ($2,533), as follows:

a. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592.

The following adjustment has been made to the AFS to reflect for RRR Reporting the amount in the above mentioned contra account:

The adjustment entry is, HST/OVAT Contra Account (Dr.) $1,166k, Misc. Interest (Cr.) $16k and Retained Earnings (Cr.) 1,150k.

b. "Wireless pole attachments" carrying charges were booked to a regulatory balance for purposes of RRR reporting, while for AFS purposes the wireless pole attachment carrying charges

were included in "interest expenses" in the amount of $1:

c. The differences arising from accounting policy changes for PP&E and intangible assets due to the transition from US GAAP to IFRS in 2014 related to additional capitalized borrowing costs was recorded ]
in a requlatory account "IFRS Transitional Adjustments". In accordance with IFRS 14, the related impact was presented within "net movements in requlatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.

In accordance with IFRS 14, carrying charges on regulatory balances are presented within finance costs with related impact included within "net movements in requlatory balances, net of tax" for AFS.
For purpose of RRR reporting, the requlatory impact within net movement is reversed into finance costs.

Total difference:

Note 8: Difference in "Income tax expense" of $825. Calculated balance of $13,100 & AFS balance of $13,925, a difference of $825, as follows:
The deferred tax balance related to requlatory balances and gross up in respect of deferred tax assets and corresponding regulatory liability balance are recorded in regulatory balances in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS. O

The net change of these balances is presented within "net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" for AFS. For purposes of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into income tax expense.

Note 9: Difference in "Net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax" of $66,923. Calculated balance of $nil & AFS balance of $66,923, a difference of ($66,923), as follows:
Under IFRS 14 for AFS, the "net movements in requlatory balances, net of tax" line includes the net of all the related requlaory impact to the various income statement lines noted above.]
For purpose of RRR reporting, the regulatory impact within net movement is reversed into the various income statement lines based on their nature.
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$16

-$2,548
~$2,533

$825

-$66,923



RRR Reporting

Rate Base Calculation
Reconciliation - Total PP&E
(Amount in $ thousands)

As Reported - US GAAP RRR Dec 31, 2014
Difference to mIFRS
mIFRS - Trial Balance

A/C 2440 Deferred Revenue LT

CWIP portion of A/C 2440

mIFRS Balance

Inclusions for new Rate Regime
ICM Assets
Streetlighting Assets

Total Jan 1 2015 PP&E - RRR
Total Adjustment to RRR Openning PP&E

2015 ROE

mIFRS - RRR Balances per ledger - OEB roll up
A/C 2440 Deferred Revenue LT
CWIP portion of A/C 2440

Submission per RRR

2016 ROE

mIFRS - RRR Balances per ledger - OEB roll up
A/C 2440 Deferred Revenue LT
CWIP portion of A/C 2440

Submission per RRR
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PP&E ROE Exclusions ROE Calc
(incl CWIP) Reomve CWIP Other Net Comment
$2,903,903 -$518,239 S0 $2,385,664 PPE per ROE Calc. 2014
$25,841 -$24,250 $0 $1,591
$2,929,744 -$542,489 $2,387,255
-$43,571 -$43,571 manual entries on ROE web site
$22,706 $22,706 manual entries on ROE web site
$2,929,744 -$542,489 -$20,865 $2,366,390
$439,074 $439,074
$38,475 $38,475
$3,407,293 -$542,489 -$20,865 $2,843,939 Jan 1, 2015 PP&E for ROE Purposes
$458,275
$3,750,644 -$609,194 $3,141,450
-$86,773 -$86,773
$31,475 $31,475
$3,750,644 -$609,194 -$55,298 $3,086,151 Dec 31, 2015 PP&E for ROE Purposes
4,084,341 -$537,863 $3,546,478
-$116,238 -$116,238
$32,364 $32,364
$4,084,341 -$537,863 -$83,874 $3,462,604 Dec 31, 2016 PP&E for ROE Purposes




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2016

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1005_Cash
1010_Cash Advances and Working Funds
Accounts receivable 1100_Customer Accounts Receivable
1104_Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work
1110_Other Accounts Receivable
1130_Accumulated Provision for Uncollectible Accounts-- Credit
1200_Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies
Unbilled revenue 1120_Accrued Utility Revenues
Income tax receivable 2294_Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc.
Materials and supplies 1330_Plant Materials and Operating Supplies
Other assets 1180_Prepayments
1190_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1805_Land

1808_Buildings and Fixtures

1815_Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV
1820_Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV
1830_Poles Towers and Fixtures

1835_Overhead Conductors and Devices

1840_Underground Conduit

1845_Underground Conductors and Devices

1850_Line Transformers

1855_Services

1860_Meters

1905_Land

1908_Buildings and Fixtures

1910_Leasehold Improvements

1915_Office Furniture and Equipment

1920_Computer Equipment - Hardware

1930_Transportation Equipment

1935_Stores Equipment

1940_Tools Shop and Garage Equipment

1945_Measurement and Testing Equipment

1955_Communication Equipment

1960_Miscellaneous Equipment

1970_Load Management Controls - Customer Premises

1975_Load Management Controls - Utility Premises

1980_System Supervisory Equipment

1995_Contributions and Grants - Credit

1612_Land Rights

2005_Property Under Finance Leases

2055_Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2105_Accum. Depreciation of Electric Utility Plant - Property Plant & Equipment
2120_Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles

Filing: May 1, 2017

Regulated
2016 Actual
OEB Acct TB

0
223,296,063
7,387,522
861,863
-9,719,364
749,564
222,575,647
319,248,302
9,664,954
13,484,370
1,005,039
343,402,665
7,099,147
105,068,042
5,992,646
156,772,442
339,483,342
349,487,472
1,050,984,568
690,624,155
465,305,585
109,093,637
180,923,164
17,738,379
184,456,714
753,840
15,352,125
47,237,874
30,558,319
7,066
17,825,609
480,243
35,886,586
270,978
3,022,834

28,172,657
7,191,090
10,979,744
447,746,006

- 441,042,862
972,158
3,866,499,243

Regulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

0

0
223,296
7,388
862
-9,719
750
222,576
319,248

9,665
13,484
1,005
343,403
7,099
105,068
5,993
156,772
339,483
349,487
1,050,985
690,624
465,306
109,094
180,923
17,738
184,457
754
15,352
47,238
30,558
7
17,826
480
35,887
271
3,023

28,173

7,191
10,980
447,746
-441,043
972
3,866,499

Unregulated

2016 Actual

(in thousands)

34,744

6,217

477

9,774

Consol Adj
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

-34,744

-2,634

Calculated
THESL Consol
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

226,159
319,725
9,665
13,484
1,005
343,879

3,876,273
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EB-2018-0165

Exhibit 1C

Tab3

Schedule 4

Appendix B

ORIGINAL

Page 2 of 8

Audited THESL

Consol
2016 Actual
(in thousands) Diff Comment

- -0

226,159 0
319,725 0

0 0

9,665
13,484 -
-1,005 Note1l

342,874 -1,005

3,876,273 -0



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2016

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Regulatory balances

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Joint Bank indebtedness

Advance from related party

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Income tax payable

1609_Capital Contributions Paid

1611_Computer Software

2055_Construction Work in Progress--Electric

2120_Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles

1495_Deferred Taxes - Non-Current Assets

1460_Other Non-Current Assets

1508_Other Regulatory Assets

1520_Power Purchase Variance Account

1521_Special Purpose Chg Assessment Variance Account
1533_Renewable Generation Connection Funding Adder Deferral Account
1550_Low Voltage Variance Acct

1551_Smart Metering Entity Charge Variance Acct
1555_Smart Meter Capital Offset Variance

1556_Smart Meter Operating Variance

1562_Deferred Payments in Lieu of Taxes
1563_Deferred PILs Contra Account

1568_LRAM Variance Account

1575_IFRS-UGAAP Transitional PPE Amounts
1580_RSVAWMS

1584_RSVANW

1586_RSVACN

1588_RSVAPOWER

1589_RSVAGA

1592_PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 and Subsequent Years
1595_Disposition Recovery Reg Balances Control Acct

2225_Notes and Loans Payable

2205_Accounts Payable

2208_Customer Credit Balances

2220_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities
2240_Accounts Payable to Associated Companies Notes
2250_Debt Retirement Charges( DRC) Payable
2290_Commodity Taxes

2292_Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable

2294 _Accrual for Taxes Payments in Lieu of Taxes Etc.

Filing: May 1, 2017

Regulated
2016 Actual
OEB Acct TB

75,574,497
113,563,764
90,117,426
- 61,413,708
217,841,978
39,332,676
3,357,517
137,733,885
0

- 1,026,599
1,268,066
-677,184

11,411,865

10,174,673
19,014,359

- 183,172,404
53,722,512
7,215,493

- 27,061,247
85,222,910
-0
70,438,691
184,265,019
4,877,274,745

- 85,288,819
-418,669,174

- 13,950,489

- 16,565,749
- 20,357,895
-7,814,334

- 4,049,856

- 8,821,613

- 490,229,109

- 8,597,103

Regulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)
75,574
113,564
90,117
-61,414
217,842
39,333
3,358
137,734
0

-1,027
1,268
-677
11,412

10,175
19,014
-183,172
53,723
7,215
-27,061
85,223
-0
70,439
184,265
4,877,275

-85,289
-418,669
-13,950
-16,566
-20,358
-7,814
-4,050
-8,822
-490,229
-8,597

Unregulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

51,212

-12,837

Consol Adj
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

-37,378

34,744

2,634

Calculated
THESL Consol
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

217,842
39,333
3,358

184,265
4,891,109

-50,545

-500,432
-8,597

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited

Audited THESL
Consol
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

217,842
63,758
1,347

190,884
4,919,137

-50,545

-500,432
-8,986

Diff Comment

24,425 Note 2
-2,010 Notel

6,619 Note3
28,028

0
-389 Noted

EB-2018-0165
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2016

Filing: May 1, 2017
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Calculated Audited THESL
Regulated Regulated Unregulated Consol Adj THESL Consol Consol
2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual
OEB Acct TB (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Diff Comment
Customer deposits 2210_Customer Deposits - 39,145,495 -39,145 -39,145 -39,145
2335_Long Term Customer Deposits - - -
- 39,145,495 -39,145 - - -39,145 -39,145 -
Deferred revenue 2220_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities -1,000,524 -1,001 - -1,001 -4,324 -3,323 Note5
Deferred conservation credit 0 - -5,529 -5,529 -5,529 -
Other liabil 2285_Obligations Under Finance Leases--Current - 3,050,846 -3,051 -3,051
2220_Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities - 54,792 -55 -55
- 3,105,638 -3,106 - - -3,106 -3,106 -
Notes payable to related party 2242_ Payable to Associated Companies -304,910,193 -304,910 -304,910 -304,910
2260_Current Portion of Long Term Debt - - - - -
-304,910,193 -304,910 - - -304,910 -304,910 -
Notes payable to related party 2550_Advances from Associated Companies -1,830,595,099 -1,830,595 -1,830,595 -1,830,595 0
2505_Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion - - - -
Ci 2335_Non-Current Customer Deposits -14,961,988 -14,962 -14,962 -14,962 -
Deferred revenue 2440_Deferred Revenues -116,237,970 -116,238 -116,238
2320_Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities - - -
2335_Non-Current Customer Deposits - 26,944,576 -26,945 -26,945
- 143,182,546 -143,183 - - -143,183 -139,859 3,323 Note5
Post-employment benefits 2306_POEB Liability - 279,290,000 -279,290 -1,195 -280,485 -280,485 0
Other lial 2325_Obligations Under Finance Lease--Non-Current -1,579,842 -1,580 -1,580
2320_Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 379,632 380 380
-1,200,210 -1,200 - - -1,200 -1,922 -721 Note 6
Total Liabilities -3,201,506,724 -3,201,507 -19,560 37,378 -3,183,689 -3,184,799 -1,111
Share Capital 3005_Common Shares Issued -527,816,668 -527,817 -28,461 -556,278 -556,278 0
Retained Earnings 3045_Unappropriated Retained Earnings -1,129,492,533 -1,129,493
3046_Balance Transferred From Income -177,744,793 -177,745
3049_Dividends Payable-Common Shares 321,526,001 321,526
3055_Adjustment to Retained Earnings - 5,969,175 -5,969
- 991,680,501 -991,681 -3,191 - -994,871 -995,879 -1,007 Note7
Contributed Surplus 3010_Contributed Surplus -12,757,392 -12,757 -12,757 -12,757 -
Regulatory balances 1508_Other Regulatory Assets - 87,895,862 -87,896
1595_Disposition Recovery Reg Balances Control Acct - 16,284,919 -16,285
2350_Deferred Tax - Non-Current Liability - 39,332,677 -39,333
- 143,513,459 -143,513 - - -143,513 -169,424  -25,911 Note 8
Total liabilities, equity and -4,877,274,745 -4,877,275 -51,212 37,378 -4,891,109 -4,919,137  -28,028
- - - - - 0 0




Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13 Filing: May 1, 2017
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2016

Notes: The Uniform System of Account balances are mapped and reconciled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: This relates to the CIR Costs Deferral re-instatement on the Balance Sheet.

For OSC purposes, as a result of the OEB's Decision with regards to the DRO, the CIR costs were considered no longer recoverable, and as such it was considered impaired and written-off to the P&L.

For RRR purposes, since the CIR Costs were approved to be recovered over the 5 year term in the original OEB Decision on December 29, 2015 with regards to the 2015-2019 CIR Application, the

CIR costs were re-instated on the balance sheet and will be amortized over the 5 vears. The current portion and the long-term portion of the re-instated CIR costs on the balance sheet was $1,005 and $2,010 respectively.

Note 2: Difference in "Deferred tax assets" of $24,425: Calculated balance of $39,333 & AFS balance of $63,758, a difference of $24,425, as follows:

a. The deferred tax balance related to regulatory balances and gross up in respect of deferred tax assets are recorded in regulatory balances in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS.
For purposes of RRR reporting, these balances are reclassified to deferred tax assets in the amount of $25,911.

b. For purposes of RRR reporting, an adjustment was made to remove deferred income tax asset in respect of the non-rate regulated assets in the amount of ($1,486).

Note 3: Difference in "Regulatory balances - deferred debits" of $6,619: Calculated balance of $184,265 & AFS balance of $190,884, a difference of $6,619, as follows:
a. A "Smart meter recovery" regulatory asset (RA) was booked for AFS, and is not considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting:

b. For RRR purposes, as per the APH, Article 510, “The return on rate base shall not be recorded in Account 1575 IFRS-GAAP Transitional PP&E Return on Rate Base. On disposition of the account
balance, the return is applied pra i in rates as an adj to the revenue . In the AFS, the return on rate base was accrued at year-end 2015 since the OEB approved
the disposition of Account 1575 with the return on rate base of $4.7 million. For RRR purposes, the $4.7 million accrual has been reversed.

As such, in the AFS, the disposition of the account 1575 includes offsetting entries on the balance sheet related to the disposition of the return on rate base, whereas for RRR purposes, the
collection of the return on rate base is recorded in the income statement in with the OEB's ing. Handbook Guidance - March 2015 - #6.

c. The capital-related revenue requirement variance account is calculated using rate base for the AFS and calculated based on capital in-service additions for RRR reporting.

Total difference:

Note 4: Difference in "Income tax payable" of ($389): Calculated balance of ($8,597) & AFS balance of ($8,986), a difference of ($389), as follows:
The difference represents the non-regulated business income tax payable included in the AFS.

Note 5: Difference in "Deferred revenue - current", offset by difference in "Deferred revenue - long-term" of $3,323 as follows:
For the AFS the Deferred revenue was split between current and long-term. For the RRR purposes, the Deferred revenue is not split between current and long-term.

Note 6: Difference in "Other liabilities" of ($721): Calculated balance of ($1,200) & AFS balance of ($1,922), a difference of ($721), as follows:
The difference represents the capital-related revenue requirement variance account calculated using rate base for the AFS and calculated based on capital in-service additions for RRR reporting.

Note 7: Difference in "Retained Earnings" of ($1,007): Calculated balance of ($994,871) & AFS balance of ($995,879), a difference of ($1,007).
Adjustments have been made to certain AFS income statement items to arrive at the RRR reporting as follows:

A. made to certain AFS income statement items in prior years as follows:

a. Reduction for prior years' AFS Distribution revenue booked for Smart Meter "net revenue requirement" on the disposition of Account 1555 "Smart Meter Capital & Recovery" and 1556 "Smart Meter OM&A
Variance account" balances. The amount is recorded to Distribution revenue for RRR reporting, to OEB account 4080 as the amount is billed to THESL customers in the future.

b. Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue and depreciation expense booked in the AFS in prior year, and this was considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting. This ICM revenue and
depreciation expense was to be booked for RRR reporting under regulatory prescribed ICM accounting treatment.

c. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PiLs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account” of Account 1592.

d For purposes of RRR reporting, an adjustment was made to remove deferred income tax asset in respect of the non-rate regulated assets related to prior year.

e. This relates to the reversal of the Account 1575 IFRS-GAAP Transitional PP&E Return on Rate Base.
For RRR purposes, as per the APH, Article 510, “The return on rate base shall not be recorded in this account. On disposition of the account balance, the return is
applied pr in rates as an to the revenue requi . In the AFS, the return on rate base was accrued at year-end 2015 since the

OEB approved the disposition of Account 1575 with the return on rate base of $4,755k. As such, for 2015 RRR purposes, the $4,755k accrual was reversed.

f. This relates to the CIR Costs Deferral re-instatement on the Balance Sheet.

For OSC purposes, as a result of the OEB's Decision with regards to the DRO, the CIR costs were considered no longer recoverable, and as such it was considered impaired and written-off to the P&L.
For RRR purposes, since the CIR Costs were approved to be recovered over the 5 year term in the original OEB Decision on December 29, 2015 with regards to the 2015-2019 CIR Application, the
CIR costs were re-instated on the balance sheet and will be amortized over the 5 years.

g. The difference represents the non-regulated business current income tax expense included in the AFS.

h. Other

8. Adjustments made to certain AFS income statement items in 2016, with these differences as explained in the Income Statement attached.

a. The total impact on net income or difference for the year 2016 was $29,215, per the Income Statement attached.

Total difference:

Note 8: Difference in "Regulatory balances - deferred credits" of ($25,911): Calculated balance of ($143,513) & AFS balance of ($169,424), a difference of ($25,911), as follows:

The deferred tax balance related to regulatory balances and gross up in respect of deferred tax assets are recorded in regulatory balances in accordance with IFRS 14 for AFS. For purposes of RRR
reporting, these balances are reclassified to deferred tax assets.

2,092

3,806

721

6,619

-9,947

- 20,884

1,180

1,432

- 4,755

3,503

- 750
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Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13
Statement of Income
December 31, 2016

Revenue
Energy sales 4006_Residential Energy Sales

4010_Commercial Energy Sales
4020_Energy Sales to Large Users
4025_Street Lighting Energy Sales
4035_General Energy Sales
4050_Revenue Adjustment
4062_Billed WMS
4066_Billed NW
4068_Billed CN
4075_Billed LV

Disf

ibution revenue 4080_Distribution Services Revenue

Other income 4082_Retail Services Revenues
4084 _Service Transaction Requests (STR) Revenues
4086_SSS Administration Revenue
4090_Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales
4210_Rent from Electric Property
4215_0Other Utility Operating Income
4220_Other Electric Revenues
4225_Late Payment Charges
4235_Miscellaneous Service Revenues
4245_Government and Other Assistance Directly Credited to Income
4325_Revenues from Merchandise Jobbing Etc.
4310_Regulatory Credits
4330_Costs and Expenses of Merchandising Jobbing Etc.
5615_General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
4076_Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge

Costs

Energy purchases 4705_Power Purchased
4707_Charges - Global Adjustment
4708_Charges-WMS
4714_Charges-NW
4716_Charges-CN
4730_Rural Rate Assistance Expense
4750_Charges LV

Operating expenses 4380_Expenses of Non-Rate Regulated Operations
4398_Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses Including Amortization
5005_Distribution Operation Supervision and Engineering
5010_Distribution Load Dispatching
5012_Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense
5016_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour
5017_Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses
5020_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour
5025_Overhead Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses
5035_Overhead Distribution Transformers- Operation
5040_Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour
5045_Underground Distribution Lines & Feeders - Operation Supplies & Expenses
5055_Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation
5065_Meter Expense
5070_Customer Premises - Operation Labour
5075_Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses
5085_Miscellaneous Distribution Expense
5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
5110_Maintenance of Buildings and Fixtures - Distribution Stations
5112_Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment
5114_Maintenance of Distribution Station Equipment
5120_Maintenance of Poles Towers and Fixtures
5125_Mail of Overhead Ct and Devices

Filing: May 1, 2017

Regulated
2016 Actual
OEB Acct TB

-584,394,405
-1,672,640,074
-199,743,477
-14,801,546
-285,294,010
323,259
-127,291,573
-171,339,860
-127,357,471
0
-3,182,539,156
-696,533,948
-3,879,073,104
-347,875
-18,378
2,317,539

0

-11,868,496
-1,102,337
-8,200,259
-4,540,398
-9,496,223
-3,765,318
-20,950,568
-5,179,079
19,805,704
238,629
-6,919,230
-54,661,367

1,391,825,709
1,364,724,543
94,602,317
171,339,860
127,357,471
32,689,256
0
3,182,539,156
3,486,726
-162,383
23,026,740
5,351,161

0

4,003,573
2,645,106
624,866
3,737,901

0

663,662
2,460,512
4,683
531,226
2,194,355
1,542,691
10,117,835
14,808,760
14,810,485
0

3,877,544
415,958
14,995,019

Regulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

- 584,394
-1,672,640
-199,743
-14,802

- 285,294
323
127,292
-171,340
127,357

-3,182,539
- 696,534
-3,879,073
-348

-18
2,318

11,868
-1,102
-8,200
-4,540
-9,496
-3,765

-20,951
-5,179
19,806

239
-6,919
- 54,661

1,391,826
1,364,725
94,602
171,340
127,357
32,689

0
3,182,539
3,487
-162
23,027
5,351

4,004
2,645

625
3,738

664
2,461
5

531
2,194
1,543
10,118
14,809
14,810

3,878
2
16,024

Unregulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

-3,466

Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited
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Net Movement Calculated THESL ~ Audited THESL
Adj Consol Adj Consol Consol
2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Diff Comment
- 89,608 - -3,272,147 -3,306,175 -34,028 Note 1
9,191 - - 687,343 - 647,869 39,474 Note2
- 80,416 - - 3,959,490 - 3,954,044 5,446
- 488 - - 58,615 - 66,322 -7,707 Note3
312 - 3,182,851 3,216,879 34,028 Note4



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13
Statement of Income
December 31, 2016

Depreciation and amortization

Finance costs
Interest Income
Interest Expense, Long-term Debt

Interest Expense, Other

Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment

Income Tax Expense

Net Income
Net movements in regulatory balances, net of tax
Net income after net in Y

5130_Maintenance of Overhead Services

5135_Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way

5145_Maintenance of Underground Conduit

5150_Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices

5155_Maintenance of Underground Services
5160_Maintenance of Line Transformers
5165_Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems
5305_Supervision

5310_Meter Reading Expense

5315_Customer Billing

5320_Collecting

5335_Bad Debt Expense

5410_Community Relations - Sundry

5415_Energy Conservation

5420_Community Safety Program

5605_Executive Salaries and Expenses
5610_Management Salaries and Expenses
5615_General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5620_Office Supplies and Expenses
5625_Administrative Expense Transferred Credit
5630_Outside Services Employed

5635_Property Insurance

5640_Injuries and Damages

5655_Regulatory Expenses

5660_General Advertising Expenses
5665_Miscellaneous General Expenses
5675_Maintenance of General Plant
5680_Electrical Safety Authority Fees

6105_Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6205_Donations

4375_Revenues from Non-Rate Regulated Operations
4751_Charges Smart Metering Entity Chg

5705_Depreciation Expense - Property Plant and Equipment

5715_Amortization of Intangible Assets

4375_Revenues from Non-Rate Regulated Operations
4405_Interest and Dividend Income

6030_Interest on Debt to Associated Companies

5615_General Administrative Salaries and Expenses
5420_Community Safety Program
5105_Maintenance Supervision and Engineering
4405_Interest and Dividend Income

6035_Other Interest Expense

6040_Allowance for Borrowed Costs Applied to CWIP--Credit

4355_Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property

4335_Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges

6110_Income Taxes
6115_Provision for Deferred Taxes - Inc. Statement

Filing: May 1, 2017

Regulated
2016 Actual
OEB Acct TB

616,897
3,850,160
6,440
6,024,819
187,260
2,046
3,371,509
203,987
4,223,672
8,772,066
16,538,114
5,229,919

[

[

2,501,576
3,203,104
802
52,007,614
4,196
14,706
6,419,601
1,757,502
1,562,179
5,188,491

[

37,971
10,393,074
406,037
4,648,749
965,726
-3,212,613
6,919,230
250,981,257
204,558,212
21,347,733
225,905,945
-274,308,114

0

-19,393
-19,393
85,425,373

2,298,641
24,235
88,031

-166,995
1,678,198
-12,574,989
-8,652,879
2,132,160

0

2,132,160
21,762,400
179,979
-177,744,793
0
-177,744,793

Regulated
2016 Actual

(in thousands)

2

3,850

6

6,025

187

2

3,372

204

4,224

8,772

16,538

5,230

2,502
3,203

52,008
a4

15
6,420
1,758
1,562
5,188

38
10,393
406
4,649
966
3,213
6,919
250,981
204,558
21,348
225,906
- 274,308

85,425

2,299
24

88

-167
1,678
-12,575
- 8,653
-2,132

0

-2,132
21,762
180
-177,745

-177,745

Unregulated
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

1,200
759

-1,507

-277

-17

-1,801

1,801

Net Movement
Adj
2016 Actual
(in thousands)

3,159

3,159

-77,434

237

44,033
-33,164
33,164
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Calculated THESL ~ Audited THESL

Consol Adj Consol Consol
2016 Actual 2016 Actual 2016 Actual
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Diff Comment
- 255,339 267,738 12,399 Note5
- 226,665 210,601 -16,064 Note6
- - 353,249 - 325,148 28,101
- -297 -297 0
85,425 85,425 -
- - 8,433 -8,512 -80 Note7
-2,132 -2,132 -
- 21,762 22,152 389 Note8
44,213 45,017 804 Note9
- -212,710 - 183,495 29,215
33,164 33,164 -
- -179,546 -150,331 29,215



Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited - 2.1.13 Filing: May 1, 2017
Statement of Income

December 31, 2016

Notes: The Uniform System of Account balances are mapped and reconciled to the audited financial statements (AFS) (in dollars thousands).

Note 1: Difference in "Energy sales” of ($34,028): Calculated balance of ($3,272,147) & AFS balance of ($3,306,175), a difference of ($34,028), s follows:
For RRR Reporting, THESL booked to "Cost of Power expense” the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the credit amount of $34,028.
For the AFS, THESL book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to COP revenue.

Total difference:

Note 2: Difference in "Distribution revenue" of $39,474: Calculated balance of ($687,343) & AFS balance of ($647,869), a difference of $39,474, as follows:

a. A"Smart meter recovery” regulatory asset (RA) was booked for AFS, with AFS Distribution revenue booked on an accrual basis. This is not considered a regulatory

asset for purposes of RRR reporting. The AFS Distribution revenue amount has been adjusted so the Distribution revenue booked for RRR Reporting is appropriately reflected on a cash basis.
b. This relates to the reversal of the Account 1575 IFRS-GAAP Transitional PP&E Return on Rate Base.

For RRR purposes, as per the APH, Article 510, “The return on rate base shall not be recorded in this account. On disposition of the account balance, the return is

applied pr ively in rates as an adj to the revenue requi . In the AFS, the return on rate base was accrued at year-end 2015 since the

OEB approved the disposition of Account 1575 with the return on rate base of $4,755. For 2015 RRR purposes, the $4,755 accrual has been reversed.

As such, in the AFS, the disposition of the account 1575 includes offsetting entries on the balance sheet related to the disposition of the return on rate base, whereas for RRR purposes, the
collection of the return on rate base is recorded in the income statement in accordance with the OEB's Accounting Procedures Handbook Guidance - March 2015 - #6.

c. HST Contra account adjustment: In prior years' AFS, THESL has booked to the OEB account 1592, "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006 and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax
credits (ITCs)" the ITC savings arising from the elimination of Provincial Sales Tax and implementation of the HST on July 1, 2010.

For AFS purposes, the offsetting entry was booked to the income statement rather the regulatory sub-account established, a contra account within Account 1592, "PILS and Tax

Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" of Account 1592. As a result of the OEB's Decision to clear the OEB account 1592 "PILs and Tax Variances for 2006

and Subsequent Years, Sub-account HST / OVAT Input Tax" to recover from customers effective March 1, 2016 over a 10 month period, the offsetting contra account OEB account 1592

"PILS and Tax Variances for 2006 and subsequent years - HST/OVAT Contra Account" was cleared over a 10 month period into the income statement.

d. Incremental Capital Model (ICM) revenue and depreciation expense booked in the AFS in prior year, and this was considered a regulatory asset for purposes of RRR reporting in previous years.
Asa result of the ICM Settlement in 2016, the ICM regulatory accounts have been cleared. As such, for RRR purposes, the ICM rate rider collected of $41.2 million has been recognized

into Distribution Revenue, and the depreciation on ICM assets of $10.9 million that was deferred in regulatory assets has been recognized into Depreciation Expense in the income statement.
Therefore, an additional amount was recorded to increase the revenue recognized for AFS to $41.2 million for RRR purpose.

Total difference:

Note 3: Difference in "Other income" of ($7,707): Calculated balance of ($58,615) & AFS balance of ($66,322), a difference of ($7,707), as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: As per AFS GAAP, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a net basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per AFS GAAP, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory
accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charg:
c. As per the OEB's Accounting Procedures Handbook Guidance - March 2015 - #6, the approved disposition of the account balance or both Account 1575 and Account 1576 would be reflected
as an offset to depreciation expense over the approved amortization period.” As well, based on the OEB's Accounting Procedures Handbook Guidance - March 2015 - #6, to ensure that

only the return on rate base component is recorded in distribution revenues, the offsetting credit entry is recorded in OEB Account 4310 Regulatory Credits.

d. Other

Total difference:

Note 4: Difference in "Energy purchases" of $34,028: Calculated balance of $3,182,851 & AFS balance of $3,216,879, a difference of $34,028, as follows:
For RRR Reporting, THESL booked to "Cost of Power expense" the amount of the IESO settlement invoices charge type 142, in the credit amount of $34,028.
For the AFS, THESL book IESO settlement invoices charge type 142 to COP revenue.

Note 5: Difference in "Operating expenses” of $12,399: Calculated balance of $255,339 & AFS balance of $267,738, a difference of $12,399, as follows:

a. Demand Billable Charges: As per AFS GAAP, THESL booked demand billable charges on a gross basis while for RRR it is reported on a et basis:

b. Smart Metering Entity charge: As per AFS GAAP, THESL books the Smart Metering entity revenue and charge on a net basis, while for RRR it is booked on a gross basis, in the prescribed regulatory
accounts 4076 "Billed Smart Metering Entity Charge" and 4751 "Charges Smart Metering Entity Charg:
c. This relates to the CIR Costs Deferral re-instatement on the Balan